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1.  PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

Nanyang Commercial Bank, Limited was incorporated in Hong Kong
(hereinafter as the “Bank”) and its subsidiaries were incorporated in
Hong Kong or Shanghai (together with the Bank hereinafter as the
“Group”). The Bank is a licensed bank authorised under the Hong
Kong Banking Ordinance.

The principal activities of the Bank are the provision of banking
and related financial services. The principal activities of the Bank’s
subsidiaries are shown in “Appendix — Subsidiaries of the Bank”.
The address of the Bank’s registered office is 151 Des Voeux Road
Central, Hong Kong.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below.

These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (HKFRSs is a collective term which includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs"”) and Interpretations) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certificated Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont'd)

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of
available-for-sale securities, financial assets and financial liabilities
(including derivative financial instruments) at fair value through profit
or loss, precious metals at fair value, investment properties which
are carried at fair value and premises which are carried at fair value
or revalued amount less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses. Repossessed assets are stated at the lower of their
carrying amounts and fair values less costs to sell as further explained
in Notes 2.23.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires the Management to exercise judgement in the process
of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements are disclosed in Note 3.

Except for the annual improvements to HKFRSs that are already
mandatorily effective for accounting period beginning on 1 January
2017, there is no other standard or amendment adopted by
the Group in 2017. The impact of the adoption of these annual
improvements is not material to the Group's financial statements.
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2. FESTEHERM®m 2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)
21 HmEEE(E) 2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont'd)
a) ER20175F 15 1H R4 B E a1 F /i H 144 (a) Amendments that are already mandatorily effective
HEIIERT for accounting period beginning on 1 January 2017
RAFEHE

BHREBAZFE XEEHEE
Applicable for  Currently

& 5T NE financial years relevant to
Amendments Content beginning on  the Group
BT AERSETR (KIERT) KEHBEEM 20175F1 AR =
Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative 1 January 2017 Yes
BB ERIE125% (KERT) HARERBRERELEAEREE 20175F1 A1 &
Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for 1 January 2017  No

Unrealised Losses

BB wmEERFE 1258 (KIEFT) EEMERPESOKE  § (EBNBRSE 20171 AR &
BHIZE1258) RIREERGENEE

Amendments to HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities: 1 January 2017  No
Clarification of the Scope of HKFRS 12

. W (B ERETR) NS EREEE © Amendments to HKAS 7 require an entity to provide
4 BE DA (S B TS R R B E Al SR A R B B disclosures that enable users of financial statements to
FEANBEED RS R RIIERS T evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities,
SEANEE - ZIEF] 2 ZEINEE B IR AES including both changes arising from cash flows and non-
TR BT - cash changes. Additional disclosure for this amendment is

disclosed on the notes of the Group's financial statement.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont'd)

(b) Standards and amendments issued that are not
yet mandatorily effective and have not been early
adopted by the Group in 2017

The following standards and amendments have been issued and are
mandatory for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January

2018:

BREAZFE REAFEHR

Applicable AEEHEE

for financial Currently
A BT RE AAE years beginning relevant to
Standards/Amendments/Int Content on/after the Group
BB M BHRELERIF1057 KX REEHEEB AN S EPEZFER FE B

BB G ERIFE285 (KLEE]) BEREIEA

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28 (2011)

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

To be determined No

BRYBHEERIE25 (KEFT)

Amendments to HKFRS 2

RO BERNEINRZHDEFGE
Classification and Measurement of Share-based
Payment Transactions

201851 H1H =
1 January 2018 No

BN B REEAFAS (KEFT)

Amendments to HKFRS 4

HEaBBMBREERNFELSE [RRE R ER
BERETBHRELENESR [T A

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments with
HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts

2018F1 A 1H

iy

1 January 2018 No

B8 B 15 S RSB 95% SRIA 2018F1A1E &
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments 1 January 2018  Yes
BRI B ELERIFE155% BRRE R & ReBA 20181 H1B =&
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 1 January 2018  Yes
BAR M B HREERNE 155 (FERT) HEBUBRELENFEISHRERE L ERA 2018F1H1R &

Amendments to HKFRS 15

L ONE O
Clarifications to HKFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers

1 January 2018  Yes

BN BHREEANREE225R
HK(IFRIC)-Int 22

SMNERZ 5 MTE T B
Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance
Consideration

20181 H1H =
1 January 2018  Yes

BE 2T ERIFE405% (Z18E])
Amendments to HKAS 40

&% & 1 B i EE 8

Transfers of Investment Property

20181 H1H =
1 January 2018  Yes

BN B REEAFIN (KEFT)

Amendments to HKFRS 9

B A R A B #5125 E BUS L

Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation

2019%F1 1R =
1 January 2019  Yes

BRI B mEEAE 165 e 2019F1 1R &
HKFRS 16 Leases 1 January 2019  Yes
BRMBHmEERIZESE235 Fr 5 1t B 32 B I 1 E 14 2019F1 A1 =

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments
(new interpretation)

1 January 2019  Yes

BT ERISE285% (&£185])
Amendments to HKAS 28

EBECEMEECRPHRAES

20191 A1H A

Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures 1 January 2019  No
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont'd)

(b) Standards and amendments issued that are not
yet mandatorily effective and have not been early
adopted by the Group in 2017 (Cont’d)

o In September 2014, the HKICPA issued the final version
of HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”, bringing together
all phases of the financial instruments project to replace
HKAS 39 and all previous versions of HKFRS 9. The
standard introduces new requirements for classification
and measurement, impairment and hedge accounting. The
changes introduced in HKFRS 9 are highlighted as follows:

(1) Classification and Measurement
Financial assets

Financial assets are required to be classified into one of the following
measurement categories: (1) measured subsequently at amortised
cost, (2) measured subsequently at fair value through other
comprehensive income (all fair value changes other than interest
accrual, amortisation and impairment will be recognised in other
comprehensive income) or (3) measured subsequently at fair value
through profit or loss. Classification is to be made on transition, and
subsequently on initial recognition. The classification depends on the
entity’s business model for managing its financial instruments and
the contractual cash flow characteristics of the instruments.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont'd)

(b) Standards and amendments issued that are not
yet mandatorily effective and have not been early
adopted by the Group in 2017 (Cont’d)

0 Classification and Measurement (Cont’d)
Financial assets (Cont'd)

A financial instrument is subsequently measured at amortised cost
only if it is a debt instrument, and the objective of the entity’s
business model is to hold the asset to collect the contractual
cash flows, and the asset's contractual cash flows characteristics
represent only unleveraged payments of principal and interest. A
debt instrument is subsequently measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income if it is held in a business model whose
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and
selling financial assets and the instrument fulfils the contractual cash
flows characteristics. All other debt instruments are to be measured
at fair value through profit or loss.

Equity instruments are generally measured subsequently at fair
value with limited circumstances that cost may be an appropriate
estimate of fair value. Equity instruments that are held for trading
will be measured at fair value through profit or loss. For all other
equity investments, an irrevocable election can be made at initial
recognition to recognise unrealised and realised fair value gains
and losses in other comprehensive income without subsequent
reclassification of fair value gains and losses to the income statement
even upon disposal. Dividend income is recognised in the income
statement when the right to receive payment is established.

Financial liabilities

Except for the two substantial changes described below, the
classification and measurement requirements of financial liabilities
have been basically carried forward with minimal amendments from
HKAS 39.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont'd)

(b) Standards and amendments issued that are not
yet mandatorily effective and have not been early
adopted by the Group in 2017 (Cont’d)

0 Classification and Measurement (Cont’d)
Financial liabilities (Cont'd)

The accounting for fair value option of financial liabilities were
changed to address own credit risk. The amount of change in fair
value attributable to changes in the credit risk of the financial
liabilities will be presented in other comprehensive income. The
remaining amount of the total gain or loss is included in the income
statement. If this creates or enlarges an accounting mismatch in
profit or loss, then the whole fair value change is presented in the
income statement. The determination of whether there will be a
mismatch will need to be made at initial recognition of individual
liabilities and will not be re-assessed. Amounts presented in other
comprehensive income are not subsequently reclassified to the
income statement but may be transferred within equity. This removes
the volatility in profit or loss that was caused by changes in the credit
risk of liabilities elected to be measured at fair value. It also means
that gains caused by the deterioration of an entity’s own credit risk
on such liabilities will no longer be recognised in profit or loss.

The standard also eliminates the exception from fair value
measurement contained in HKAS 39 for derivative financial
instruments that are linked to and must be settled by delivery of an
unquoted equity instrument.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont'd)

(b) Standards and amendments issued that are not
yet mandatorily effective and have not been early
adopted by the Group in 2017 (Cont’d)

(i) Impairment

The standard introduces a new, expected-loss impairment model
that will require more timely recognition of expected credit losses.
Specifically, it requires entities to account for 12 months expected
credit losses from inception when financial instruments are first
recognised and to recognise full lifetime expected credit losses on
a more timely basis when there have been significant increases in
credit risk since initial recognition. The impairment for financial
instruments that are subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair
value through other comprehensive income (debt instruments), loan
commitments and financial guarantees will be governed by this
standard.

HKFRS 9 will also fundamentally change the loan loss impairment
methodology. The standard will replace HKAS 39's incurred loss
approach with a forward-looking expected loss (ECL) approach. The
Bank will be required to record an allowance for expected losses for
all loans and other debt financial assets not held at FVPL, together
with loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts. The
allowance is based on the expected credit losses associated with the
probability of default in the next twelve months unless there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since origination, in which
case, the allowance is based on the probability of default over the
life of the asset.

The Bank has established a policy to perform an assessment at the
end of each reporting period of whether credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition by considering the change in
the risk of default occurring over the remaining life of the financial
instrument.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

Basis of preparation (Cont'd)

Standards and amendments issued that are not
yet mandatorily effective and have not been early
adopted by the Group in 2017 (Cont’d)

Impairment (Cont’d)

To calculate lifetime ECL, the Bank will estimates the risk of
a default occurring on the financial instrument during its
expected life. ECLs are estimated based on the present value
of expected credit losses over the remaining expected life of
the financial asset discounted at the effective interest rate of
the loan, and

12-month ECL are a portion of the lifetime ECL and represent
the lifetime cash shortfalls that will result if a default occurs
in the 12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter
period if the expected life of a financial instrument is less
than 12 months), weighted by the probability of that default
occurring.

In comparison to HKAS 39, the Bank expects the impairment charge
under HKFRS 9 to be more volatile than under HKAS 39 and to result
in an increase in the total level of current impairment allowances.

The Bank groups its loans into Stage 1, Stage 2 and Stage 3, based
on the applied impairment methodology, as described below:

Stage 1 — Performing loans: when loans are first recognised,
the Bank recognises an allowance based on 12-month
expected credit losses.

Stage 2 — Underperforming loans: when a loan shows
a significant increase incredit risk, the Bank records an
allowance for the lifetime expected credit loss.

Stage 3 - Impaired loans: the Bank recognises the lifetime
expected credit losses for these loans.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont'd)

(b) Standards and amendments issued that are not
yet mandatorily effective and have not been early
adopted by the Group in 2017 (Cont’d)

(i) Impairment (Cont’d)

In addition, in Stage 3 the Bank accrues interest income on the
amortised cost of the loan net of allowances.

o Forward looking information

The Bank will incorporate forward-looking information in the
measurement of ECLs.

The Bank considers forward-looking information such as
macroeconomic factors (e.g., unemployment, GDP growth, interest
rates and house prices) and economic forecasts. To evaluate a range
of possible outcomes, the bank intends to formulate three scenarios:
a base case, a worse case and a better case.

The base case scenario represents the more likely outcome resulting
from the bank’s normal financial planning and budgeting process,
while the better and worse case scenarios represent more optimistic
or pessimistic outcomes. For each scenario, the Bank will derive an
ECL and apply a probability weighted approach to determine the
impairment allowance.

The Bank will use published external information from private
economic forecasting services. Both the Risk and Finance
management teams will need to approve the forward-looking
assumptions before they are applied for different scenarios.

(i) Hedge accounting

The requirements related to hedge accounting would better align the
accounting treatments with risk management activities and enable
entities to better reflect these activities in their financial statements.
It relaxes the requirements for assessing hedge effectiveness
which more risk management strategies may be eligible for hedge
accounting. It also relaxes the rules on using non-derivative financial
instruments as hedging instruments and allows greater flexibility on
hedged items. Users of the financial statements will be provided with
more relevant information about risk management and the effect of
hedge accounting on the financial statements.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont'd)

(b) Standards and amendments issued that are not
yet mandatorily effective and have not been early
adopted by the Group in 2017 (Cont’d)

(1) Hedge accounting (Cont’d)

The Group will adopt HKFRS 9 from 1 January 2018. The Group will
not restate comparative information and will recognise any transition
adjustments against the opening balance of equity at 1 January
2018. During 2017, the Group has performed a detailed assessment
of the impact of the adoption of HKFRS 9. The expected impacts
based on assessments undertaken to date, the total estimated
transition adjustment (net of deferred tax) of the adoption of HKFRS
9 reduces the opening balance of the Group’s equity at 1 January
2018 by approximately HK$0.822 billion, representing:

o a reduction of approximately HK$2 million to the Group's
equity related to new classification and measurement
requirements, primarily due to the reversal of unrealised loss
from the reclassification of available-for-sale financial assets
to fair value through profit or loss as the Group intends to
collect the contractual cash flows of these portfolios;

o a reduction of approximately HK$0.820 billion to the Group's
equity related to new impairment requirements; and

o a reduction of approximately 34 bps to CET1 capital ratio
related to overall impacts.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont'd)

(b) Standards and amendments issued that are not
yet mandatorily effective and have not been early
adopted by the Group in 2017 (Cont’d)

The above assessments are based on accounting policies,
assumptions, judgements and estimation techniques that subject to
change until the Group finalises its first financial statements after
applying HKFRS 9.

° In July 2014, the HKICPA issued the HKFRS 15 and
established a new five-step model to account for revenue
arising from contracts with customers. Under HKFRS
15, revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects the
consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled
in exchange for transferring goods or services to a
customer. The principles in HKFRS 15 provide a more
structured approach for measuring and recognising
revenue. The standard also introduces extensive qualitative
and quantitative disclosure requirements, including
disaggregation of total revenue, information about
performance obligations, changes in contract asset
and liability account balances between periods and key
judgements and estimates. The standard will supersede all
current revenue recognition requirements under HKFRSs.
Either a full retrospective application or a modified
retrospective adoption is required on the initial application of
the standard. In June 2016, the HKICPA issued amendments
to HKFRS 15 to address the implementation issues on
identifying performance obligations, application guidance on
principal versus agent and licences of intellectual property,
and transition. The amendments are also intended to help
ensure a more consistent application when entities adopt
HKFRS 15 and decrease the cost and complexity of applying
the standard. The Group plans to adopt the transitional
provisions in HKFRS 15 to recognise the cumulative effect of
initial adoption as an adjustment to the opening balance of
retained earnings at 1 January 2018. In addition, the Group
plans to apply the new requirements only to contracts that
are not completed before 1 January 2018. During 2017,
The Group has performed an assessment on the impact
of the adoption of HKFRS 15. The Group expects that the
transitional adjustment to be made on 1 January 2018 upon
initial adoption of HKFRS 15 will not be material.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

Basis of preparation (Cont'd)

Standards and amendments issued that are not
yet mandatorily effective and have not been early
adopted by the Group in 2017 (Cont’d)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 clarifies that in determining the spot
exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related
asset, expense or income (or part of it) on the derecognition
of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating
to advance consideration, the date of the transaction is
the date on which an entity initially recognises the non-
monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the
advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or
receipts in advance, then the entity must determine a date
of the transactions for each payment or receipt of advance
consideration. The interpretation does not have material
impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 40, issued in April 2017, clarify when
an entity should transfer property, including property under
construction or development, into or out of investment
property. The amendments state that a change in use occurs
when the property meets, or ceases to meet, the definition
of investment property and there is evidence of the change
in use. A mere change in management’s intentions for the
use of a property does not provide evidence of a change in
use. The amendments should be applied prospectively to the
changes in use that occur on or after the beginning of the
annual reporting period in which the entity first applies the
amendments. An entity should reassess the classification of
property held at the date that it first applies the amendments
and, if applicable, reclassify property to reflect the conditions
that exist at that date. Retrospective application is only
permitted if it is possible without the use of hindsight. The
Group expects to adopt the amendments prospectively from
1 January 2018. The amendments are not expected to have
any significant impact on the Group's financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

Basis of preparation (Cont'd)

Standards and amendments issued that are not
yet mandatorily effective and have not been early
adopted by the Group in 2017 (Cont’d)

Amendments to HKFRS 9 allow financial assets with
prepayment features that permit or require either the
borrower or the lender to pay or receive reasonable
compensation for the early termination of the contract to
be measured at amortised cost or at fair value through
other comprehensive income. The amendments clarify that
a financial asset passes the “solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding” criterion
regardless of the event or circumstance that causes the
early termination of the contract and irrespective of which
party pays or receives reasonable compensation for that
early termination. This amendment will be mandatory on
1 January 2019, and will allow early adoption. The Group
considers as a whole to adopt the amendments together with
the application of the core components of HKFRS 9 for the
first time to better reflect the Group's financial position and
to adopt the amendment as early as 1 January 2018. The
application of the amendments has had no material impact
on the financial statements of the Group.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

Basis of preparation (Cont'd)

Standards and amendments issued that are not
yet mandatorily effective and have not been early
adopted by the Group in 2017 (Cont’d)

In May 2016, the HKICPA issued the HKFRS 16 and
replaced HKAS 17 Leases, HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining
whether an Arrangement contains a Lease, HK(SIC)-Int 15
Operating Leases — Incentives and HK(SIC)-Int 27 Evaluating
the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form
of a Lease. The standard sets out the principles for the
recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of
leases and requires lessees to recognise assets and liabilities
for most leases. The standard includes two recognition
exemptions for lessees — leases of low-value assets and short-
term leases. At the commencement date of a lease, a lessee
will recognise a liability to make lease payments (i.e., the
lease liability) and an asset representing the right to use the
underlying asset during the lease term (i.e., the right-of-
use asset). The right-of-use asset is subsequently measured
at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses unless the right-of-use asset meets the definition of
investment property in HKAS 40, or relates to a class of
property, plant and equipment to which the revaluation
model is applied. The lease liability is subsequently increased
to reflect the interest on the lease liability and reduced for
the lease payments. Lessees will be required to separately
recognise the interest expense on the lease liability and
the depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset. Lessees
will also be required to remeasure the lease liability upon
the occurrence of certain events, such as change in the
lease term and change in future lease payments resulting
from a change in an index or rate used to determine those
payments. Lessees will generally recognise the amount of
the remeasurement of the lease liability as an adjustment to
the right-of-use asset. Lessor accounting under HKFRS 16 is
substantially unchanged from the accounting under HKAS
17. Lessors will continue to classify all leases using the same
classification principle as in HKAS 17 and distinguish between
operating leases and finance leases. HKFRS 16 requires
lessees and lessors to make more extensive disclosures than
under HKAS 17. Lessees can choose to apply the standard
using either a full retrospective or a modified retrospective
approach. The Group expects to adopt HKFRS 16 from 1
January 2019. The Group is currently assessing the impact of
HKFRS 16 upon application.



www.ncb.com.hk

2.1
(b)

(©

FESFER®

AmBLELE (&)

B AEf{E 5] 7K 22 F PE LR R A EE [E82017
FIERIRAN 2 2E R R 15T (&)

BB MEERNREE23  HELGE
AIZE125% — PRIS TR RO BERR K st B 10 {AT FE 13
REBTHEMENMEHERETTES
ZEBASEZSRIAMELE: TRENES
EEMISRIZN NHEE M ZREHHBH
R E 5% A M R AR ¢ 3 B8 A0 o) B E FE B A8
(FIEHIER) - SHRER  RA AR A ENES
B RAAREERMB R TRNAZES
EMBEREL - ZRBHAKRENIBRRR
BEEAFE-

iy

BB EER

[EEBBUBREEL] BEEBUBRE
B BAMBHREERE 12 RES S
ERE28H -BRAEBEERBE SV B RELE
A 1258 E BRI A B TEET 7R 2018F 1 A 1
HEBRMESETA R B A —EEHE T 8 H
REBMEABATKELE-

#1375 % 4645 « NANYANG COMMERCIAL BANK 2017 ANNUAL REPORT 4 #§

2.1
(b)

(c)

B S HR R B X
Notes to the Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

Basis of preparation (Cont'd)

Standards and amendments issued that are not
yet mandatorily effective and have not been early
adopted by the Group in 2017 (Cont’d)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 clarifies how to apply the recognition
and measurement requirements in HKAS 12 Income Taxes
when there is uncertainty over income tax treatments. The
Interpretation mainly addresses the following four areas:
whether an entity separately considers the uncertainty of
tax treatments; assumptions adopted by an entity to address
the examination of tax treatments by taxation authorities;
how an entity determines taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases,
unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates; and how
an entity considers changes in facts and circumstances. The
interpretation does not have material impact on the Group's
financial statements.

Improvements to HKFRSs

“Improvements to HKFRSs” contains HKFRS 1, HKFRS 12
and HKAS 28. Except for the amendments to HKFRS 12
which have been adopted by the Group for the current
year's financial statements, the Group expects to adopt the
amendments from 1 January 2018. None of the amendments
are expected to have a significant financial impact on the
Group.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

2.2 Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Bank and all of its subsidiaries for the year ended
31 December.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control is achieved
when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that
give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of
the investee). Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated
from the date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between Group companies are eliminated; unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of
impairment of the assets transferred. Where necessary, accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed to ensure consistency with
the policies adopted by the Group.

In the Bank’s balance sheet, the investments in subsidiaries are
stated at cost less allowance for impairment losses. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Bank on the basis of dividends
received and receivable. Dividend income from subsidiaries is
recognised in the income statement when the right to receive
payment is established.

2.3 Segmental reporting

The operating result of segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the Management, which
is the chief operating decision maker of the Group, that allocates
resources and assesses the performance of operating segments.
Income and expenses directly associated with each segment are
included in determining operating segment performance.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

2.4 Foreign currency translation

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group's
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars, which is the Bank’s functional and presentation
currency.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions or exchange rates at the end of the reporting period
for items that are re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the settlement of foreign currency transactions using
the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions and
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
translated at the exchange rate at the end of the reporting period
are recognised directly in the income statement, except when
deferred in other comprehensive income as qualifying cash flow
hedge or qualifying net investment hedges.

Translation differences on monetary securities held at fair value
through profit or loss are reported as part of the fair value gain or
loss. Changes in the fair value of monetary securities denominated in
foreign currency classified as available for sale are analysed between
translation differences resulting from changes in the amortised cost
of the securities and other changes in the carrying amount of the
securities. Translation differences related to changes in the amortised
cost are recognised in the income statement, and other changes in
the carrying amount are recognised in other comprehensive income.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (Cont'd)

Translation differences on non-monetary items are reported as
part of the fair value gain or loss. Translation differences on non-
monetary financial assets such as equities classified as available for
sale are included in other comprehensive income.

The results and financial position of all the Group entities that have
a functional currency different from Hong Kong dollars are translated
into Hong Kong dollars as follows:

o assets and liabilities are translated at the closing rates at the
end of the reporting period;

o income and expenses are translated at average exchange
rates; and
o all resulting exchange differences are recognised in the

currency translation reserve in equity through other
comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation
of the net investment in foreign entities, borrowings and other
currency instruments designated as hedges of such investments are
taken to other comprehensive income. When a foreign entity is sold,
such exchange differences are recognised in the income statement,
as part of the gain or loss on sale.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

2.5 Derivative financial instruments and hedge
accounting

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date the
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured
at fair value. Fair values are obtained from quoted market prices in
active markets, including recent market transactions, and through
the use of valuation techniques, including discounted cash flow
models and option pricing models, as appropriate. All derivatives are
carried as assets when fair value is positive and as liabilities when fair
value is negative.

Certain derivatives embedded in other financial instruments are
treated as separate derivatives when their economic characteristics
and risks are not closely related to those of the host contract and the
host contract is not carried at fair value through profit or loss. These
embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in fair
value recognised in the income statement.

Derivatives are categorised as held for trading and changes in their
fair value are recognised immediately in the income statement unless
they are designated as hedges and are effective hedging instruments,
then they are subject to measurement under the hedge accounting
requirements.

For derivative instruments designated as hedging instrument and are
effectively hedged, the method of recognising the resulting fair value
gain or loss depends on the nature of the item being hedged. The
Group designates certain derivatives as follows:

(@) Hedges of a particular risk associated with a highly probable
future cash flow attributable to a recognised asset or liability,
or a highly probable forecasted transaction (cash flow
hedge).

Hedge accounting is used for derivatives designated in this way.

The Group documents at inception the relationship between hedging
instruments and hedged items, as well as its risk management
objective and strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions.
The Group also documents its assessment, both at the hedge
inception and on an ongoing basis, of whether the derivatives that
are used in hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting
changes in fair values or cash flow of hedged items. These criteria
should be met before a hedge can be qualified to be accounted for
under hedge accounting.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

2.5 Derivative financial instruments and hedge
accounting (Cont'd)

(a) Cash flow hedge

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that
are designated and qualified as cash flow hedges are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity. The gain
or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised immediately
in the income statement. Amounts accumulated in equity are
reclassified to the income statement in the periods when the hedged
item affects profit or loss.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, or when a hedge no
longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any accumulated
gain or loss existing in equity at that time remains in equity and is
recognised in the income statement when the forecast transaction
is ultimately recognised in the income statement. When a forecast
transaction is no longer expected to occur, the accumulated gain
or loss that was reported in equity is immediately reclassified to the
income statement.

(b) Net investment hedge

A gain or loss on the effective portion of the hedging instrument
is recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity; a gain or loss on the ineffective portion is recognised
immediately in the income statement. Accumulated gains and losses
previously recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified
to the income statement upon disposal of the foreign operation as
part of the gain or loss on disposal.

2.6 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported
in the balance sheet when there is a legally enforceable right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

2.7 Interest income and expense and fee and
commission income and expense

Interest income and expense are recognised in the income statement
for all financial assets and financial liabilities using the effective
interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial liability and of
allocating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected
life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter
period to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial
liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Group
estimates future cash flows considering all contractual terms of the
financial instrument (e.g. prepayment options or incentives relating
to residential mortgage loans) but does not consider future credit
losses. The calculation includes fees, premiums or discounts and basis
points paid or received between parties to the contract, and directly
attributable origination fees and costs which represent an integral
part of the effective yield.

Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been
written down as a result of an impairment loss, interest income is
recognised on the written down value using the rate of interest used
to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the
impairment loss. Subsequent unwinding of the discount allowance is
recognised as interest income.

Fee and commission income and expenses that are not an integral
part of the effective yield are recognised on an accrual basis ratably
over the period when the related service is provided, such as
administrative fee, asset management fee and custody services fee.
Loan syndication fees are recognised as revenue when the related
syndication arrangement has been completed and the Group has
retained no part of the loan package for itself or has retained a
part at the same effective interest rate as applicable to the other
participants.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

2.8 Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets into the following four
categories: financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and receivables, held-to-maturity securities and available for sale
financial assets. The Management determines the classification of
investments at initial recognition. The classification depends on the
purpose for which the financial assets are held. All financial assets
are recognised initially at fair value. Except for financial assets carried
at fair value through profit or loss, all transaction costs of financial
assets are included in their initial carrying amounts.

(1) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

This category has two sub-categories: financial assets held for
trading, and those designated at fair value through profit or loss at
inception.

A financial asset which has been acquired or incurred principally
for the purpose of selling in the short term or is part of a portfolio
of identified financial instruments that are managed together and
for which there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking is classified as held for trading. Derivatives are also
classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedges.

A financial asset, other than one held for trading, will be designated
as a financial asset at fair value through profit or loss, if it meets
one of the criteria set out below, and is so designated by the
Management:

J eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or
recognition inconsistency (sometimes referred to as “an
accounting mismatch”) that would otherwise arise from
measuring the financial assets or recognising the gains and

losses on them on different bases; or

o applies to a group of financial assets, financial liabilities
or both that is managed and its performance is evaluated
on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented
risk management or investment strategy, and information
about the group is provided internally on that basis to the
Management; or
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

2.8 Financial assets (Cont'd)

(1) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(Cont’d)

o relates to financial assets containing one or more embedded
derivative that significantly modifies the cash flow resulting
from those financial assets.

These assets are recognised initially at fair value, with transaction
costs taken directly to the income statement, and are subsequently
re-measured at fair value.

Gains and losses from changes in the fair value of such assets
(excluding the interest component) are reported in net trading gain/
loss or net gain/loss on financial instruments designated at fair value
through profit or loss. The interest component is reported as part of
interest income.

2) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market,
including placements with and advances to banks and other
financial institutions, investment debt securities without an active
market and loans and advances to customers. They arise when the
Group provides money, goods or services directly to a debtor with
no intention of trading the receivable. They are initially recorded
at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs and are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method less allowances for impairment losses.

(3) Held-to-maturity financial investments

Financial assets classified as held-to-maturity are those traded in
active markets, with fixed or determinable payments and fixed
maturities that the Group’'s Management has both the positive
intention and the ability to hold to maturity. Where the Group
sold held-to-maturity assets (i) other than due to an isolated event
beyond the Group’s control, non-recurring and could not have
been reasonably anticipated by the Group, such as a significant
deterioration in the issuer’s creditworthiness, significant change in
statutory or regulatory requirement; or (ii) other than an insignificant
amount of held-to-maturity assets, the entire category would
be tainted and reclassified as available-for-sale. They are initially
recorded at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs,
and are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method less allowances for impairment losses.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

2.8 Financial assets (Cont'd)
(4) Available-for-sale financial investments

Financial assets classified as available-for-sale are those that are
either designated as such or are not classified in any of the other
categories. They are intended to be held for an indefinite period of
time but may be sold in response to needs for liquidity or changes in
interest rates, exchange rates or equity prices.

Available-for-sale financial assets are initially recorded at fair value
plus any directly attributable transaction costs, and are subsequently
measured at fair value. Unrealised gains and losses arising from
changes in the fair value of investments are recognised directly in
other comprehensive income, until the financial asset is derecognised
or impaired at which time the accumulated gain or loss previously
recognised in equity should be transferred to the income statement.
However, interest income which includes the amortisation of
premium and discount is calculated using the effective interest
method and is recognised in the income statement. Dividends on
equity instruments classified as available-for-sale are recognised in
other operating income when the Group’s right to receive payment is
established.

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-sale category,
the fair value carrying amount at the date of reclassification becomes
its new amortised cost and any previous gain or loss on that
asset that has been recognised in other comprehensive income is
amortised to profit or loss over the remaining life of the investment
using the effective interest method. Any difference between the
new amortised cost and the maturity amount is also amortised over
the remaining life of the financial asset using the effective interest
method. If the financial asset is subsequently determined to be
impaired, the amount recorded in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss immediately.

The treatment of translation differences on available-for-sale
securities is dealt with in Note 2.4.

2.9 Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities under the following
categories: financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss,
deposits, debt securities and certificate of deposit in issue, and
other liabilities. All financial liabilities are classified at inception and
recognised initially at fair value.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

2.9 Financial liabilities (Cont'd)
(1) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if it is incurred
principally for the purpose of repurchasing in the short term.
Derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedges. It is measured at fair value and any
gains and losses from changes in fair value are recognised in the
income statement.

2) Deposit, debt securities and certificates of deposit in
issue, and other liabilities

Deposits, debt securities and certificates of deposit in issue and other
liabilities, other than those classified as trading liabilities are carried
at amortised cost. Any difference (if available) between proceeds
net of transaction costs and the redemption value is recognised in
the income statement over the period using the effective interest
method.

2.10 Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the issuer to
make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs
because a specified debtor fails to make payments when due, in
accordance with the terms of a contract between the holder and the
debtor.

Financial guarantee contracts are initially recognised as financial
liabilities and reported under “Other accounts and provisions” in
the financial statements at fair value on the date the guarantee
was given. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group’s liabilities
under such guarantees are measured at the higher of (i) the amount
determined in accordance with HKAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets” and (ii) the amount initially
recognised less, where appropriate, accumulated amortisation
recognised over the life of the guarantee on a straight-line basis. Any
changes in the liability relating to financial guarantee contracts are
taken to the income statement.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

2.11 Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments

Purchases and sales of financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss, available-for-sale and held-to-maturity are recognised on
the trade date, the date on which the Group purchases or sells
the assets. Loans and receivables (except investment securities
without an active market) are recognised when cash is advanced
to the borrowers. Financial assets are derecognised when the
rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired
or where the Group has transferred substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership. When the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial
asset, the Group either continues to recognise the transferred
financial asset to the extent of its continuing involvement if control
remains or derecognise it if there is no retained control.

Trading liabilities are recognised on the trade date. Deposits that are
not trading liabilities are recognised when money is received from
customers, other liabilities are recognised when such obligations
arise. Financial liabilities are derecognised from the balance sheet
when and only when the obligation specified in the contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

Securities and bills sold to a counterparty with an obligation to
repurchase at a pre-determined price on a specified future date
under a repurchase agreement are referred to as repos. Securities
and bills purchased from a counterparty with an obligation to re-sell
to the counterparty at a pre-determined price on a specified future
date under a resale agreement are referred to as reverse repos.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

2.11 Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments (Cont'd)

Repos or securities lending are initially recorded as due to
banks, placements from banks and other financial institutions,
as appropriate, at the actual amount of cash received from the
counterparty. Financial assets given as collateral for repurchase
agreements are not derecognised and are recorded as financial
investments or financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.
Reverse repos or securities borrowing are initially recorded in the
balance sheet as cash and due from banks or placements with
banks and other financial institutions, as appropriate, at the actual
amount of cash paid to the counterparty. Financial assets received as
collateral under reverse repurchase agreements are not recognised
on the balance sheet. The difference between sale and repurchase
price is recognised as interest income or interest expense over the life
of the agreements using the effective interest method.

2.12 Fair value measurement

The Group measures its premises and investment properties, precious
metals and certain financial instruments at fair value at the end of
each reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be received
to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants in its principal market or the most
advantageous market accessible by the Group at the measurement
date.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the
assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the
asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

2.12 Fair value measurement (Cont'd)

If the market for assets or liabilities is not active, the Group uses
valuation techniques, including the use of recent arm’s length
transactions, discounted cash flow analysis, option pricing models
and other valuation techniques commonly used by market
participants, that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use
of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable
inputs.

2.13 Precious metals

Precious metals comprise gold. Precious metals are initially
recognised and subsequently re-measured at fair value. Mark-to-
market gains or losses on precious metals are included in net trading
gain/loss.

2.14 Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses as at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial
assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired and impairment losses are incurred if, and only if, there
is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a
“loss event”) and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the
reliably estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group of
financial assets. Objective evidence that a financial asset or group of
financial assets may be impaired includes observable data that comes
to the attention of the Group about the following probable loss
events:

(i) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor;

(ii) a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in
interest or principal payment;

(iii) the Group granting to the borrower, for economic or legal
reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty, a
concession that the lender would not otherwise consider;
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont'd)

it becoming probable that the borrower will enter into
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

the disappearance of an active market or downgrading below
investment grade level for that financial asset because of
financial difficulties; or

observable data indicating that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a group of
financial assets since the initial recognition of those assets,
although the decrease cannot yet be identified with the
individual financial assets in the group, including:

adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers in the
group; or

national or local economic conditions that correlate with
defaults on the assets in the group.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment
exists individually for financial assets that are individually significant.

If the Group determines that no objective evidence of impairment

exists for an individually assessed financial asset, it includes the asset

in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics

and collectively assesses them for impairment together with all

other financial assets that are not individually significant or for
which impairment has not yet been identified. Assets that are
individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment

loss is or continues to be recognised are not included in a collective
assessment of impairment.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

2.14 Impairment of financial assets (Cont'd)
(1) Financial assets carried at amortised cost (Cont’d)

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans and
receivables or held-to-maturity securities has been incurred, the
amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred),
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.
The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of
an allowance account and the amount of the loss is recognised
in the income statement. If a loan or held-to-maturity security
has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any
impairment loss is the current effective interest rate determined
under the contract. As a practical expedient, the Group may measure
impairment on the basis of an instrument’s fair value using an
observable market price.

The calculation of the present value of the estimated future cash
flows of a collateralised financial asset reflects the cash flows that
may result from foreclosure less costs for obtaining and selling the
collateral.

For the purposes of a collective assessment of impairment, financial
assets are grouped on the basis of similar and relevant credit risk
characteristics. Those characteristics are relevant to the estimation of
future cash flows for groups of such assets by being indicative of the
debtors’ ability to pay all amounts due according to the contractual
terms of the assets being evaluated.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

2.14 Impairment of financial assets (Cont'd)
(1) Financial assets carried at amortised cost (Cont’d)

Future cash flows in a group of financial assets that are collectively
evaluated for impairment are estimated on the basis of the
contractual cash flows of the assets in the group and historical loss
experience for assets with credit risk characteristics similar to those
in the group. Historical loss experience is adjusted on the basis of
current observable data to reflect the effects of current conditions
that did not affect the period on which the historical loss experience
is based and to remove the effects of conditions in the historical
period that do not exist currently.

When a loan is uncollectible, it is written off against the related
allowance for impairment losses. Such loans are written off after all
the necessary procedures have been completed and the amount of
the loss has been determined. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off decrease the amount of impairment losses in
the income statement.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of allowance for impairment
losses decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised (such as an
improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the previously recognised
impairment loss to the extent of its decrease is reversed by adjusting
the allowance account. The amount of the reversal is recognised in
the income statement.

Loans whose terms have been renegotiated with substantial

difference in the terms are no longer considered to be past due but
are treated as new loans.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

2.14 Impairment of financial assets (Cont'd)
2) Financial assets classified as available-for-sale

If evidence of impairment exists for available-for-sale financial assets,
the accumulated losses, measured as the difference between the
acquisition cost or amortised cost and the current fair value, less
any impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised in
the income statement, is removed from equity and recognised in
the income statement. In the case of equity investments classified as
available-for-sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of the security below its cost is considered in determining whether
the assets are impaired. If, in a subsequent period, the fair value
of a debt instrument classified as available-for-sale increases and
the increase can be objectively related to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognised in the income statement, the
impairment loss to the extent of its decrease is reversed through the
income statement. With respect to equity instruments, further fair
value changes are recognised in the reserve for fair value change of
available-for-sale securities through other comprehensive income,
impairment losses are not reversed through the income statement.

2.15 Impairment of investment in subsidiaries and
non-financial assets

Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. Potential indications of impairment may include
significant adverse changes in the technological, market, economic
or legal environment in which the assets operate or whether there
has been a significant or prolonged decline in value below their cost.
“Significant” is evaluated against the original cost of the investment
and “prolonged” against the period in which the fair value has been
below its original cost.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

2.15 Impairment of investment in subsidiaries and
non-financial assets (Cont'd)

An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the
asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment,
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows (cash generating units). Assets that suffered
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at
each reporting date.

In the Bank's balance sheet, impairment testing of the investment
in a subsidiary is also required upon receiving dividend from that
entity if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of
that entity concerned in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of that entity in the Bank’s balance sheet exceeds
the carrying amount of that entity’s net assets including goodwill in
its consolidated balance sheet.

2.16 Investment properties

Properties that are held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that are not occupied by the companies in
the Group, are classified as investment properties. Properties leased
out within Group companies are classified as investment properties
in individual companies’ financial statements and as premises in
consolidated financial statements. Land held under operating lease is
classified and accounted for as investment property when the rest of
the definition of investment property is met. The operating lease is
accounted for as if it is a finance lease.

Investment properties are recognised initially at cost, including

related transaction costs. After initial recognition, investment
properties are measured at fair value.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

2.16 Investment properties (Cont'd)

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrying amount
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The item is stated at cost less impairment and is
included in the carrying amount of investment properties. Once the
item begins to generate economic benefits, it is then measured at
fair value. All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed in
the income statement during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

Any changes in fair value are recognised directly in the income
statement.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is reclassified
as premises, and its fair value at the date of reclassification becomes
its cost for accounting purposes. If an item of premises becomes an
investment property because its use has changed, any difference
resulting between the carrying amount and the fair value of this
item at the date of transfer is recognised in other comprehensive
income as a revaluation of premises under HKAS 16 “Property, Plant
and Equipment”. However, if a fair value gain reverses a previous
revaluation loss or impairment loss, the gain is recognised in the
income statement up to the amount previously debited.

2.17 Properties, plant and equipment

Properties are mainly branches and office premises. Premises are
shown at fair value based on periodic, at least annual, valuations
by external independent valuers less subsequent accumulated
depreciation. Any accumulated depreciation at the date of
revaluation is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the
asset and the net amount is restated to the revalued amount of the
asset. In the intervening periods, the directors review the carrying
amount of premises, by reference to the open market value of
similar properties, and adjustments are made when there has been a
material change.

All plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditures that are directly
attributable to the acquisition and installation of the items.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

2.17 Properties, plant and equipment (Cont'd)

Subsequent costs are included in an asset’s carrying amount or
are recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
The item is stated at cost until it begins to generate economic
benefits, then the item is subsequently measured according to the
measurement basis of its respective assets class. All other repairs and
maintenance costs are charged to the income statement during the
financial period in which they are incurred.

Increases in the carrying amount arising on revaluation of premises
are credited to the premises revaluation reserve through other
comprehensive income. Decreases that offset previous increases of
the same individual asset are charged against premises revaluation
reserve through other comprehensive income; all other decreases
are expensed in the income statement. Any subsequent increases
are credited to the income statement up to the amount previously
debited, and then to the premises revaluation reserve. Upon disposal
of premises, the relevant portion of the premises revaluation reserve
realised in respect of previous valuations is released and transferred
from the premises revaluation reserve to retained earnings.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line method to write down
the cost or revalued amount of such assets over their estimated
useful lives as follows:

o Properties Over the life of government land
leases
o Plant and equipment 2 to 15 years

The useful lives of assets are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate,
as at the end of each reporting period.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

2.17 Properties, plant and equipment (Cont'd)

At the end of each reporting period, both internal and external
sources of information are considered to determine whether there
is any indication that properties, plant and equipment, are impaired.
If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset
is estimated and where relevant, an impairment loss is recognised
to reduce the asset to its recoverable amount. Such an impairment
loss is recognised in the income statement except where the asset
is carried at valuation and the impairment loss does not exceed the
revaluation surplus for that same asset, in which case it is treated as
a revaluation decrease. The recoverable amount is the higher of the
asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. Impairment loss
is reversed through the premises revaluation reserve or the income
statement as appropriate.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds
with carrying amount, relevant taxes and expenses. These are
recognised in the income statement.

2.18 Leases
(1) Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating
leases. The total payments made under operating leases (net of
any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to the income
statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

When an operating lease is terminated before the lease period
has expired, any payment required to be made to the lessor by
way of penalty is recognised as an expense in the period in which
termination takes place. Rental income from operating leases is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

2.18 Leases (Cont'd)
2) Finance leases

Leases of assets where lessee have obtained substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases.
Government land leases in Hong Kong are classified as finance leases
as the present value of the minimum lease payments (i.e. transaction
price) of the land amounted to substantially all of the fair value of
the land as if it were freehold.

Finance leases are capitalised at the lease’s commencement at the
lower of the fair value of the leased asset and the present value
of the minimum lease payments. Each lease payment is allocated
between the liability and finance charges so as to achieve a constant
rate on the finance balance outstanding. The corresponding rental
obligations, net of finance charges, are included in other liabilities.
Investment properties acquired under finance leases are carried at
their fair value.

When assets are leased out under a finance lease, the present value
of the lease payments is recognised as a receivable. Lease income is
recognised over the term of the lease using net investment method,
which reflects a constant periodic rate of return.

2.19 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and
cash equivalents comprise balances with original maturity less than
three months from the date of acquisition, including cash, balances
with banks and other financial institutions, short-term bills and notes
classified as investment securities.

2.20 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable
that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the
amount of the obligation can be made.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

2.21 Employee benefits
(1) Retirement benefit costs

The Group contributes to defined contribution retirement schemes
under either recognised ORSO schemes or MPF schemes that are
available to the Group’s employees. Contributions to the schemes
by the Group and employees are calculated as a percentage of
employees’ basic salaries for the ORSO schemes and in accordance
with the MPF rules for MPF schemes. The retirement benefit scheme
costs are charged to the income statement as incurred and represent
contributions payable by the Group to the schemes. Contributions
made by the Group that are forfeited by those employees who leave
the ORSO scheme prior to the full vesting of their entitlement to the
contributions are used by the Group to reduce the existing level of
contributions or to meet its expenses under the trust deed of the
ORSO schemes.

The assets of the schemes are held in independently-administered
funds separate from those of the Group.

2) Leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and sick leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made for the
estimated liability for unused annual leave and the amount of
sick leave expected to be paid as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the end of the reporting period.

Compensated absences other than sick leave and special approved
annual leaves are non-accumulating; they lapse if the current
period’s entitlement is not used in full. Except for unexpired annual
leaves, they do not entitle employees to a cash payment for unused
entitlement on leaving the Group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

2.21 Employee benefits (Cont'd)
(3) Bonus plans

The expected cost of bonus payments are recognised as a liability
when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as
a result of services rendered by employees and a reliable estimate
of the obligation can be made. Liabilities for bonus plans that are
expected to be settled longer than twelve months will be discounted
if the amounts are significant.

4) Defined benefit plan

The Group operates a defined benefit plan which is unfunded.
The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan
is determined using the projected unit credit actuarial valuation
method.

Remeasurements arising from actuarial gains and losses of the
defined benefit plan, is recognised immediately in the consolidated
balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained
profits through other comprehensive income in the period in which
they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss at the earlier of:

o the date of the plan amendment or curtailment; and
o the date that the Group recognises restructuring-related
costs.

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net
defined benefit liability or asset. The Group recognises the following
changes in the net defined benefit obligation under “interest
expenses” and “operating expenses” in the consolidated income
statement by function:

o service costs comprising current service costs, past service
costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine

settlements

o net interest expense or income
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

2.22 Current and deferred income taxes

Tax expenses for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax
is recognised in the income statement, except to the extent that it
relates to items recognised directly in other comprehensive income.
In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Income tax payable on profits, based on the applicable tax law
enacted or substantially enacted at the end of the reporting period
in each jurisdiction where the Bank and the subsidiaries operate
and generate taxable income, is recognised as a current income tax
expense in the period in which profits arise.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the balance sheet
liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
consolidated financial statements. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantially
enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to
apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.

The principal temporary differences arise from asset impairment
provisions, depreciation of premises and equipment, and revaluation
of certain assets including available-for-sale securities and premises.
However, the deferred income tax is not recognised if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than
a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss.

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided in full on all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred income tax assets are recognised on
all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of any unused
tax credits and unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses can be utilised.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

2.22 Current and deferred income taxes (Cont'd)

Deferred income tax is charged or credited in the income statement
except for deferred income tax relating to fair value re-measurement
of available-for-sale securities and revaluation of premises which
are charged or credited to other comprehensive income, in which
case the deferred income tax is also credited or charged to other
comprehensive income and is subsequently recognised in the income
statement together with the realisation of the deferred gain and loss.

Deferred tax liability or deferred tax asset arising from investment
property is determined based on the presumption that the
revaluation amount of such investment property will be recovered
through sale with the relevant tax rate applied.

2.23 Repossessed assets

Repossessed assets are initially recognised at the lower of their
fair value less costs to sell and the amortised cost of the related
outstanding loans on the date of repossession, and the related loans
and advances together with the related impairment allowances are
derecognised from the balance sheet. Subsequently, repossessed
assets are measured at the lower of their cost and fair values less
costs to sell and are reported as “non-current assets held for sale”
included in “Other assets”.

2.24 Fiduciary activities

The Group commonly acts as a trustee, or in other fiduciary
capacities, that result in its holding or managing assets on behalf
of individuals, trusts and other institutions. These assets and any
gains or losses arising thereon are excluded from these financial
statements, as they are not assets of the Group.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

2.25 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past
events and whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence
or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation
arising from past events that is not recognised because it is not
probable that an outflow of economic resources will be required or
the amount of obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised as a provision but is disclosed
in the notes to the financial statements. When a change in the
probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, it will
then be recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events
and whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the Group.

Contingent assets are not recognised but are disclosed in the notes
to the financial statements when an inflow of economic benefits is
probable. When the inflow is virtually certain, it will be recognised as
an asset.

2.26 Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is considered
to be related to the Group if that party (i) controls, jointly controls or
has significant influence over the Group; (ii) is a member of the same
financial reporting group, such as parents, subsidiaries and fellow
subsidiaries; (iii) is an associate or a joint venture of the Group or
parent reporting group; (iv) is a key management personnel of the
Group or parents; (v) is subject to common control with the Group;
(vi) is an entity in which a person identified in (iv) controls; and (vii)
provides key management personnel services to the Group or its
parent. Related parties may be individuals or entities.
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3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Group makes estimates and assumptions that affect the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances. Areas susceptible to changes in essential estimates
and judgements, which affect the carrying amount of assets and
liabilities, are set out below. The effect of changes to either the
key assumptions or other estimation uncertainties will be presented
below if it is practicable to determine. It is possible that actual results
may require material adjustments to the estimates referred to below.

3.1 Impairment allowances on loans and advances

The Group reviews its loan portfolios to assess impairment at least
on a quarterly basis. In determining whether an impairment loss
should be recorded in the income statement, the Group makes
judgements as to whether there is any observable data indicating
that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash
flows from a portfolio of loans and advances before the decrease
can be identified with an individual loan in that portfolio. This
evidence may include observable data indicating that there has been
an adverse change in the payment status of borrowers in a group
(e.g. payment delinquency or default), or economic conditions that
correlate with defaults on assets in the group. The Management uses
estimates based on historical loss experience for assets with credit
risk characteristics and objective evidence of impairment similar to
those in the portfolio when estimating expected future cash flows.
The methodology and assumptions used for estimating both the
amount and timing of future cash flows are reviewed regularly.

Carrying amounts of loans and advances as at 31 December 2017
are shown in Note 22.
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3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

3.2 Impairment of financial investments

The Group reviews its investment portfolios to assess impairment
at least on a quarterly basis. In determining whether any of these
investments is impaired, risk characteristics and performance such
as external credit rating and market price will be assessed. The
Group makes estimates on the default rate and loss severity of
each investment with reference to market performance of the
portfolios, current payment status of the issuers or performance
of the underlying assets, or economic conditions that correlate
with defaults on the collateralised assets. The methodology and
assumptions used for impairment assessments are reviewed regularly.

Carrying amounts of financial investments as at 31 December 2017
are shown in Note 24.

3.3 Fair values of derivative financial instruments

The fair values of derivative financial instruments that are not quoted
in active markets are determined by using valuation techniques.
Valuation techniques used include discounted cash flows analysis
and models with built-in functions available in externally acquired
financial analysis or risk management systems widely used by the
industry such as option pricing models. To the extent practical, the
models use observable data. In addition, valuation adjustments
may be adopted if factors such as credit risk are not considered
in the valuation models. Management judgement and estimates
are required for the selection of appropriate valuation parameters,
assumptions and modeling techniques. Further details will be
discussed in Note 5.

Carrying amounts of derivative financial instruments as at 31
December 2017 are shown in Note 21.
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3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

3.4 Classification of held-to-maturity securities

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 39 in classifying certain
non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
and fixed maturity as held-to-maturity securities. This classification
requires significant management judgement to evaluate the Group's
intention and ability to hold such investments to maturity. If the
Group fails to hold these investments to maturity other than for
specific circumstances defined in HKAS 39, such as selling an
insignificant amount, selling close to maturity or due to significant
credit deterioration of such investments, it will be required to
reclassify the entire portfolio of financial assets as available-for-sale
securities. The investments would then be measured at fair value and
not amortised cost.

Carrying amounts of held-to-maturity securities as at 31 December
2017 are shown in Note 24.

3.5 Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets on unused tax losses are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which
the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is
required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be
recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable
profits.

Deferred tax assets on unused tax credits are recognised. Significant
management judgement is required to determine the amount
of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the
estimation of available tax credits and the possibility to recover such
deferred tax assets recognised.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group is exposed to financial risks as a result of engaging in a
variety of business activities. The principal financial risks are credit
risk, market risk (including currency risk and interest rate risk)
and liquidity risk. This note summarises the Group’s exposures to
these risks, as well as its objectives, risk management governance
structure, policies and processes for managing and the methods used
to measure these risks.

Financial risk management framework

The Group's risk management governance structure is designed to
cover all business processes and ensure various risks are properly
managed and controlled in the course of conducting business.
The Group has a robust risk management organisational structure
with a comprehensive set of policies and procedures to identify,
measure, monitor and control various risks that may arise. These
risk management policies and procedures are regularly reviewed
and updated to reflect changes in markets and business strategies.
Various groups of risk takers assume their respective responsibilities
for risk management.

The Board of Directors, representing the interests of shareholders,
is the highest decision-making authority of the Group and has the
ultimate responsibility for risk management. The Board, with the
assistance of its committees, has the primary responsibility for the
formulation of risk management strategies and ensuring that the
Group has an effective risk management system to implement these
strategies.

The Risk Management Committee, a standing committee established
by the Board of Directors, is responsible for overseeing the Group's
various types of risks, approving high-level risk management policies
and monitoring their implementation, recommending senior risk
management organisational structure to the Board, including credit
approval authority for the Chief Executive and scope of credit
approval for the Credit Approval Committee. The Risk Management
Committee would refer any specific transaction to the Board if it
is deemed so significant that Board approval is desirable. The Risk
Management Committee, from the risk management viewpoint
assesses whether incentives created by the remuneration system
are aligned with the risk culture and risk appetite, and whether
remuneration awards appropriately reflect the level of risk-taking and
consequences. It also assists to fostering a strong risk culture within
the Group. The Audit Committee assists the Board in fulfilling its role
in overseeing the internal control system.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
Financial risk management framework (Cont'd)

The Credit Approval Committee is responsible for credit approval
within the authorisation granted by the Board of Directors and
monitoring the credit activities of the Group. The Chief Executive is
responsible for organising and implementing the risk management
strategies and objectives established by the Board of Directors,
managing various risks and approving significant risk exposures
or transactions within the authorisation granted by the Board of
Directors.

Various units of the Group have their respective risk management
responsibilities. Business units act as the first line of defence
while risk management units, which are independent from the
business units, are responsible for the day-to-day management of
different kinds of risks. Risk management units have the primary
responsibilities for drafting, reviewing and updating various risk
management policies and procedures.

The Group has put in place appropriate internal control systems,
including establishment of an organisational structure that sets clear
lines of authority and responsibility for monitoring compliance with
policies, procedures and limits. Proper reporting lines also provide
sufficient independence of the control functions from the business
areas, as well as adequate segregation of duties throughout the
organisation which helps to promote an appropriate internal control
environment.
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4, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont'd)
Product development and risk monitoring

To ensure the effectiveness of risk assessment and monitoring,
the Group has a comprehensive product development and risk
monitoring system where roles and responsibilities of all related units
are clearly defined and proper due diligence processes on product
development are in place.

In accordance with the strategic objectives set by the Board and the
Management, respective product management units are responsible
for formulating business and product development plans, and
proceeding to specific product development activities. The strategic
development unit shall ensure the plans are aligned with the Group's
overall strategies. Units that are responsible for risk management,
legal, compliance and finance, etc. are accountable for risk
assessment and review.

Apart from product development, respective product management
units work closely with relevant risk evaluating units to identify
and assess the risks of new products. Risk evaluating units conduct
independent review on the risk assessment results and the
corresponding risk management measures. Products can only be
launched upon completion of the product due diligence process to
the satisfaction of all risk evaluating units.

A prudent approach is adopted in offering treasury products to
our customers. All new treasury products require approval from a
specialised committee before launching.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.1 Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss that a customer or counterparty is
unable to or unwilling to meet its contractual obligations. Credit risk
exists in the trading book and banking book, as well as from on- and
off-balance sheet transactions of the Group. It arises principally from
lending, trade finance and treasury businesses.

Credit risk management framework

The Group has formulated a comprehensive set of credit risk
management policies and procedures, and appropriate credit risk
limits to manage and control credit risk that may arise. These
policies, procedures and credit risk limits are regularly reviewed and
updated to cope with changes in market conditions and business
strategies.

The Group’s organisational structure establishes a clear set of
authority and responsibility for monitoring compliance with policies,
procedures and limits.

The Credit and Loans Management Committee, a management
committee authorised by the Chief Executive, is responsible for the
implementation of the credit risk management strategies as well
as the approval of credit policies. It also monitors the Group's loan
portfolio, quality of credit asset and risk concentration level. Different
units of the Group have their respective credit risk management
responsibilities. Business units act as the first line of defence. The risk
management units, which are independent from the business units,
are responsible for the day-to-day management of credit risks and
have the primary responsibilities for providing an independent due
diligence through identifying, measuring, evaluating, monitoring,
reporting and controlling credit risk to ensure an effective checks
and balances, as well as drafting, reviewing and updating credit risk
management policies and procedures. They report directly to the
Credit and Loans Management Committee, Chief Executive, Credit
Approval Committee and Risk Management Committee.

Nanyang Commercial Bank (China), Limited (“NCB (China)”) sets
up independent risk monitoring teams to monitor credit risk, and
submits management information and reports to the Bank on a
regular basis.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.1 Credit risk (Cont'd)
Credit risk management framework (Cont’d)

The Board of Directors is the ultimate source of credit authority. The
Board of Directors delegates credit approval authority to the Credit
Approval Committee and the Chief Executive. Based on management
needs, the Chief Executive can further delegate to the credit-related
subordinates within the limit authorised by the Board of Directors.
The Group sets the limits of credit approval authority according to
the credit business nature, rating, the level of transaction risk, and
the size of the credit exposure.

Credit risk measurement and control

In view of the rapidly changing market conditions, the Group has
been continuously revising its credit strategies and conducting
rigorous reviews on the concerned portfolios.

Advances

Different credit approval and control procedures are adopted
according to the level of risk associated with the customer,
counterparty or transaction. All credit applications are subject
to thorough risk assessment and proper approval. In general,
most of the credit applications will be reviewed and assessed by
independent officer(s) of risk management unit(s) before approval,
with exceptions given to designated advances which satisfy certain
conditions. After funding being drawn, these designated advances
will be (randomly) reviewed by designated unit(s) which is(are)
independent from the front line business units. Obligor ratings
(in terms of probability of default) and facility ratings (in terms of
loss given default) are assigned to credit applications for non-retail
exposures to support credit approval. Retail internal rating systems
are deployed in the risk assessment of retail credit transactions,
including small business retail exposures, residential mortgage loans,
personal loans, etc. Loan grades, obligor and facility ratings as well
as loss estimates (if applicable) are used to support credit approval.



www.nch.com.hk

4. TEEARERE @)
41 FERREE)
SEmBATIERERE ()

B (&)

REETSEBERD BRF - ERATRIBKLIE
AR (MERRIFEERE FERAREBSER
DI - HWNIIETERRAL  AEESHRSARD
BEPREREAENFRERNERINEE  ART
ERBAERSEAS EHERS H B AT
REBRBAGRETESR YA ARERRARE
FefTEzmigs -

AREEFEHANASTRLAREREHZLELR
(Standard & Poor's)7INE81= FR 5T AR A3 & o 2 N EBET AR
BREXBEEFTEESD GRITEEH)D) BT (RiTE
(BA)#HA) MEXR-

EERRERREEEARTERRATERRE =
ERUEE S HITZEE AREEZESERES

TOAEEREEREERR-

AEBOERBITER HWE FPAXZFHTEHE
BOGEERRETE YEES-XZUFEERA
2 FEEAEACHER EERARETENEL T
HmAEEEEEER-

AEESRSERERDERIENIEL  BREREE
ERNTRDEMT

(B8] REBRABMBRITERRETNE R
EHEENERASHOBE B TRKER -

[FEMT] REBERALEHREE TRt ELE
BWEERNAS RAE - BRI ARBHLRFKLRE
KBMAFERFE B HBREKRRIBL-

#1175 % 4645 « NANYANG COMMERCIAL BANK 2017 ANNUAL REPORT 4 #§

B S HR R B X
Notes to the Financial Statements

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cCont'd)
4.1 Credit risk (Cont'd)

Credit risk measurement and control (Cont’d)

Advances (Cont’d)

The Group also uses loan grades, obligor ratings and loss estimates
(if applicable) to support monitoring, reporting and analysis of credit
risk. For non-retail exposures, more frequent rating review and
closer monitoring are required for higher-risk customers. For retail
exposures, monthly updated internal ratings and loss estimates are
used for credit monitoring on a portfolio basis. More comprehensive
review is required for obligors being identified under high-risk pools.

The Group employs an internal master rating scale that can be
mapped to Standard & Poor’s external credit ratings. The structure
of internal master rating scale is in compliance with the requirement
of the Banking (Capital) Rules under the Hong Kong Banking
Ordinance.

Regular or ad hoc credit risk management information reports are
provided to the Management, Credit Approval Committee, Executive
Committee, Risk Management Committee and the Board of Directors
to facilitate their continuous monitoring of credit risk.

In addition, the Group identifies credit concentration risk by industry,
geography, customer and counterparty. The Group monitors
changes in counterparty credit risk, quality of the credit portfolio
and credit risk concentrations, and reports regularly to the Group's
Management.

The Group adopts loan grading criteria which divides credit assets
into five categories with reference to the HKMA's guidelines, as
below:

“Pass” represents loans where the borrower is in current meeting its
repayment obligations and full repayment of interest and principal is
not in doubt.

“Special Mention” represents loans where the borrower is
experiencing difficulties which may threaten the Group’s position.
Ultimate loss is not expected at this stage but could occur if adverse
conditions persist.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.1 Credit risk (Cont'd)

Credit risk measurement and control (Cont’d)

Advances (Cont’d)

“Substandard” represents loans where the borrower displays a
definable weakness that is likely to jeopardise repayment.

“Doubtful” represents loans where collection in full is improbable
and the Group expects to sustain a loss of principal and/or interest,
taking into account the net realisable value of the collateral.

“Loss” represents loans which are considered uncollectible after
all collection options (such as the realisation of collateral or the
institution of legal proceedings) have been exhausted.

Debt securities and derivatives

For investments in debt securities and securitisation assets, the
obligor ratings or external credit ratings, assessment of the
underlying assets and credit limits setting on customer/security
issuer basis are used for managing credit risk associated with the
investment. For derivatives, the Group sets customer limits to
manage the credit risk involved and follows the same approval and
control processes as applied for advances. On-going monitoring and
stop-loss procedures are established.

Settlement risk arises mainly from foreign exchange transactions
with counterparties and also from derivatives transactions in any
situation where a payment in cash, securities or equities is made in
the failure of a corresponding receipt in cash, securities or equities.
Daily settlement limits are established for each counterparty or
customer to cover all settlement risk arising from the Group’s market
transactions on any single day.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cCont'd)
4.1 Credit risk (Cont'd)
Collateral held as security and other credit enhancements

The valuation and management of collateral have been documented
in the credit risk management policies and procedures which cover
acceptance criteria, validity of collateral, loan-to-value ratio, haircut
ratio, valuation and insurance, etc. The collateral is revalued on a
regular basis, though the frequency and the method used varies with
the type of collateral involved and the nature and the risk of the
underlying credit. The Group has established a mechanism to update
the value of its main type of collateral, real estate properties, with
the use of public indices on a portfolio basis. Collateral is insured
with the Group as the primary beneficiary.

For loans guaranteed by a third party, the Group will assess the
guarantor’s financial condition, credit history and ability to meet
obligations.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group did not hold any collateral that
it was permitted to sell or re-pledge in the absence of default by the
borrower (2016: Nil).

(A) Credit exposures

The maximum credit exposure is the worst case scenario of exposure
to the Group without taking into account any collateral held or other
credit enhancements. For on-balance sheet assets, the maximum
exposure to credit risk equals their carrying amount. For letters
of guarantee issued, the maximum exposure to credit risk is the
maximum amount that the Group could be required to pay if the
guarantees are called upon. For loan commitment and other credit
related liabilities, the maximum exposure to credit risk is the full
amount of the committed facilities.

The nature of the collateral held and other credit enhancements and

their financial effect to the different classes of the Group’s financial
assets are as follows.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.1 Credit risk (Cont'd)
(A) Credit exposures (Cont’d)

Balances and placements with banks and other financial
institutions

These exposures are generally considered to be low risk due to the
nature of the counterparties. Collateral is generally not sought on
these assets.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and financial
investments

Collateral is generally not sought on debt securities.

Derivative financial instruments

The Master Agreement published by the International Swaps and
Derivatives Association, Inc. (“ISDA Master Agreement”) is the
preferred agreement for documenting derivatives activities of the
Group. It provides the contractual framework under which dealing
activities of over-the-counter (“OTC") derivative transactions
are conducted, and sets out close-out netting provisions upon
termination following the occurrence of an event of default or a
termination event. In addition, if deemed necessary, Credit Support
Annex (“CSA") will be included to form part of the Schedule to the
ISDA Master Agreement. Under a CSA, collateral is passed from one
counterparty to another, as appropriate, to mitigate the exposures.

Advances and other accounts, contingent liabilities and
commitments

The general types of collateral are disclosed on page 115. Advances
and other accounts, contingent liabilities and commitments are
collateralised to the extent considered appropriate by the Group
taking account of the risk assessment of individual exposures. The
collateral coverage of advances to customers is analysed on pages
127 to 128. The components and nature of contingent liabilities and
commitments are disclosed in Note 36. Regarding the commitments
that are unconditionally cancellable without prior notice, the Group
would assess the necessity to withdraw the credit line in case
where the credit quality of a borrower deteriorates. For contingent
liabilities and commitments, 14.48% (2016: 14.05%) was covered
by collateral as at 31 December 2017.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

4.1 Credit risk (Cont'd)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts

Gross advances and other accounts before impairment allowances

are summarised by product type as follows:

2017 2016
BETT BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
XEER Advances to customers
& A Personal
—izi5 — Mortgages 27,521,697 26,219,040
—EAR — Credit cards 253,087 441,046
—Hfth — Others 13,921,666 11,549,920
N Corporate
—HEEER — Commercial loans 185,746,630 141,974,726
—E5mE — Trade finance 7,764,256 7,596,230
235,207,336 187,780,962
S Trade bills 1,526,269 5,665,154
236,733,605 193,446,116

ERHEIPRAZER BEEASRIMEC AR RDA
BE ADIERBER - AT MEEZENR &
Hef— R BERD B RNAEE  BISIERHE
B REHEREZ ERECERAERARERTBA
BRERARRETENR  HERX—HBLERAESR
R EE KR IIEBHEIE

EAEDEBRRBREFHR —BAAZHBEREN &
B GEEEELEHCFEERBTENRERS
m BlZERE HERERK

Advances with a specific repayment date are classified as overdue
when the principal or interest is past due and remains unpaid.
Advances repayable by regular instalments are classified as overdue
when an instalment payment is past due and remains unpaid.
Advances repayable on demand are classified as overdue either
when a demand for repayment has been served on the borrower but
repayment has not been made in accordance with the instruction or
when the advances have continuously exceeded the approved limit
that was advised to the borrower.

Advances are impaired and impairment losses are incurred if, and
only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one
or more events that occurred and that loss event(s) has an impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the advances that can be reliably
estimated.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.1 Credit risk (Cont'd)
(B) Gross advances and other accounts (Cont’d)

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on advances
has been incurred, the amount of loss is measured as the difference
between the carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows generated by the advances. Objective evidence that
advances are impaired includes observable data that comes to the
attention of the Group about the loss events.

The criteria that the Group uses to determine that there is objective
evidence of an impairment loss include:

- Significant financial difficulty incurred by the borrower;

- A breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in
principal or interest payment;

- For economic or legal reasons related to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, the Group has granted to the borrower a
concession that it would not otherwise consider;

- Probable that the borrower will become bankrupt or undergo
other financial reorganisation; or

- Other observable data indicating that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows from such
advances.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

Credit risk (Cont'd)

Gross advances and other accounts (Cont’d)

Advances neither overdue nor impaired

Advances that were neither overdue nor impaired are analysed by
internal credit grade as follows:

2017
ZERE AKBIUT
=) Special Substandard st
Pass mention or below Total
BET T BET T BET T BET T
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ZEFEE®R Advances to customers
&A Personal
— &% — Mortgages 27,230,431 11,275 10,191 27,251,897
—=AF — Credit cards 235,714 = = 235,714
—Hfth — Others 13,820,661 17,581 916 13,839,158
NG Corporate
—FEEER — Commercial loans 182,868,355 1,764,807 27,723 184,660,885
—EBFmE — Trade finance 7,652,564 26,793 = 7,679,357
231,807,725 1,820,456 38,830 233,667,011
B 525 Trade bills 1,526,269 = = 1,526,269
233,333,994 1,820,456 38,830 235,193,280
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

Credit risk (Cont'd)

Gross advances and other accounts (Cont’d)

Advances neither overdue nor impaired (Cont’d)

2016
FEEE  ORBPIIAT
=i Special  Substandard #Et
Pass mention or below Total
BT T BT T BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EFEER Advances to customers
A Personal
— 1218 — Mortgages 25,885,478 40,898 987 25,927,363
—EAF — Credit cards 410,212 19 = 410,231
—H A — Others 11,492,203 18,074 - 11,510,277
N Corporate
—BHEER — Commercial loans 139,339,502 1,844,628 2,556 141,186,686
—B5mE — Trade finance 7,453,678 61,053 = 7,514,731
184,581,073 1,964,672 3,543 186,549,288
BZER Trade bills 5,665,154 = = 5,665,154
190,246,227 1,964,672 3,543 192,214,442

EERX2BUEMER BEREBREHTALE
BORERAL  BWEERETFR KRR HAT - 757
BRIFREERR ERBPIIT -
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The occurrence of loss event(s) may not necessarily result in
impairment loss where the advances are fully collateralised. While
such advances are of “substandard” or lower grades, they are
regarded as not being impaired and have been included in the above

tables.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.1 Credit risk (Cont'd)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (Cont’d)

(b) Advances overdue but not impaired

The gross amount of advances overdue but not impaired is analysed

as follows:
2017
pg:hehic) HHEB
3R E 618 A
BH3EA THBEEA EFRBBIF
HLLF Overdue for Overdue for A
Overdue six months one year HIB1F
for three orless but or less but Overdue for
months or  over three over six over one #et
less months months year Total
BT T BT T BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFEX Advances to customers
& A Personal
— &% - Mortgages 202,253 3,018 4,934 14,051 224,256
—EAFR — Credit cards 10,594 - - - 10,594
—H At - Others 56,620 1,237 9,302 492 67,651
NG Corporate
—HEEER — Commercial loans 180,321 - - 2,414 182,735
—E5HE — Trade finance 14,223 17,371 - - 31,594
464,011 21,626 14,236 16,957 516,830
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.1 Credit risk (Cont'd)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (Cont’d)

(b) Advances overdue but not impaired (Cont’d)

2016
60 HA R 3R 60 HA R R
3fE A8 6fE A8
BHI3ME A TiEEiEefE A BB F
A~ Overdue for  Overdue for #60 HA
Overdue six months one year B 14
for three or less but or less but  Overdue for
months or over three over six over one 4T
less months months year Total
BT T BT BT BT BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFEX Advances to customers
& A Personal
— %15 - Mortgages 214,590 4,298 1,478 30,167 250,533
—fERF — Credit cards 16,847 = = = 16,847
—HAft - Others 32,829 664 559 517 34,569
N Corporate
—FEEEX — Commercial loans 246,822 1,743 4,998 = 253,563
—BF5mE — Trade finance 6,722 1,225 - - 7,947
517,810 7,930 7,035 30,684 563,459
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cCont'd)
4.1 Credit risk (Cont'd)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (Cont’d)

(c) Impaired advances

Advances individually identified to be impaired are analysed by
product type as follows:

2017 2016
K mmE EH mHE
BWER Market BER Market
Gross value of Gross value of
advances collateral advances collateral
BT T BT T BT T BT T
HK$'000 HKS$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFEEX Advances to customers
& A Personal
— %15 — Mortgages 45,544 46,557 41,144 36,522
—fEAR — Credit cards 6,779 - 13,968 -
—Efth — Others 14,857 11,381 5,074 12,021
NG| Corporate
—BEEX — Commercial loans 903,010 74,537 534,477 236,903
—BH5ME — Trade finance 53,305 - 73,552 1,920
1,023,495 132,475 668,215 287,366
B EMERIED Impairment allowances made in
2R ELEH respect of such advances 819,992 474,566
2017 2016
BETT BT T
HK$°000 HK$'000

BB ERREENTRPER L

Current market value of collateral held against the

EHmmE covered portion of such advances to customers 132,475 287,366
LM EERRBEZCRERPER Covered portion of such advances to customers 118,175 113,048
RS ERIFRBEZCRFER Uncovered portion of such advances to customers 905,320 555,167
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.1 Credit risk (Cont'd)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (Cont’d)

(c) Impaired advances (Cont’d)

The impairment allowances were made after taking into account the

value of collateral in respect of such advances.

As at 31 December 2017, there were no impaired trade bills (2016:
Nil).

Classified or impaired advances to customers are analysed as follows:

2017 2016

BT T BT T

HKS$’000 HK$'000

BFEABEIREL ST EREE Gross classified or impaired advances to customers 1,129,546 740,215
BESHIRBEZLRFERER Gross classified or impaired advances to customers as

HEP BN = a percentage of gross advances to customers 0.48% 0.39%
F it B R R BTl 2 R B 2 Individually assessed impairment allowances made in

respect of such advances 819,789 474,147

FENBRIRMELEFERRERASEEREE
DR [RAR - TRB] K [EE] ERRERIFES
B E K -
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Classified or impaired advances to customers represent advances
which are either classified as “substandard”, “doubtful” or “loss”
under the Group’s classification of loan quality, or individually
assessed to be impaired.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cCont'd)
4.1 Credit risk (Cont'd)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (Cont’d)

(d) Advances overdue for more than three months

The gross amount of advances overdue for more than three months
is analysed as follows:

2017 2016
HEEFEX HEEFPER
BEESL BEEDL
% of gross % of gross
&% advances to %%  advances to
Amount customers Amount customers
BET T ST
HK$'000 HK$'000
EPEZ@E BEH:  Gross advances to customers which
have been overdue for:
—iEBA3E A BT E R — six months or less but over three
61E A months 157,953 0.07% 205,766 0.11%
—BiE6ME A BT BT - one year or less but over six
months 321,281 0.13% 121,647 0.07%
—fBiIB1F — over one year 583,352 0.25% 339,655 0.18%
wHB3MEA 2B R Advances overdue for over
three months 1,062,586 0.45% 667,068 0.36%
A EREMBIFEE 2 Individually assessed impairment
RAE 2 allowances made in respect of such
advances 805,993 421,834
2017 2016
BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
REMEERARBENTFERZ Current market value of collateral held against the
AR ST E covered portion of such advances to customers 287,524 320,355
LM EERMBECREFER Covered portion of such advances to customers 170,879 136,249
MR BEERRBEECRFPER Uncovered portion of such advances to customers 891,707 530,819
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.1 Credit risk (Cont'd)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (Cont’d)

(d) Advances overdue for more than three months (Cont’d)

Collateral held against overdue or impaired loans is principally
represented by charges over business assets such as commercial
and residential premises for corporate loans and mortgages over
residential properties for personal loans.

As at 31 December 2017, there were no trade bills overdue for more
than three months (2016: Nil).

(e) Rescheduled advances

2017 2016
EEFEX EEFPER
HEADTHL BEESL
% of gross % of gross

%% advances to ©%  advances to
Amount customers Amount customers
BET T T
HK$'000 HK$'000
KEERRFERFHA Rescheduled advances to
(BEFRBEERN [#EH customers net of amounts included
BiB31E A 2 &5 #%) in[Advances overdue for more
than three months | 8,506 0.00% 2,292 0.00%

REAERTIIERE KA E 7 B R R 2 5 B ) 0 53
BRMEETRBERERERAB 2ER - BFTE
FEtElR  KEAEFNDAREMA3MEA - B 2E
EaRBEE3EAZER] Ae
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Rescheduled advances are those advances that have been
restructured or renegotiated because of deterioration in the financial
position of the borrower or of the inability of the borrower to meet
the original repayment schedule. Rescheduled advances, which
have been overdue for more than three months under the revised
repayment terms, are included in “Advances overdue for more than
three months”.
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4. SRERERE & 4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont'd)
41  FERRE (8 4.1  Credit risk (Cont'd)

(B) HEFRAEMEE (&) (B)  Gross advances and other accounts (Cont’d)

(f) EFEXEFE (f) Concentration of advances to customers

(i) BRITEP B RPERERE (i) Sectoral analysis of gross advances to customers

LNTERBEFPERBRE 2ITEDEIN  B1TES The following analysis of the gross advances to customers by industry
N2BERERRBR 2T RMERMERERM sector is based on the categories with reference to the completion

o instructions for the HKMA return of loans and advances.
2017
EARR
Hity
HEREZ ERlFfEz  @afiz
EF ZEAR HEER HEER
EX#BE % covered KEDE Individually  Collectively
Gross by collateral HRfE assessed assessed
advances to or other Classified @  impairment  impairment
customers security  or impaired Overdue  allowances  allowances
BET T BETT BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ERBERZER Loans for use in Hong Kong
TEepz Industrial, commercial and financial
—MEER — Property development 13,314,714 14.94% - - - 38,388
—MERE — Property investment 11,619,518 91.75% 17,266 13,598 12,958 84,720
—SmE - Financial concerns 14,241,301 3.27% - - - 39,958
-RELER - Stockbrokers 235 100.00% - - - 2
“HERTEE — Wholesale and retail trade 8,933,689 54.41% 64,104 211,546 50,606 47,909
—BliER — Manufacturing 11,387,243 19.72% 24,235 29,619 14,885 41,452
- BHREGHRE — Transport and transport
equipment 4,472,168 13.74% - 366 - 13,678
NN — Recreational activities 15,453 6.31% - - - 118
— &R ~ Information technology 3,602,709 1.07% - - - 14,047
—Hfth - Others 16,785,387 56.65% 150,236 175,532 78,110 82,927
{EN Individuals
-BEEEHEEME ~ Loans for the purchase of flats
LARELRER in Home Ownership Scheme,
SERBEEERE Private Sector Participation
BT ER Scheme and Tenants
Purchase Scheme 269,153 100.00% 390 5,784 - 137
-BEAMEENFLZ ~ Loans for purchase of other
B residential properties 13,108,084 99.90% 5,286 74,123 - 5,730
—Hth - Others 9,483,433 71.35% 1,903 28,425 - 4,126
EEBRACERER Total loans for use in Hong Kong 107,233,087 47.64% 263,420 538,993 156,559 373,192
BIRME Trade finance 9,538,676 20.30% 94,677 100,438 51,024 61,053
EEBIIMERZER Loans for use outside Hong Kong 118,435,573 34.05% 771,449 888,506 612,206 782,780
REERERE Gross advances to customers 235,207,336 39.69% 1,129,546 1,527,937 819,789 1,217,025
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4. EEERERE (8 4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
41 FERREE) 4.1 Credit risk (Cont'd)
(B) HEFRAEMEE (&) (B)  Gross advances and other accounts (Cont’d)
(f) EEEHERE (&) (f) Concentration of advances to customers (Cont’d)
(i) RITEP B2 R ERERE (&) (i) Sectoral analysis of gross advances to customers (Cont’d)
2016
BRmR
Hif
EREZ ERsTthz  HAETEZ
2P ZBAL HEEE HEERE
EnE % covered KENE Individually ~ Collectively
Gross by collateral B assessed assessed
advances to or other Classified ki impairment impairment
customers security or impaired Overdue allowances allowances
BETT BB BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EEBRAZER Loans for use in Hong Kong
IEem Industrial, commercial and financial
-MEERE — Property development 9,395,050 6.41% - - - 21917
—MERE ~ Property investment 10,775,101 84.72% 29,680 26,154 762 94,939
—FRE - Financial concerns 11,037,686 3.70% - - - 23,910
-#ERTER - Wholesale and retail trade 8,029,810 43.50% 75,789 102,065 52,168 53,357
—BER - Manufacturing 8,334,113 20.75% 35,676 33,786 15,582 31,662
-EHRERLE — Transport and transport
equipment 5,973,029 11.14% - 360 - 39,465
—KEES ~ Recreational activities 3,437 29.82% - - - 18
— BB ~ Information technology 2,272,628 1.14% = = - 4,733
—Hfth - Others 12,915,062 56.98% 10,631 47,460 5,528 71,09
[N Individuals
-BEREFEREHE ~ Loans for the purchase of flats
AAREBELRER in Home Ownership Scheme,
SERBEEER Private Sector Participation
STEIBFZER Scheme and Tenants
Purchase Scheme 293,571 99.79% 751 9,536 - 210
~BEHMEENEZER - Loans for purchase of other
residential properties 13,105,671 99.93% 6,995 84,233 - 6,049
—Hfth - Others 8,782,704 71.29% 1,864 28,094 186 5,058
EERERCERGE Total loans for use in Hong Kong 90,917,862 47.37% 161,386 331,688 74,226 352,417
BHRE Trade finance 7,596,230 23.78% 75,083 81,499 58,242 42,275
EFBUMER 2 EHR Loans for use outside Hong Kong 89,266,870 37.67% 503,746 795,102 341,679 457,685
RFEREE Gross advances to customers 187,780,962 41.81% 740,215 1,208,289 474,147 852,377
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
Credit risk (Cont'd)

Gross advances and other accounts (Cont’d)
Concentration of advances to customers (Cont’d)

Sectoral analysis of gross advances to customers (Cont'd)

The amounts of new impairment allowances charged to the income
statement, and classified or impaired loans written off during the
year are shown below:

2017 2016
WHEBELE MHFE S
iR R EER iz kR EE K
HEERE Classified ERERE Classified
New or impaired New or impaired
impairment loans impairment loans
allowances written off allowances written off
BETT BETT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EEBRERAZER Loans for use in Hong Kong
ITHE/mE Industrial, commercial and financial
—MEER — Property development 13,135 = 3,334 2,497
—MERE — Property investment 13,103 = 2,629 1,351
— @ — Financial concerns 34,017 = = =
eSS — Stockbrokers 2 - - =
—BE% - Manufacturing 1 - . _
“HWERTEX — Wholesale and retail trade 3,719 1,268 8,723 8,891
—BEZE - Manufacturing 4,796 1,508 1,885 409
—BHREHRE — Transport and transport equipment 185 = 1,307 236
—REEE — Recreational activities 81 = = =
— BB ~ Information technology 7,078 = 246 1,386
—H At ~ Others 75,014 2,046 175 833
EA Individuals
-BEEEEHEFE — Loans for the purchase of flats in
TAAKRBE2EER Home Ownership Scheme, Private
FEIREEERER Sector Participation Scheme and
FEIEFZER Tenants Purchase Scheme = = = =
-BEHMEEMEZ ~ Loans for purchase of other
g% residential properties - 2 = =
—Hftb — Others 2,392 3,587 12,829 13,658
EEBERZERAR Total loans for use in Hong Kong 153,523 8,411 31,128 29,261
ZH5EE Trade finance 35,235 8,382 38,946 8,132
TERBAIMER 2 B3 Loans for use outside Hong Kong 835,708 290,165 620,538 464,549
EFERERE Gross advances to customers 1,024,466 306,958 690,612 501,942
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

4.1 Credit risk (Cont'd)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (Cont’d)

(f) Concentration of advances to customers (Cont’d)

(ii) Geographical analysis of gross advances to customers

The following geographical analysis of advances to customers is
based on the locations of the counterparties, after taking into
account the transfer of risk. For an advance to customer guaranteed
by a party situated in a country different from the customer, the risk

will be transferred to the country of the guarantor.

EFENRAE Gross advances to customers

2017 2016
BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
B Hong Kong 119,688,483 99,595,734
el Mainland of China 101,473,976 78,467,343
EAb Others 14,044,877 9,717,885
235,207,336 187,780,962

REFERAEFEASTMEHZ Collectively assessed impairment allowances in

WIEE respect of the gross advances to customers

BB Hong Kong 459,189 399,995
R A Mainland of China 704,174 414,707
H Al Others 53,662 37,675
1,217,025 852,377
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

4.1 Credit risk (Cont'd)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (Cont’d)

(f) EEEHERE (&) (f) Concentration of advances to customers (Cont’d)
(i) BB RHS B BEFEREE (&) (i) Geographical analysis of gross advances to customers
(Cont'd)
BB Overdue advances
2017 2016
BET T BT T
HK$'000 HK$’000
BB Hong Kong 507,437 303,149
FR B A Mainland of China 1,013,598 895,663
H Al Others 6,902 9,477
1,527,937 1,208,289
T & RIEE B G Z R EEE Individually assessed impairment allowances in
respect of the overdue advances
B Hong Kong 154,289 36,869
Hh [ A 3, Mainland of China 652,800 412,222
Hfh Others 245 301
807,334 449,392
RANETEAGTHZREES Collectively assessed impairment allowances in
respect of the overdue advances
BB Hong Kong 1,826 3,105
el i Mainland of China 7,022 12,749
H A, Others 148 134
8,996 15,988
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

4.1 Credit risk (Cont'd)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (Cont’d)

(f) EEEHERE (&) (f) Concentration of advances to customers (Cont’d)
(i) BB RHS B BEFEREE (&) (i) Geographical analysis of gross advances to customers
(Cont'd)
BEDEIREER Classified or impaired advances
2017 2016
BET T BT T
HK$'000 HK$’000
BB Hong Kong 296,008 121,649
FR B A Mainland of China 832,797 617,750
H Al Others 741 816
1,129,546 740,215
4% T 2 ¥8 R B & FAF 8 Bl 7R Ak Individually assessed impairment allowances in
ZHEERE respect of the classified or impaired advances
B Hong Kong 165,468 37,167
Hh [ (A 3, Mainland of China 654,077 436,679
H A Others 244 301
819,789 474,147
R EDERREEREALAETME Collectively assessed impairment allowances in
ZREEE respect of the classified or impaired advances
BB Hong Kong 774 705
AR B A 4t Mainland of China 593 731
1,367 1,436
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.1 Credit risk (Cont'd)
Q) Repossessed assets

During the year, the Group obtained assets by taking possession of
collateral held as security. The nature and carrying value of these
assets held as at 31 December are summarised as follows:

2017 2016

BT T BT T

HKS$°000 HK$'000

EEXES Commercial properties - 592
FEWE Residential properties 42,675 1,031
42,675 1,623

AEER2017F12A31BF AN REEEZHE
575 #164,266,0007T (20164F : 75 #109,837,000
T0) o B BIEAS B AR YA NG R B SE G E R
Y% (BAEREREFREEERIHEREERR
A5 T ¥ e A B E R HEIT 2 5 R

BREMEBEENZSERENZITER  ARERIZBR
AT 575 A2

—  AmMEES
- BREREE—GHEEXR

- ZHEHEE

The estimated market value of repossessed assets held by the Group
as at 31 December 2017 amounted to HK$164,266,000 (2016:
HK$109,837,000). The repossessed assets comprise properties in
respect of which the Group has acquired access or control (e.g.
through court proceedings or voluntary actions by the proprietors
concerned) for release in full or in part of the obligations of the
borrowers.

When the repossessed assets are not readily convertible into cash,
the Group may consider the following alternatives:

- adjusting the selling prices

selling the loans together with the assets

arranging loan restructuring
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4. SREARERE () 4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
41 EERR (&) 4.1 Credit risk (Cont'd)
(D) 7ERITREME HEIEAIZERR 775 (D)  Balances and placements with banks and other

financial institutions

T 2R RBTEIRIT K H M & B AR A 3F 8 HA SO (B 2 4 The following tables present an analysis of balances and placements
R R AFARIN2 A3 B IR REE 2 A B o with banks and other financial institutions that are neither overdue
nor impaired as at 31 December by rating agency designation.

2017

A3LLT
AaaZA3 Lower AR et
Aaa to A3 than A3 Unrated Total
BET T BET T BET T BET T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AR ERTT Central banks 25,177,434 = = 25,177,434
RITRE M S FhE Banks and other financial institutions 17,458,436 8,349,975 22,261,126 48,069,537
42,635,870 8,349,975 22,261,126 73,246,971

2016

A3 T
AaaZA3 Lower TR BEt
Aaa to A3 than A3 Unrated Total
BT T BETT BET T BET T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AR ERTT Central banks 18,761,393 = - 18,761,393
RITRE M S BHE Banks and other financial institutions 23,417,390 11,734,600 12,532,312 47,684,302

42,178,783 11,734,600 12,532,312 66,445,695

M2017612 4318 R BB HS0RME 2 IR1T R HM & As at 31 December 2017, there were no overdue or impaired
RIS 45 08 R 7R (20165 &) © balances and placements with banks and other financial institutions
(2016: Nil).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

Credit risk (Cont'd)

The following tables present an analysis of the carrying values of
debt securities and certificates of deposit by issue rating. In the
absence of such issue ratings, the ratings designated for the issuers
are reported.

2017
AL

Aa1ZAa3 AMZA3 Lower &R @t

Aaa  Aalto Aa3 A1to A3 than A3 Unrated Total

BETR BETT BETT BETT BETT BETR

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

A E RS Available-for-sale securities 22,088,001 9,404,952 45,057,460 8,385,055 19,090,003 104,025,471

BEZIBMAES Held-to-maturity securities = = 3,457,187 = = 3,457,187

EF LR Loans and receivables = = = = 3,753,086 3,753,086
ARERGABEZ Financial assets at fair value

SHEE through profit or loss 3,530,667 311,582 - = 300,034 4,142,283

25,618,668 9,716,534 48,514,647 8,385,055 23,143,123 115,378,027

2016
AT

Aa1ZEAa3 AMZEA3 Lower EIR Ly

Aaa Aal to Aa3 Alto A3 than A3 Unrated Total

BETT BETT BET T BETT BETT BETT

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

At £ 3 Available-for-sale securities 13616860 23809336 15150997 7729268 9,791,483 70,097,944

REZIHARES Held-to-maturity securities 207,630 1,856,312 - - - 2,063,942

ER kBN Loans and receivables - 842,909 397,410 - 3,519,496 4,759,815
ARERIGABRZ Financial assets at fair value

PREE through profit or loss 3,233,647 205,116 241,638 = = 3,680,401

17,058,137 26,713,673 15,790,045 7,729.268 13,310,979 80,602,102
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4. SREREE (&) 4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
41 FERE (&) 4.1 Credit risk (Cont'd)

(E) EEER R (&) (E)  Debt securities and certificates of deposit (Cont'd)
TR BIEEHSORE 2 B E S RFRER12H31 The following tables present an analysis of debt securities and
BIRBFETA RN - EEBITIRNOBELRLT - AlE certificates of deposit neither overdue nor impaired as at 31
BT AR R AR - December by issue rating. In the absence of such issue ratings, the

ratings designated for the issuers are reported.

2017
AL
Aa1ZAa3 A1ZEA3 Lower T Azt
Aaa  Aaflto Aa3 A1to A3 than A3 Unrated Total

BRI BETR BETT BT BRI BRI
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

A E RS Available-for-sale securities 22,088,001 9,404,952 45,057,460 8,385,055 19,090,003 104,025,471

REZIHAAES Held-to-maturity securities - - 3,457,187 - - 3,457,187

EF LR Loans and receivables = = = = = =
ARERGABZZ Financial assets at fair value

SHEE through profit or loss 3,530,667 311,582 - = 300,034 4,142,283

25,618,668 9,716,534 48,514,647 8,385,055 19,390,037 111,624,941

2016
AT

Aa1ZEAa3 AMZEA3 Lower ETR a5t

Aaa Aal to Aa3 Alto A3 than A3 Unrated Total

BETT BETT BET T BETT BETT BETT

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000

&S Available-for-sale securities 13,616,860 23,809,336 15,150,997 7,729,268 9,791,483 70,097,944

BERIBAES Held-to-maturity securities 207,630 1,856,312 = = = 2,063,942

ER kBN Loans and receivables - 842,909 397,410 - - 1,240,319
ARERGABRZ Financial assets at fair value

PREE through profit or loss 3,233,647 205,116 241,638 = = 3,680,401

17,058,137 26,713,673 15,790,045 1,729,268 9,791,483 77,082,606
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.1 Credit risk (Cont'd)
(E) Debt securities and certificates of deposit (Cont’d)

The following tables present an analysis of impaired debt securities
by issue rating. In the absence of such issue ratings, the ratings
designated for the issuers are reported.

2017
REE
Carrying values
He: gt
HEERE
Of which
AL T accumulated
Aa1ZAa3 AZA3 Lower T #5t  impairment
Aaa  Aa1to Aa3 Alto A3 than A3 Unrated Total allowances
BETT BT BT BETT BETT BT BETT
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ERRENRHR Loans and receivables - - - - 3,753,086 3,753,086 23,416
H: ZRTREER Of which accumulated
impairment allowances - - - - 23,416 23,416
2016
REE
Carrying values
Hep: 25t
HEERE
Of which
AT accumulated
Aa1ZAa3 A1EA3 Lower iR @5t impairment
Aaa  Aal to Aa3 Al to A3 than A3 Unrated Total  allowances
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EFRERF Loans and receivables - - - - 351949 3,519,496 15,424
H: ZRTREER Of which accumulated
impairment allowances - - - - 15,424 15,424

M2017F12A8318 RARBEZHFEREREEBEZ

(20164 : 4&) -

As at 31 December 2017, there were no impaired certificates of
deposit and no overdue debt securities and certificates of deposit
(2016: Nil).
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.2 Market risk

Market risk refers to the risk of loss arising from movements in the
value of foreign exchange, interest rate, equity and commodity
positions held by the Group due to the volatility of financial market
price (foreign exchange rate, interest rate, equity price, commodity
price). The Group adopts a moderate market risk appetite to achieve
a balance between risk and return.

The Group's objective in managing market risk is to secure healthy
growth of the treasury business, by effective management of
potential market risk in the Group’s business, according to the
Group’s overall risk appetite and strategy of treasury business on
the basis of a well-established risk management regime and related
management measures.

In accordance with the Group's corporate governance principles
in respect of risk management, the Board and Risk Management
Committee, Senior Management and functional units perform
their duties and responsibilities to manage the Group’s market
risk. The risk management units are responsible for assisting Senior
Management to perform their day-to-day duties, independently
monitoring the market risk profile and compliance of management
policies and limits of the Group, to ensure that the aggregate and
individual market risks are within acceptable levels. Independent
units are assigned to monitor the risk exposure against risk limits
on a daily basis, together with profit and loss reports submitted to
Senior Management on a regular basis, while limit excess will be
reported to Senior Management at once when it occurs. NCB (China)
sets up independent risk monitoring teams to monitor daily market
risk and limit compliance, and submit management information and
reports to the Bank on a regular basis.

The Group sets up market risk indicators and limits to identify,
measure, monitor and control market risk. Major risk indicators and
limits include but not limited to VAR (Value-at-Risk), Stop Loss, Open
Position, Stress Testing and Sensitivity Analysis (Basis Point Value). To
meet management requirements, major risk indicators and limits are
classified into four levels, and are approved by the Risk Management
Committee, Asset and Liability Management Committee or Senior
Management respectively. Treasury business units are required to
conduct their business within approved market risk indicators and
limits.
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4. SRERERE @ 4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
42 TWHER (&) 4.2 Market risk (Cont'd)

A) EE (A) VAR

REERBREBREZE —KRMERER - WEHRER The Group uses the VAR to measure and report general market
ERZEENREERASRE -AEERALR—H risks to the Risk Management Committee and Senior Management
R EFERE  EARLERE  UBER2FFELM on a periodic basis. The Group adopts a uniformed VAR calculation
GEBRAZR FTEI%ERFKT FRIXFEHA model, using a historical simulation approach and two years of
NEEEE RARITHOER(E - IR EAREEAMAR historical market data, to calculate the VAR of the Group and the
TRREREREE - Bank over one-day holding period with a 99% confidence level, and

sets up the VAR limit of the Group and the Bank.

TRALAEE KT SEARFENRARE - The following table sets out the VAR for all general market risk
exposure' of the Group.

M12A31E 25KREHE 2FE8E 2FFHUE

Fn At Minimum for  Maximum for ~ Average for
Year 31 December the year the year the year
BETT BET T BET T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
2HMBERZERKRE VAR for all market risk 2017 1,501 658 2,509 1,454
2016 2,008 466 2,670 1,615
fE =R 2 Rk E VAR for foreign exchange risk 2017 605 382 2,517 1,252
2016 1,998 354 2,675 1,535
FERER 2 RRE VAR for interest rate risk 2017 816 92 1,302 464
2016 215 145 723 348
73 in 2L 2 B B (B2 VAR for commodity risk 2 2017 373 - 378 154
2016 - - 128 44
G Note:
l B FEHINGE A R 1wk O /)RR (E - g Structural FX positions have been excluded.
2 P 3 7% Kt O 38 72016411 A 2 Position in commodity since Nov-2016.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.2 Market risk (Cont'd)
(A) VAR (Cont’d)

Although VAR is a valuable guide to risk, it should always be viewed
in the context of its limitations. For example:

- the use of historical market data as a proxy for estimating
future events may not encompass all potential events,
particularly those which are extreme in nature;

- the use of a one-day holding period assumes that all
positions can be liquidated or hedged in one day. This may
not fully reflect the market risk arising at times of severe
illiquidity, when a one-day holding period may be insufficient
to liquidate or hedge all positions fully;

- the use of a 99% confidence level, by definition, does not
take into account losses that might occur beyond this level of
confidence; and

- VAR is calculated on the basis of exposures outstanding
at the close of business and therefore does not necessarily
reflect intra-day exposures.

The Group recognises these limitations by formulating stress test
indicators and limits to assess and manage the market risk not
covered by VAR. The market risk stress testing includes sensitivity
testing on changes in risk factors with various degrees of severity,
as well as scenario analysis on historical events including the 1997
Asian Financial Crisis and 2008 Financial Tsunami, etc.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.2 Market risk (Cont'd)
(B) Currency risk

The Group's assets and liabilities are denominated in major
currencies, particularly the HK dollar, the US dollar and Renminbi.
To ensure the currency risk exposure of the Group is managed at an
acceptable level, risk limits (e.g. Position and VAR limit) are used to
serve as a monitoring tool. Moreover, the Group seeks to minimise
the gap between assets and liabilities in the same currency. Foreign
exchange contracts (e.g. FX swaps) are usually used to manage
FX risk associated with foreign currency-denominated assets and
liabilities.

The following is a summary of the Group’s major foreign currency
exposures arising from trading, non-trading and structural positions
and is prepared with reference to the completion instructions for the
HKMA return of foreign currency position.

2017
BETTEE
Equivalent in thousand of HK$
H fl Sh i ShiE AR
Other Total
EY AR foreign foreign
US Dollars Renminbi currencies currencies

REEE Spot assets 87,459,891 154,080,434 11,661,967 253,202,292
REAE Spot liabilities (89,716,626) (146,133,803) (12,057,840) (247,908,269)
RHEIB A Forward purchases 14,502,233 4,537,116 3,693,458 22,732,807
RAIEH Forward sales (12,446,022) (11,196,755) (3,269,094) (26,911,871)
(8),/ REBFHE Net (short)/long position (200,524) 1,286,992 28,491 1,114,959
HEBERBRIERE Net structural position 9,437,640 9,577,159 - 19,014,799
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4. EHmEAKER (&) 4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
42 TWHER (&) 4.2 Market risk (Cont'd)
(B) SMNEREFR (&) (B)  Currency risk (Cont’d)
2016
BT TS E
Equivalent in thousand of HK$
H b oM HNHE 4B 28
Other Total
ETT AR foreign foreign
US Dollars Renminbi currencies currencies
REEE Spot assets 89,820,749 116,285,504 8,951,419 215,057,672
RE&E Spot liabilities (73,408,148) (114,083,563)  (6,962,887) (194,454,598)
=B A Forward purchases 24,235,532 18,169,822 2,851,778 45,257,132
RHIE N Forward sales (38,954,759) (20,994,854)  (4,819,645) (64,769,258)
£/(B)® %% Net long/(short) position 1,693,374 (623,091) 20,665 1,090,948
HEEERRFE Net structural position 121,810 8,554,006 - 8,675,816
©) T [ oz (C) Interest rate risk
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Interest rate risk means the risks to a bank’s earnings and economic
value arising from movements in interest rate and term structures of
the bank’s asset and liability positions. The Group's interest rate risk
exposures are mainly structural. The major types of interest rate risk
from structural positions are:

Repricing risk: mismatches in the maturity or repricing
periods of assets and liabilities that may affect net interest
income;

Basis risk: different pricing basis for different transactions
resulting that the yield on assets and cost of liabilities may
change by different amounts within the same repricing
period;

Yield curve risk: non-parallel shifts in the yield curve that may
have an adverse impact on net interest income or economic
value; and

Option risk: exercise of the options embedded in assets,
liabilities or off-balance sheet items that can cause a change
in the cash flows of assets and liabilities.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.2 Market risk (Cont'd)
Q) Interest rate risk (Cont’d)

The Group's risk management framework applies also to interest rate
risk management. The Asset and Liability Management Committee
exercises its oversight of interest rate risk in accordance with the
“Banking Book Interest Rate Risk Management Policy” approved
by Risk Management Committee. Financial Management Division is
responsible for interest rate risk management. With the cooperation
of the Treasury Division, Financial Management Division assists the
Asset and Liability Management Committee to perform day-to-
day interest rate risk management. Its roles include, but are not
limited to, the formulation of management policies, selection of
methodologies, setting of risk indicators and limits, assessment of
target balance sheet, monitoring of the compliance with policies and
limits, and submission of interest rate risk management reports to
the Management and Risk Management Committee.

The Group sets out interest rate risk indicators and limits to identify,
measure, monitor and control interest rate risk. The indicators and
limits include, but are not limited to, repricing gap limits, basis risk,
duration, price value of a basis point (“PVBP"), net interest income
sensitivity ratio (“NIl"), economic value sensitivity ratio (“EV"),
monitored on a regular basis. The indicators and limits are classified
into three levels, which are approved by the Risk Management
Committee, Asset and Liability Management Committee and Deputy
Chief Executive of Middle-office respectively. Risk-taking business
units are required to conduct their business within the boundary
of the interest rate risk limits. Before launching a new product
or business in the banking book, the relevant departments are
required to go through a risk assessment process, which includes the
assessment of underlying interest rate risk and consideration of the
adequacy of current risk monitoring mechanism. Any material impact
on interest rate risk noted during the risk assessment process will be
submitted to Risk Management Committee for approval.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.2 Market risk (Cont'd)
Q) Interest rate risk (Cont’d)

NIl and EV assess the impact of interest rate movement on the
Group's net interest income and capital base. They are the Group's
key interest rate risk indicators. The former assesses the impact of
interest rate movement on net interest income as a percentage to
the projected net interest income for the year. The latter assesses
the impact of interest rate movement on economic value (i.e. the
net present value of cash flows of assets, liabilities and off-balance
sheet items discounted using market interest rate) as a percentage
to the latest capital base. Limits are set by the Risk Management
Committee on these two indicators to monitor and control the
Group's banking book interest rate risk.

The Group uses scenario analyses and stress tests to assess the
banking book interest rate risk that the Group would face under
adverse circumstances. Scenario analyses and stress tests are also
used to assess the impact on net interest income arising from the
optionality of savings deposits and the prepayment of mortgage
loans.

The Group is principally exposed to HK Dollar, US Dollar and
Renminbi in terms of interest rate risk. As at 31 December 2017,
if HK Dollar, US Dollar and Renminbi market interest rates had a
100 basis point parallel upward shift of the yield curve in relevant
currency with other variables held constant, the sensitivities on net
interest income over a twelve-month period and on reserves for the
Group would have been as follows:
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.2 Market risk (Cont'd)
Q) Interest rate risk (Cont’d)

M12H318 # AR R12ME A
FEAEWANSE
Impact on net interest
income over the next R12B31BEFEENTE
twelve months Impact on reserves

at 31 December at 31 December

2017 2016 2017 2016

BET T AT BETT BT T

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

BT HK Dollar 347,955 344,852 (203,225)  (145,477)
e US Dollar (4,340) (65,468)  (294,617)  (239,489)
ARE Renminbi (62,200)  (109,140)  (463,945)  (283,703)

PR EEEFERN SR AN B IFE R E8R20165F 18
MEBHRETRAREEROERENEHRE
RAMERE - R JHEEFESFERKERMER
17 LB 1001EE &, - FRET IR S ER A < & B
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REBEAMG A HHEERHREE M-

bPligREFEERGARE BT EE (BTRR)
TERE - RS R QR ERE S R R T AT
B8 RE RARAE A R E R A SE IR AN A R AR
T8 e ERE MEREEEIHEAR
I ERBFTEREANEFRABEZRFRA Y
B2 EmE ERR - Bl EBRIKTE R AR EEERE
=R — 8D -

The overall positive impact on net interest income of the above
currencies has increased when compared with 2016 and is mainly
because of the narrowed short term negative repricing gaps in US
Dollar and Renminbi. Reserves would have been reduced because
of the expected reduction in valuation of available-for-sale securities
due to a parallel shift up of 100 basis points in the yield curve. The
reduction of reserves is increased compared with 2016 because the
sizes of HK Dollar and Renminbi available-for-sale securities in capital
market are increased.

The sensitivities above are for illustration only and are based on
several assumptions, including but not limited to the change in the
correlation between interest rates of relevant currencies, parallel
movement of interest rates, the absence of actions that would be
taken to mitigate the impact of interest rate risk, the effectiveness
of hedge accounting, all positions being assumed to run to maturity,
behavioural assumptions of products in which actual repricing
date differs from contractual repricing date or products without
contractual maturity. The above exposures form only a part of the
Group's overall interest rate risk exposures.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

Market risk (Cont'd)

Interest rate risk (Cont’d)

The tables below summarise the Group’s on-balance sheet exposure
to interest rate risk as at 31 December. Included in the tables are the

assets and liabilities at carrying amounts, categorised by the earlier of
contractual repricing date and maturity date.

2017
B
-BAR —-Z=fA =Et+=f@A —-Z25F RENE Non-
Upto1 1to03 3to 12 1to5 Over 5 interest- @t
month months months years years bearing Total
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETR BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BE Assets
EBFRERERETR Cash and balances with banks
Hity e s &t and other financial institutions 66,413,742 - - - - 1322019 67,735,761
TERITREMEREE—Z  Placements with banks and other
TZEAREIHAZESEER  financial institutions maturing
between one and twelve months - 5,621,865 492,558 - - - 6,114,423
ARERE N BEZ Financial assets at fair value through
SREE profit or loss 565,482 652,170 2,888,736 35,895 - - 4,142,283
fTESBMIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 400,843 400,843
ERREMRE Advances and other accounts 142,272,107 52,264,644 34,966,908 4,878,812 314,320 - 234,696,791
SRBE Financial investments
-ftHE - Available-for-sale 23,016,250 19,360,064 31,118,265 29,812,306 718,586 15,156 104,040,627
-BBEIHA - Held-to-maturity - - 365,318 3,091,869 - - 3,457,187
- ER RIS - Loans and receivables - - 620,824 3,132,262 - - 3,753,086
REME Investment properties - - - - - 302,702 302,702
I ERE G Properties, plant and equipment - - - - = 7,386,981 7,386,981
HitnEE Other assets
(BEEEHBEE) (including deferred tax assets) = = = = = 3,031,454 3,031,454
BEAE Total assets 232,267,581 77,898,743 70,452,609 40,951,144 1,032,906 12,459,155 435,062,138
8& Liabilities
RIRAMSREEL Deposits and balances from banks and
TRk &R other financial institutions 22,242,224 2,961,712 2,122,584 - - 408,987 27,735,507
RREEGABRL Financial liabilities at fair value through
RAfE profit or loss 2,092,997 2,225,148 27,398 - - - 434558
fTEERIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 397,796 397,79
BPEH Deposits from customers 188,163,251 54,607,277 61,810,259 8,643,710 71,964 12,119,178 325,415,639
BERTEBEARESE Debt securities and certificates of
deposit in issue - 2,960,347 116,337 3,704,524 - - 6,781,208
HiBRIA R & (BEENHIE Other accounts and provisions (including
REEREEE) current and deferred tax liabilities) 3,003,407 1,002,744 7,374,876 630,846 29,972 6,255,520 18,297,365
SELE Total liabilities 215,501,879 63,757,228 71,451,454 12,979,080 101,936 19,181,481 382,973,058
MEBRRE RO Interest sensitivity gap 16,765,702 14,141,515 (998,845) 27,972,064 930,970  (6,722,326) 52,089,080
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42 TWHER (&) 4.2 Market risk (Cont'd)
©Q  FIEEE (& (C) Interest rate risk (Cont’d)
2016
iR
—fHAAR —Z=fR =E+=fiA —Zhf AENE Non-
Up to 1t03 3t0 12 1t05 Over interest- st
1 month months months years 5 years bearing Total
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BE Assets
EFRE RFEREITR Cash and balances with banks and
Hit S REENER other finandil institutions 50,470,449 = - - - 1,857,134 52,327,583
ERIRAMEREE—Z Placements with banks and other financial
+=EAREISBZEHER  institutions maturing between one and
twelve months - 4,552,714 10,126,985 - - - 14,679,699
ARER{CEABR L Financial assets at fair value through
SREE profit or loss 210,443 2,217,212 1,252,746 - - - 3,680,401
TESRIA Derivative financial instruments = = = = = 896,476 896,476
ERREMIRE Advances and other accounts 126,655,688 26,491,174 34,357,922 4,455,523 157,070 2,215 192,119,592
CREE Financial investments
-AfEE - Available-for-sale 11,387,979 15,290,801 20,667,974 22,009,605 741,585 13,381 70,111,325
-BEZIHA - Held-to-maturity - 475,559 46416 1,161,967 - - 2083942
- ERRIENH ~ Loans and receivables 115,373 - 1,461,965 3,182,477 - - 4759815
REMF Investment properties - - - - - 383,830 383,830
VESE ISR Properties, plant and equipment - - - - = 6,929,407 6,929,407
HMBE (BEETHALE)  Other assets (including deferred tax assets) = = = - = 980,639 980,639
BELE Total assets 188,839,932 49,027,460 68,294,008 30,809,572 898,655 11,063,082 348,932,709
8 Liabilities
RITREMERME 2 Deposits and balances from banks and
FRR &R other finandial institutions 12,774,352 5311595 11,947,531 - - 416,732 30,450,210
ArE#{ABEZ Financialliabilities at fair value through
SRAR profit or loss 1,880,498 816,180 526,778 - - - 3223456
fTEemIA Derivative financial instruments = = = = = 934,244 934,244
BEEHR Deposits from customers 143,254,320 48,321,171 46,879,361 1,631,983 - 17,440,695 257,527,530
BRTEBEF RIFHE Debt securities and certificates of
deposit in issue - - 541,378 554,559 - - 1,095,937
HiFRBREE (REEMHIE  Other accounts and provisions (including
REEHEAR) current and deferred tax liabilities) 8,046,649 804,515 1,839,269 22,513 5,615 6,297,803 17,016,364
BELE Total liabilities 165,955,819 55,253,461 61,734,317 2,209,055 5,615 25,089,474 310,247,741
FE GO Interest sensitvty gap 22,884,113 (6226001) 6,559,691 28,600,517 893,040  (14026392) 38,684,968

147



#1798 B % 4845 « NANYANG COMMERCIAL BANK 2017 ANNUAL REPORT 4 &

B 55 HR R Bl 5E
Notes to the Financial Statements

4, TEREAERERE(®)
43 FBHELEBR

nBETRAREERTEREEEHTHME S AEY
BERMIETRRRS MAERAZNTRER
MBX - AEEERERENTBDESERRLT - IR
EERBAKBABR THEEIRERE A 5EM
RANBASER mERBDESHTR ERHERT
EFEPEERNRDES RENFRERRIE
B IAREERNEFRANRBDESTE -

AEEEERPESARNER ERBRABESEA
2iRLF UAEENRAEREREERBRARRKI
EBHNREN  BRBREENFERF - REEIA
EFERAETENE IR  BRBANREZ LT
Ho WHARIEM IS IFARIER  BERRBEMTENE
SRR -ARBERETRAHREENER THRBDE
EFER ZHEEAANGERE (BRER BFRE
EFBAES) REZRORBDEE UEEHR
HHRBDESXHEFTEBTE  MEERBERATE
BENNAEBENKARKERINES REHINT -
AEBHNEBERBERENESTERNZ A i
REEAEENESR BIERESFRRIERBRE
REXESE EHOREER  SRREESHE
BER BEABESRAR AKEGET T REARN
mBECRARERES EREEANRTKE ZHNR
PE2 MRAEREES LRERE - AEE IV
EEBRINERS - IAEFEGAMOTE T B A gEE £ 8
MEBEERAR AEEHRHE S AR EERERE
THKEBEEABRDER Hfm AERBE &
BEARBENREGRRSIBNRBESRARSE I
HERBE SRR GIF] T ESEE -

148

www.nch.com.hk

4, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont'd)
4.3 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that banks fail to provide sufficient funds
to grow assets or pay due obligations, and need to bear an
unacceptable loss. The Group maintains sound liquidity risk appetite
to provide stable, reliable and adequate sources of cash to meet
liquidity needs under normal circumstances or stressed scenarios;
and to survive with net positive cumulative cash flow in extreme
scenarios, without requesting the HKMA to act as the lender of last
resort.

The Group’s liquidity risk management objective is to effectively
manage the liquidity of on- and off-balance sheet items with
reasonable cost based on the liquidity risk appetite to achieve sound
operation and sustainable profitability. Deposits from customers
are the Group’s primary source of funds. To ensure stable and
sufficient source of funds are in place, the Group actively attracts
new deposits, keeps the core deposit and obtains supplementary
funding from the interbank market. According to different term
maturities and the results of funding needs estimated from stressed
scenarios, the Group adjusts its asset structure (including loans,
bonds investment, interbank placement, etc.) to maintain sufficient
liquid assets which provides adequate funds in support of normal
business needs and ensure its ability to raise funds at a reasonable
cost to serve external claims in case of emergency. The Group is
committed to diversify the source of funds and the use of funds to
avoid excessive concentration of assets and liabilities and prevent
triggering liquidity risk due to the break of funding strand when
problem occurred in one concentrated funding source. The Group
has established intra-group liquidity risk management guideline to
manage the liquidity funding among different entities within the
Group, and to restrict their reliance of funding on each other. The
Group also pays attention to manage liquidity risk created by off-
balance sheet activities, such as loan commitments and derivatives.
The Group has an overall liquidity risk management strategy to cover
the liquidity management of foreign currency assets and liabilities,
collateral, intra-day liquidity, intra-group liquidity, the liquidity risk
arising from other risks, etc., and has formulated corresponding
contingency plan.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.3 Liquidity risk (Cont'd)

Risk Management Committee (RMC) is the decision-making authority
of liquidity risk management, and assumes the ultimate responsibility
of liquidity risk management. As authorised by RMC, the Asset and
Liability Management Committee (ALCO) exercises its oversight of
liquidity risk and ensures the daily operations of the Group are in
accordance with risk appetite and policies as set by RMC. Financial
Management Division is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
liquidity risk. It cooperates with Treasury Division to assist the ALCO
to perform liquidity management functions according to their
specific responsibilities.

The Group established liquidity risk management indicators and
limits to identify, measure, monitor and control liquidity risk on
daily basis. These indicators and limits include, but are not limited
to liquidity coverage ratio (“LCR"), loan-to-deposit ratio, Maximum
Cumulative Cash Outflow (“MCO") and liquidity buffer asset
portfolio. The Group applies cash flow analysis to assess the Group's
liquidity condition under normal conditions and also performs a
liquidity stress test (including institution specific, general market crisis
and combined crisis) at least on monthly basis to assess the Group's
capability to withstand various severe liquidity crises. Also, the Assets
and Liabilities Management System is developed to provide data and
the preparation for regular management reports to facilitate liquidity
risk management duties.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.3 Liquidity risk (Cont'd)

In accordance with the requirements of Supervisory Policy Manual
LM-2 “Sound Systems and controls for Liquidity Risk Management”
issued by the HKMA in 2016, the Group has implemented
behaviour model and assumptions of cash flow analysis and
stress test to enhance the Group’s cash flow analysis under both
normal and stressed conditions. In cash flow analysis under normal
circumstances, assumptions have been made relating to on-balance
sheet items (such as deposits from customers) and off-balance
sheet items (such as loan commitments). According to various
characteristics of the assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet items,
the Group forecasts the future cash flow based on contractual
maturity date and the assumptions of customer behaviour and
balance sheet changes. The Group establishes MCO indicator which
predicts the future 30 day maximum cumulative net cash outflow
in normal situations based on the above assumptions, to assess if
the Group has sufficient financing capacity to meet the cash flow
gap in order to achieve the objective of continuing operation. As at
31 December 2017, before taking the cash inflow through the sale
of outstanding marketable securities into consideration, the Bank's
30 day cumulative cash flow was a net cash inflow amounting to
HK$509,487,000 (2016: HK$457,877,000) and was in compliance
with the internal limit requirements.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.3 Liquidity risk (Cont'd)

In the liquidity stress test, institution specific, general market
crisis and combined crisis scenario has been set up, combined
crisis scenario is a combination of institution specific and general
market crisis to assess the Group’s capability to withstand a more
severe liquidity crisis, with a more stringent set of assumptions
being adopted. Stress test assumptions include the run-off rate of
retail, wholesale and interbank deposits; drawdown rate of loan
commitments and trade-related contingent liabilities; delinquency
ratio and rollover rate of customer loans; and haircut of interbank
placement and marketable securities. As at 31 December 2017, the
Group was able to maintain a positive cash flow under the three
stressed scenarios, indicating the Group has the ability to meet
financing needs under stressed conditions. In addition, the Group
has a policy in place to maintain a liquidity cushion which includes
high quality or comparable quality marketable securities issued
or guaranteed by sovereigns, central banks, public sector entities
or multilateral development banks with 0% or 20% risk weight
or marketable securities issued or guaranteed by non-financial
corporate with a corresponding external credit rating of A- or above
to ensure funding needs even under stressed scenarios. As at 31
December 2017, the Bank's liquidity cushion (before haircut) was
HK$36,001,595,000 (2016: HK$28,653,565,000). A contingency
plan is being established which details the conditions to trigger the
plan based on stress test results and early warning indicators, the
action plans and relevant procedures and responsibility of various
departments.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.3 Liquidity risk (Cont'd)

The LCR is calculated in accordance with the Banking (Liquidity)
Rules effective from 1 January 2015, the Group, being classified
as category 1 authorised institution by the HKMA, is required to
calculate LCR on consolidated basis. During the year of 2017, the
Group is required to maintain a LCR not less than 80%.

In certain derivative contracts, the counterparties have right to
request from the Group additional collateral if they have concerns
about the Group'’s creditworthiness.

The Group’s liquidity risk management also covers new products
or business developments. Before launching a new product or
business, the relevant departments are required to go through a risk
assessment process, which includes the assessment of underlying
liquidity risk and consideration of the adequacy of the current risk
management mechanism. Any material impact on liquidity risk
noted during the risk assessment process will be reported to Risk
Management Committee for approval.

The Group has established a set of uniform liquidity risk
management policies. On the basis of the Group’s uniform
policy, the principal banking subsidiary develops its own liquidity
management policies according to its own characteristics, and
assumes its own liquidity risk management responsibility, executes its
daily risk management processes independently, and reports to the
Group’s Management on a regular basis.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.3 Liquidity risk (Cont'd)

(A) Liquidity coverage ratio

017 ZEHEEE
2017 quarter ended
12A31H 9H30H 6H30H 3HA31H
31 December 30 September 30 June 31 March
MEVEBEELLERMFHE  Average value of liquidity
coverage ratio 159.33% 168.97% 171.71% 138.03%
2016FZREHEER
2016 quarter ended
12A31H 9H30H 6 H30H 3H31H
31 December 30 September 30 June 31 March
MEMEBELL ERTFIIE  Average value of liquidity
coverage ratio 141.78% 165.40% 145.26% 130.84%

MBMBEEL TN FHERENZETENSEIIE
BRERNRDEBELXNEMFARRERR
FURRNZ S ERBRIIBNAE T ERIERAE -

MEEBEL R RINGRA ERFE  WRIE CRITE
(RBIE)RR) ARRITREEREEZMBERA
AR

FRARDUBEL X RENHRER TR ARITH

B www.nch.com.hkd [EEE 195 | — 5128 -

The average value of liquidity coverage ratio is calculated based on
the arithmetic mean of the liquidity coverage ratio as at the end of
each working day in the quarter and the calculation methodology
and instructions set out in the HKMA return of liquidity position.

The liquidity coverage ratio is computed on the consolidated basis
which comprises the positions of the Bank and the subsidiaries
specified by the HKMA in accordance with the Banking (Liquidity)
Rules.

The additional information of liquidity coverage ratio disclosures

is available under section “Regulatory Disclosures” on the Bank's
website at www.ncb.com.hk.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
Liquidity risk (Cont'd)

The tables below analyse the Group's assets and liabilities as at 31
December into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining

EREABR D4R - period at balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date.
2017
-fBAR —-Z=BA =Zt=fiA -Z5f RENUE
B Upto1 1t03 3t0 12 1t0 5 Over5 FRERH @t
On demand month months months years years Indefinite Total
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BET T BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
§E Assets
EGRE RERBTR Cash and balances with banks and
Hh e plEaEL other financial institutions 28,898,808 38,836,953 - - - - - 67,735,761
EFTREMEREE—Z  Placements with banks and other
TZEARZEZEHER  financial institutions maturing
between one and twelve months - - 5,501,781 612,642 - - - 6,114,423
MrERHAERL Finandial assets at fair value through
CHEE profit or loss
R 5k - Held for trading
-fHES - Debt securities - 505,774 502,845 2,830,221 35,895 - - 3964735
~GRE ~ Certificates of deposit - 59,708 59,325 58,515 - - - 171,548
fTEsmIE Derivative financial instruments 320,883 9,175 34,941 35,844 - - - 400,843
B R EMER Advances and other accounts
-RPER ~ Advances to customers 15,435,181 10,490,128 10,551,107 56,215,184 99,351,743 40,689,875 437,304 233,170,522
BUES ~ Trade bills 52 215,679 349,354 528,684 432,500 - - 1,526,269
SREE Finandial investments
—ARE - Available-for-sale
-EHES - Debt securities - 9630379 4960998 18,118,138  33,855225 718,586 - 67,283,326
~FRE - Certificates of deposit - 1,110,485 1,903,627 13,115,663 3,181,852 - - 19,311,627
—Efts - Others - 10,037,544 6,302,142 1,090,832 - - - 17,430,518
—HEZHHE - Held-to-maturity
—fEBES - Debt securities - 1,417 - 37,01 2,921,971 - - 3300459
~RE ~ Certificates of deposit - 1,041 - 600 155,087 - - 156,728
—ERREWH ~ Loans and receivables
-EBES — Debt securities - = = = = = = o
—Hfth - Others - - - 620,824 3,132,262 - - 3,753,086
—&HEF ~ Equity securities - - - - - - 15,156 15,156
REME Investment properties 5 = = 5 - = 302,702 302,702
I ER NG Properties, plant and equipment - - - - - - 7,386,981 7,386,981
HingE Other assets
(RREEHESE) (including deferred tax assets) 322,577 2,240,547 2,399 223,221 102,674 - 140,030 3,031,454
BENE Total assets 44,977,501 73,138,830 30,258,519 93,821,445 143,175,209 41,408,461 8,282,173 435,062,138
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4. SRERERE @ 4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
43 RBESRER (&) 4.3 Liquidity risk (Cont'd)
B) FHE A (& (B)  Maturity analysis (Cont'd)
2017
-fBAR —-Z=fA =E+-fiA ik ENE
B Upto1 1t03 3t0 12 1t05 Over5 FRERS st
On demand month months months years years Indefinite Total
BETR BETL BETT BETR BETL BETT BYTR BRI
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
a8 Liabilities
ROREMEREE L Deposits and balances from banks and
TRk other financial institutions 1,252,775 17,791,352 2,960,550 2,619,318 2,456,925 654,587 - 27,735,507
ARER BT Financial liabilities at fair value through
eRAR profit or loss - 2,092,997 2,225,148 27,398 - - - 4385583
fESRIA Derivative financial instruments 99,166 155,539 74,467 68,624 - - - 397,796
ZPER Deposits from customers 125,552,531 74,369,470 54,918,461 60,348,321 10,154,892 71,964 - 325,415,639
BEAEFESRENE  Debt securities and certificates of
deposit in issue - - 2,960,347 116,337 3,704,524 - - 6,781,208
AthBRERER (R Other accounts and provisions (including
[ERHEREEHREERE)  current and deferred tax liabilities) 4,097,624 3,777,774 1281587 17,524,167 1,580,162 36,037 14 18,297,365
SELE Total liabilities 131,002,096 98,187,132 64,420,560 70,704,165 17,896,503 762,588 14 382,973,058
MEESHA Net liquidity gap (86,024,595)  (25,048,302) (34,162,041) 23,117,280 125,278,706 40,645,873 8,282,159 52,089,080
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(B) FEIHDH (& (B)  Maturity analysis (Cont’d)
2016
—fEAR —Z=@A =Et+=fEA —Z1f AENE
il Upto 1 1103 3to12 1t05 Over5 AEERH by
On demand month months months years years Indefinite Total
BETT BETT BT BT BETT BT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EE Assets
EBERERERETR Cash and balances with banks and
Hih SRERENEER other financial institutions 2715971 29,611,612 - - - - - 52,327,583
ERTREMERERE—Z  Placements with banks and other financial
T-ARREE 2 EHEM  institutions maturing between one and
twelve months - - 4,552,714 10,126,985 - - - 14,679,699
MERABEL Finandial assets at fair value through
CREE profit or loss
—R 5t ~ Held for trading
-ElES - Debt securities - 210443 2217212 1,011,108 - = - 3438763
~REANAABEGIA - Designated at fair value through
Ew profit or loss
-EBES - Debt securities - - - 241,638 - - - 241,638
ST Derivative finanial instruments 336,361 62,105 150,734 347,276 = = = 896,476
ERREMER Advances and other accounts
~ZEEHR - Advances to customers 6,757,582 6,710,603 10,567,311 36,092,176 85,944,627 39,903,860 478279 186,454,438
-B5%K ~Trade bills 1,780 1,427,406 1,967,532 2,268,436 - - - 5,665,154
SRRE Finandial investments
A E — Available-forsale
-EBES - Debt securities - 3884572 10733506 9,178,135 22,886,731 739,120 - 47,422,064
~GHE - Certificates of deposit - 4,504,881 11,055 7,612,342 2,778,873 - - 14,907,151
—Hth - Others - 1,673,061 1,679,707 4,415,961 - - - 7,768,729
e — Held-to-maturity
-EBES - Debt securities - - 348,456 553519 1,161,967 - - 2,063,942
—ERRELH — Loans and receivables
-EBES - Debt securities - - - 1240319 - - - 1240319
—Hth - Others - 115,373 - 21646 3,182,477 - - 3519,4%
—fkipE ~ Equity securities - - - - - - 13,381 13,381
BEME Investment properties - = - - = - 383,830 383,830
ERE NG Properties, plant and equipment - - - - - - 6929407 6,929,407
Eth&E Other assets
(BRELHELE) (including deferred tax assets) 357,748 328,403 157,587 85,150 (41,271) = 93,022 980,639
EELE Total assets 30,169,442 48528459 32,385,814 73394691 115913404 40,642,980 7,897,919 348,932,709
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.3 Liquidity risk (Cont'd)

(B) Maturity analysis (Cont’d)

2016
—fAA —Z=fER =E+=f@R —EhF RENRE
il Upto 1103 3012 1t05 Over5 FHERS @it
On demand month months months years years Indefinite Total
BETT BETT BB BT BETT BET T BT RETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
af Liabilities
RITREMSREEL Deposits and balances from banks and
ERREH other financial institutions 1331420  10457,704 4835461  11,125398 2,700,227 - - 30,450,210
NABRIHABRZ Finandial liabiliies at fair value through
ERAR profit or loss - 1,880,498 816,180 526,778 - - - 3223456
fTESBIA Derivative financial instruments 110,954 25,609 138,511 535,864 123,306 - - 934,244
XFER Deposits from customers 102,970,686 55,417,442 50,119,358 47,365,113 1,654,931 - - 257,527,530
BEIEFEFRERE Debt securities and certificates of
deposit in issue - - - 541,378 554,559 - - 1,095,937
At RN (25 Other accounts and provisions (including
[ERFBEREEHEAR)  curentand deferred tax liabilties) 8633899 1373150 1181545 4878344 948,759 667 - 17,016,364
et Total liabilities 113,046,959 69,154,403 57,091,055 64,972,875 5,981,782 667 - 310,247,141
MEERHA Net liquidity gap (82,877,517)  (20,625,944)  (24,705,241) 8,421,816 109,931,622 40,642,313 7,897,919 38,684,968

ERBEASRTIZR GRITE (WE)RA) 28
BMigXmmEsE - AEESafTB8EAZEE"
PImERRERESFIN RS EE - HRETE
REANHEREZEE REZEETERBAR 2
DIEARAEREA o E R B HY 2 B0 DAL B AR BRI eR HA
Rof EREHZEECEEFERE  AHZE
RN R TEERR] - Lili5R 2 EEEMBRE
AR ER (A)

BRI AHEBESRZOMRRER (R1THE
()RR 2 HRGEXMIRER « FTERETRER
HEEHFRHEERHA

o

The above maturity classifications have been prepared in accordance
with relevant provisions under the Banking (Disclosure) Rules. The
Group has reported assets such as advances and debt securities
which have been overdue for not more than one month as “On
demand”. In the case of an asset that is repayable by different
payments or instalments, only that portion of the asset that is
actually overdue is reported as overdue. Any part of the asset that
is not due is reported according to the residual maturity unless the
repayment of the asset is in doubt in which case the amount is
reported as “Indefinite”. The above assets are stated after deduction
of provisions, if any.

The analysis of debt securities by remaining period to maturity is
disclosed in order to comply with relevant provisions under the
Banking (Disclosure) Rules. The disclosure does not imply that the
securities will be held to maturity.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

4.3 Liquidity risk (Cont'd)

Q) Analysis of undiscounted cash flows by contractual
maturities

(a) Non-derivative cash flows

The tables below summarise the cash flows of the Group as at
31 December for non-derivative financial liabilities by remaining
contractual maturity.

2017
—BARK -2 Z=Zt-fiA —EBif REHNE
Upto1 1t03 3t0 12 1t05 Over5  FTEEAH @it
month months months years years Indefinite Total
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETR BETR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
SREE Financial liabilities
ROREMEREE L Deposits and balances from banks
FRka&s and other financial institutions 19,063,599 2,976,781 2,687,656 2,506,299 654,587 - 27888922
AEZGTABRL Financial liabilities at fair value
eRAR through profit or loss 2,094,000 2,228,500 27,500 - - - 4,350,000
EFEH Deposits from customers 199,949,156 55,032,867 60,678,093 10,232,616 71,965 - 325,964,697
BETEHFEHFRERE  Debt securities and certificates of
deposit in issue - 2,997,241 119,916 4,456,732 - - 7,573,889
AR At Other financial liabilities 7,468,414 1,019,882 7,336,935 626,725 36,036 14 16,488,006
SRAREE Total financial liabilities 228,575,169 64,255,271 70,850,100 17,822,372 762,588 14 382,265,514
2016
—fEAA —2=fAfF =Zt+=fEA —ER% RENE
Upto 1 1103 3t012 1105 Over5  TEERH Eh)
month months months years years Indefinite Total
ARETT RETT RETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
SHak Financial liabilities
RITREMEREREL Deposits and balances from banks and
TRk other financial institutions 11,793,677 4,861,160 11,299,739 2,780,866 - - 30,735,442
DMEZGAERZ Financial liabilities at fair value through
ERER profit or loss 1,881,000 817,000 529,000 - - - 3,227,000
RFER Deposits from customers 158,435,965 50,246,344 48,055,316 1,728,767 - - 258,466,392
BETEHFELRERE  Debt securities and certificates of
deposit in issue - - 556,295 579,673 - - 1,135,968
EfteRAR Other finandial liabilties 9,812,259 802,538 4,820,369 62,468 667 - 15498301
cREEAE Total financial liabilities 181,922,901 56,727,042 65,260,719 5,151,774 667 - 309,063,103
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.3 Liquidity risk (Cont'd)

Q) Analysis of undiscounted cash flows by contractual
maturities (Cont’d)

(b) Derivative cash flows

The tables below summarise the cash flows of the Group by
remaining contractual maturity as at 31 December for derivative
financial liabilities that will be settled on a net basis, together with all
derivative financial instruments that will be settled on a gross basis
regardless of whether the contract is in an asset or liability position.
The amounts disclosed in the tables are the contractual undiscounted
cash flows, except for certain derivatives which are disclosed at fair
value.

The Group's derivative financial instruments that will be settled on
a net basis mainly include interest rate swaps whereas derivative
financial instruments that will be settled on a gross basis mainly
include currency forwards and currency swaps.

2017
—-HAR —-Z=@A =ZZt+=f@A —EHE EENE
Upto1 1t03 3to 12 1t05 Over 5 @t
month months months years years Total
BETT BET T BETRT BET T BET T BET T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RIFERELE Y Derivative financial liabilities
fTEeRaf settled on a net basis 225,326 - - - - 225,326
RRELELEE Derivative financial instruments
fTESBIA settled on a gross basis
BRA Total inflow 10,494,415 1,184,424 6,860,373 - - 18,539,212
Fepigan Total outflow (10,650,069) (2,176,030) (7,737,461) - - (20,563,560)
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(b) ETAZHEE(E)

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.3 Liquidity risk (Cont'd)

Q) Analysis of undiscounted cash flows by contractual
maturities (Cont’d)

(b) Derivative cash flows (Cont’d)

2016
—fHAR —E=fAA =E+=fAA —ERF AEMNE
Upto 1 1103 3t012 1105 Over 5 @it
month months months years years Total
BETT BETT BETT BT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RIFERELE Y Derivative financial liabilities
TEEBEE settled on a net basis 220,874 = (8,499) = = 212,375
RAEEELEE Derivative financial instruments
fTESBMIA settled on a gross basis
FEN TN Total inflow 22,242,268 11,910,851 18,004,474 - - 52,157,593
Fyiotan Total outflow (22,210,298) (13,025,286) (19,871,987) - - (55,107,571)

) EBEREXSIEH
B FORfE

EEAAEBR2017F12A3MBEMBFAFERE
EREMBMEZRIICHIE EANSEASDE
88,328,968,0007T (20164 : & #91,641,576,000
7o) WEEREER R —FRRER -

MBEREEMMERE

AEBR2017F12A318 2 F B R & H b B 7%
mhE 4 %8 A8 %34,730,406,0007T (20164 : 78 1
35,050,400,0007T) ' EREIR DR —%F -
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(c) Off-balance sheet items
Loan commitments

The contractual amounts of the Group's off-balance sheet
financial instruments as at 31 December 2017 that the Group
commits to extend credit to customers and other facilities totalled
HK$88,328,968,000 (2016: HK$91,641,576,000). Those loan
commitments can be drawn within one year.

Financial guarantees and other financial facilities

Financial guarantees and other financial facilities of the Group
as at 31 December 2017 totalled HK$34,730,406,000 (2016:
HK$35,050,400,000) are maturing no later than one year.
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4, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont'd)
4.4 Capital management

The major objective of the Group’s capital management is to
maximise total shareholders’ return while maintaining a capital
adequacy position in relation to the Group’s overall risk profile. The
ALCO periodically reviews the Group’s capital structure and adjusts
the capital mix where appropriate to maintain an optimal balance
among risk, return and capital adequacy.

The Group has developed and maintained a sound framework
of policies and controls on capital management to support the
development of the Group’s business and to meet the statutory
capital adequacy ratio. The ALCO monitors the Group’s capital
adequacy. The Group has complied with all the statutory capital
requirements of the HKMA for the reported periods in respect of
banking operation as further elaborated below.

The Group has adopted the foundation internal ratings-based
("FIRB”) approach to calculate the credit risk capital charge for
the majority of its non-securitisation exposures and the internal
ratings-based (securitisation) approach to calculate the credit risk
capital charge for its securitisation exposures. A small residual credit
exposures are remained under the standardised (credit risk) (“STC")
approach. The Group has adopted the standardised credit valuation
adjustment (“CVA") method to calculate the capital charge for the
CVA risk of the counterparty.

The Group continues to adopt the internal models (“IMM") approach
to calculate the general market risk capital charge for foreign
exchange and interest rate exposures and, with the approval from
the HKMA, exclude its structural FX positions pursuant to section
317C of the Banking (Capital) Rules in the calculation of the market
risk capital charge. The Group continues to adopt the standardised
(market risk) (“STM") approach to calculate the market risk capital
charge for the remaining exposures.

The Group continues to adopt standardised (operational risk)
("STO") approach to calculate the operational risk capital charge.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.4 Capital management (Cont'd)

The Group has continued to adopt an internal capital adequacy
assessment process (“ICAAP”) to comply with the HKMA's
requirements in the Supervisory Policy Manual “Supervisory Review
Process” in 2017. Based on the HKMA's guidelines on Pillar I,
ICAAP has been initiated to assess the extra capital needed to cover
the material risks not captured or not adequately captured under
Pillar I, and therefore minimum Common Equity Tier 1 capital ratio,
minimum Tier 1 capital ratio and minimum Total capital ratio are
determined. Meanwhile, operating ranges for the aforementioned
capital ratios have also been established which enable the flexibility
for future business growth and efficiency of capital utilisation.
The Group considers this ICAAP as an on-going process for capital
management and periodically reviews and adjusts its capital structure
where appropriate in relation to the overall risk profile.

In addition, the capital plan of the Group is drawn up annually and
then submitted to the Board for approval after endorsement of the
ALCO. The plan is built up by assessing the implications of various
factors upon capital adequacy such as the business strategies,
return on equity, risk appetite, credit rating, as well as regulatory
requirements. Hence, the future capital requirement is determined
and capital sources are identified also. The plan is to ensure the
Group maintains adequate capital and appropriate capital structure
which align with its business development needs, thereby achieving
an optimal balance among risk, return and capital adequacy.

(A)  Basis of regulatory consolidation

The consolidation basis for regulatory purposes comprises the
positions of the Bank and certain subsidiaries specified by the HKMA
in accordance with the Banking (Capital) Rules. For accounting
purposes, subsidiaries are consolidated in accordance with HKFRSs
and the list of subsidiaries is set out in “Appendix — Subsidiaries of
the Bank”.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont'd)
4.4 Capital management (Cont'd)
(A) Basis of regulatory consolidation (Cont’d)

The particulars of subsidiaries which are included within the
accounting scope of consolidation but not included within the
regulatory scope of consolidation are as follows:

2017 2016
BEERE BExEzE BERE B 4RFE
Total assets Total equity  Total assets  Total equity
BET T BET T BT T BT T
E=p Name HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F ¥R ¥R ITEEAMR A F Nanyang Commercial Bank Trustee
Limited 16,509 16,399 16,450 16,341
EFEEEEEEMR AT Kwong Li Nam Investment Agency
Limited 4,752 4,024 4,137 4,026
FF R FERIT (REBA) Nanyang Commercial Bank
BRAF (Nominees) Limited 1,463 1,463 1,469 1,469

DA KRR A E BRIEMN [ K8k — A R1T 2 M8

NIk

R2017%F12 8318 WEEANBARIABREEESE
HMEHFREGEHE MAREESTELNGEEE (2016
FE) o

R2017F12A318  MEEMNE Q& RESEE
S ENNEEREASBEMERTRES A
(20164 - 4&)

The principal activities of the above subsidiaries are set out in
" Appendix — Subsidiaries of the Bank”.

There were no subsidiaries which are included within the regulatory
scope of consolidation but not included within the accounting scope
of consolidation as at 31 December 2017 (2016: Nil).

Neither were there any subsidiaries which are included within both
the accounting scope of consolidation and the regulatory scope of
consolidation where the methods of consolidation differ as at 31
December 2017 (2016: Nil).
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

4.4 Capital management (Cont'd)

(B) Capital ratio

2017 2016
T mARAE — AR B AN LE R CET1 capital ratio 13.10% 14.31%
—RENR=E Tier 1 capital ratio 16.73% 14.31%
FERE N S Total capital ratio 18.49% 16.19%

RRETEN EERE R 2 IFENGEEAER S The consolidated capital base after deductions used in the
MR calculation of the above capital ratios is analysed as follows:
2017 2016
BT T BT T
HKS$°000 HK$'000
LmRE—MEN  ZRREE CET1 capital: instruments and reserves
HEBTHNEER L BRE Directly issued qualifying CET1 capital
—MERER instruments 3,144,517 3,144,517
IR 5 A Retained earnings 31,153,712 28,648,761
BB FEE Disclosed reserves 8,468,546 6,885,557
EEHRZ AT ZRAEE—RER CET1 capital before regulatory deductions 42,766,775 38,678,835
TR —RER  BEE R CET1 capital: regulatory deductions
(EXEREES Valuation adjustments (11,037) (18,800)
EHRECHRIEEGENELEHIBEEE Deferred tax assets net of deferred tax liabilities (222,516) (100,652)
IR < E R Cash flow hedge reserve = 48,098
EAFEBEEENEERRSH Gains and losses due to changes in own credit
EHRRREESFTEENIELR risk on fair valued liabilities (277) (2,983)
Bt REEY (BRRKRERE) Cumulative fair value gains arising from the
EITEEEMMEELD revaluation of land and buildings
2REAFEAEKE (own-use and investment properties) (6,431,695)  (6,026,176)
—RIBTTEBRREE R B Regulatory reserve for general banking risks (2,529,788) (2,011,223)
HEBRE - REANESHR A Total regulatory deductions to CET1 capital (9,195,313)  (8,111,736)
TRk E—RER CET1 capital 33,571,462 30,567,099
KIN— R E A Additional Tier 1 capital 9,314,890 =
—RER Tier 1 capital 42,886,352 30,567,099
TRER BZBRREHES Tier 2 capital: instruments and provisions
BB AZRERE Collective impairment allowances and regulatory

SRBERER reserve for general banking risks eligible

—RIBITRREE B for inclusion in Tier 2 capital 1,591,380 1,304,611
EEEHUR Z BT R — VA AR Tier 2 capital before regulatory deductions 1,591,380 1,304,611
ZHREXR BT Tier 2 capital: regulatory deductions

neE&E BRI AZRERD Add back of cumulative fair value gains arising

E¥ 4+t Ry (AR from the revaluation of land and buildings

WER®)ETEEEMM (own-use and investment properties)

EEXNEBEATEEKE eligible for inclusion in Tier 2 capital 2,894,262 2,711,779
HoREARNEETHIRARE Total regulatory deductions to Tier 2 capital 2,894,262 2,711,779
ZHRENR Tier 2 capital 4,485,642 4,016,390
PN Total capital 47,371,994 34,583,489
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cCont'd)
4.4 Capital management (Cont'd)

(B) Capital ratio (Cont’d)

The capital buffer ratios are analysed as follows:

20175 R20164F
128318 12A31H

At At

31 December 31 December

2017 2016

[y s % 1 & AN b 3 Capital conservation buffer ratio 1.250% 0.625%
o [ B AR By & AN L Countercyclical capital buffer ratio 0.67% 0.34%

BRI GRITHE (BEAR) R A - 7KR2016E2019FE H
FEERBIAREEEHEAN ([CCBLLR]) - B R MEIRIR
TEZBEIN B RBRINEEEZ2.5%2 B2 58
FAREHER ([CCyBLL X ]) Rl AER| 5 /AT & &
FE AUNEEEERAERNEERRNEBLR-F
BEREERAMBE SR BEANTABEHER
201741818 &20184 1818 5 Bl & = k& hn 4
BEZ1.25%%1.875%  mE (BEBBE=) 2H
BB BERINEEEZ2.5% °

FEREARENBAENTIRARTHEER

www.ncb.com.hk/ [E5E 55 | — 02

© EREE

In accordance with the Banking (Capital) Rules, the phase-in
from 2016 to 2019 of the Capital Conservation Buffer (“CCB") is
designed to ensure banks build up capital outside periods of stress of
2.5% of risk-weighted assets(“RWAs"”). The Countercyclical Capital
Buffer ("CCyB") which is set on an individual country basis and is
built up during periods of excess credit growth to protect against
future losses. The HKMA announced a CCyB for Hong Kong of
1.25% and 1.875% of RWAs from 1 January 2017 and 1 January
2018 respectively under the phase in arrangements of Basel I,
equivalent to 2.5% once fully phased in.

The additional information of capital disclosures is available
under section “Regulatory Disclosures” on the Bank's website at

www.nch.com.hk.

(C) Leverage ratio

2017 2016

BT T BT T

HK$’000 HK$'000

—RER Tier 1 capital 42,886,352 30,567,099
1B B 2 3 fe A Leverage ratio exposure 463,397,438 379,536,120
TR & Leverage ratio 9.25% 8.05%

FHERELERENMAEN AN ARRITHEE
%=,

www.nch.com.hk/ [ESE i 5& | — &2

The additional information of leverage ratio disclosures is available
under section “Regulatory Disclosures” on the Bank’'s website at
www.ncb.com.hk.
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5. FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed
in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, “Fair value measurement”. The
categorisation are determined with reference to the observability
and significance of the inputs used in the valuation methods and
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

- Level 1: based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities. This category
includes debt instruments issued by certain governments,
certain exchange-traded derivative contracts and precious
metals.

- Level 2: based on valuation techniques for which the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
observable, either directly or indirectly. This category includes
majority of the OTC derivative contracts, debt securities
and certificates of deposit with quote from pricing services
vendors. It also includes precious metals and properties with
insignificant adjustments made to observable market inputs.

- Level 3: based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable. This category includes equity
investment, derivatives and debt instruments with significant
unobservable components. It also includes properties with
significant adjustments made to observable market inputs.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.
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5. FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES (Cont'd)

5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value

The Group has an established governance structure and controls
framework to ensure that fair values are either determined or
validated by control units independent of the front offices. Control
units have overall responsibility for independent verification of
valuation results from front line businesses and all other significant
fair value measurements. Specific controls include verification of
observable pricing inputs. Significant valuation issues are reported to
the Management.

The Group uses valuation techniques or broker/dealer quotations
to determine the fair value of financial instruments when unable to
obtain the open market quotation in active markets.

The main parameters used in valuation techniques for financial
instruments held by the Group include bond prices, interest
rates, foreign exchange rates, equity and stock prices, volatilities,
counterparty credit spreads and others, which are mostly observable
and obtainable from open market.

The technique used to calculate the fair value of the following
financial instruments is as below:

Debt instruments and certificates of deposit

The fair value of these instruments is determined by obtaining
quoted market prices from exchange, dealer or independent pricing
service vendors or using discounted cash flow technique. Discounted
cash flow model is a valuation technique that measures present value
using estimated expected future cash flows from the instruments
and then discounts these flows using a discount rate or discount
margin that reflects the credit spreads required by the market for
instruments with similar risk. These inputs are observable or can be
corroborated by observable or unobservable market data.

167



#1795 B % 4845 « NANYANG COMMERCIAL BANK 2017 ANNUAL REPORT 4 &

B S HR R B 5E
Notes to the Financial Statements

TET A

BINRBITE TR W BIEINE - F XKL EmAa)E
B RSN - TETAESHNEREEHA
RREMEL N BER S (HERNETE - E
RHN2BA/ABRATABETSHE - TEHENS
BEREMNX EX HRERLKE TAHEN2
SRR E A AR RE R AT RPIERZ R
EMHRBEER B LEMNITETASY AF
BERREE/ RIE 2 RERER-

AEFEHGIZXZNITETRER T EEGERR
REBHEAR -AEIIRBREMSEZRZL X
SHTFEEREEESEERENNE - FHARE
BERBE-XZHT  AREEHHO - ZHX R
O] & & 5F -

168

www.nch.com.hk

5. FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES (Cont'd)

5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value
(Cont'd)

Derivatives

OTC derivative contracts include forward, swap and option contracts
on foreign exchange, interest rate or commodity. The fair values
of these contracts are mainly measured using valuation techniques
such as discounted cash flow models and option pricing models. The
inputs can be observable or unobservable market data. Observable
inputs include interest rate, foreign exchange rates, commodity
prices and volatilities. Unobservable inputs such as volatility surface
may be used for less commonly traded option products which are
embedded in structured deposits. For certain complex derivative
contracts, the fair values are determined based on broker/dealer
price quotations.

Credit valuation adjustments (“CVA"”) and debit valuation
adjustments (“"DVA") are applied to the Group’s OTC derivatives.
These adjustments reflect market factors movement, expectations
of counterparty creditworthiness and the Group’s own credit spread
respectively. They are mainly determined for each counterparty and
are dependent on expected future values of exposures, default
probabilities and recovery rates.
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5. BEENEGEMNQAARE S 5. FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES (Cont'd)
51 HAAENENSMIA(E) 5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value
(Cont'd)
A) AR EER (A)  Fair value hierarchy
2017
E—EBR E-EBR E=ZER £y
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BT T BT T BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
ERMEE Financial assets
AARBER L AERZ Financial assets at fair value
S REE (MsE20) through profit or loss (Note 20)
—RGMEE — Trading assets
—BBESHRENRE — Debt securities and
certificates of deposit - 4,142,283 - 4,142,283
TEemT A (MiEE21) Derivative financial instruments
(Note 21) 327,009 73,834 - 400,843
AHEESREE Available-for-sale financial assets
(F7E24) (Note 24)
— BB BSH RERE — Debt securities and
certificates of deposit - 86,594,953 - 86,594,953
— & n#EH — Equity securities - = 15,156 15,156
—Hfth — Others - - 17,430,518 17,430,518
MBS Financial liabilities
AARBER L AERZ Financial liabilities at fair value
Rt AR (M5E28) through profit or loss (Note 28)
—RH5HEEE — Trading liabilities - 4,345,543 - 4,345,543
TEemI A (MEE21) Derivative financial instruments
(Note 21) 100,377 297,419 - 397,796
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5. BEEMEBBNARE®) 5. FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES (Cont'd)

51 UAREFEMNERMIA(E) 5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value
(Cont'd)

(A)  Fair value hierarchy (Cont’d)

2016
E—EBR F_EBH FZER 4t
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
AT T AT BRI BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ERMEE Financial assets
AABEEEFABRZ Financial assets at fair value
S REE (MsE20) through profit or loss (Note 20)
—RGMEE — Trading assets
— BB 5 — Debt securities ~ 3,438,763 - 3,438,763
—AERBARAABE L — Financial assets designated at
ATABRZERMEE fair value through profit or loss
—fEBES — Debt securities - 241,638 - 241,638
PrEemI A (KMiEE21) Derivative financial instruments
(Note 21) 344,483 551,908 85 896,476
AHEESREE Available-for-sale financial assets
(Hi3E24) (Note 24)
— BB HH RERH — Debt securities and
certificates of deposit - 62,329,215 - 62,329,215
—BRHESH — Equity securities - - 13,381 13,381
—EHfth — Others - - 7,768,729 7,768,729
SRBHE Financial liabilities
NABEZEAEBRZ Financial liabilities at fair value
SR AE (M5E28) through profit or loss (Note 28)
- RGMEaE — Trading liabilities - 3,223,456 = 3,223,456
PTEem T A (KiEE21) Derivative financial instruments
(Note 21) 123,638 810,606 - 934,244

AEFAZEHEERBERERNYREE —BHER
F_ERZENER (20165F ) °
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There were no financial asset and liability transfers between level 1
and level 2 for the Group during the year (2016: Nil).
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FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES (Cont'd)

Financial instruments measured at fair value
(Cont'd)

Reconciliation of level 3 items

2017
SRMEE
Financial assets

=3 AHHESREE

EWMIA Available-for-sale
(F%) financial assets
Derivative
Financial % 17 2% 2%
Instruments Equity Hty
(net) securities Others

BETRT BETT BETT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

RK2017F1 /518
&=
— =R
—Hith 2=
— A HEBIF 2 ANBEE L

BA
B EO KR
HBHE=ER

At 1 January 2017 85 13,381 7,768,729
Gains
— Income statement - - 749,775
— Other comprehensive income
— Change in fair value of available-for-sale
securities - 1,775 -
Purchases - - 34,255,958
Sales, redemptions and maturity - - (25,343,944)
Transfer out of Level 3 (85) - -

2017412 A31H

At 31 December 2017

= 15,156 17,430,518

R2017F12A31BHEA NS R
EERFRFARZEN
RER W A58

Total unrealised gains for the year included

in income statement for financial assets
held as at 31 December 2017 = - _
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5. BEEMEBEBENARE®) 5. FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES (Cont'd)

51 UAREFEMNERMIA(E) 5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value
(Cont'd)

(B) E=FRHEARE (H)

(B) Reconciliation of level 3 items (Cont’d)

2016
Financial assets
PTHE AHEESHEE
SRT A Available-for-sale
(F5) financial assets
Derivative
Financial & 7 3 %
Instruments Equity HAh
(net) securities Others
AT BT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R2016F1 A 18 At 1 January 2016 - 4,613 472,067
&= Gains
— =R — Income statement 85 = (26,305)
—H fh 2 E s — Other comprehensive income
— A HEBIF 2 ANBEE L — Change in fair value of available-for-sale
securities - (516) -
BEA Purchases - 9,284 12,229,735
FH ERKEH Sales, redemptions and maturity = -  (4,906,768)
720164128318 At 31 December 2016 85 13,381 7,768,729

R2016F12A31HEA KNS Rl

BERFAGARBERD
AERKEERE

Total unrealised gains for the year included
in income statement for financial assets
held as at 31 December 2016
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Notes to the Financial Statements

5. FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES (Cont'd)

5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair value
(Cont'd)

(B) Reconciliation of level 3 items (Cont’d)

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, financial instruments
categorised as level 3 are mainly comprised of unlisted equity
securities and other available-for-sale financial instruments.

The fair values of unlisted available-for-sale equity shares are
determined with reference to multiples of comparable listed
companies, such as average of the price/earning ratios of
comparables, or net asset value, if appropriate comparables are not
available. The fair value is positively correlated to the price/earning
ratios of appropriate comparables or net asset values. Had the net
asset value of the underlying equity investments increased/decreased
by 5%, the Group’s other comprehensive income would have
increased/decreased by HK$758,000 (2016: HK$669,000).

For certain illiquid others financial assets classified as available-for-
sale, the Group obtains valuation quotations from counterparties
which may be based on unobservable inputs with significant impact
on the valuation. Therefore, these instruments have been classified
by the Group as level 3. The Group has established internal control
procedures to control the Group’s exposure to such financial
instruments.

5.2  Financial instruments not measured at fair value

Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in time based on
relevant market information and information about various financial
instruments. The following methods and assumptions have been
used to estimate the fair value of each class of financial instrument
as far as practicable.

Balances with/from banks and other financial institutions
and trade bills

Substantially all the financial assets and liabilities mature within
one year from the balance sheet date and their carrying value
approximates fair value.
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5. FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES (Cont'd)

5.2 Financial instruments not measured at fair value
(Cont'd)

Advances to customers

Substantially all the advances to customers are on floating rate
terms, bear interest at prevailing market interest rates and their
carrying value approximates fair value.

Held-to-maturity securities

The fair value of held-to-maturity securities is determined by using
the same approach as those debt instruments and certificates of
deposit measured at fair value as described in Note 5.1.

Loans and receivables

The fair value of loans and receivables is determined by using the
same approach as those debt instruments and certificates of deposit
measured at fair value as described in Note 5.1.

Deposits from customers

Substantially all the deposits from customers mature within one year
from the balance sheet date and their carrying value approximates
fair value.

Debt securities and certificates of deposit in issue

The fair value of these instruments is determined by using the same
approach as those debt instruments and certificates of deposit
measured at fair value as described in Note 5.1.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES (Cont'd)

Financial instruments not measured at fair value

(Cont'd)

The following tables set out the carrying values and fair values of
the financial instruments not measured at fair value, except for the

above with their carrying values being approximation of fair values.

2017 2016
BREE BREE
Carrying ARE Carrying AAE
value Fair value value Fair value
BET T BET T EEE T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EREE Financial assets
REZIHBEES Held-to-maturity securities 3,457,187 3,452,680 2,063,942 2,109,576
B FE YR Loans and receivables 3,753,086 3,776,502 4,759,815 4,773,057
ERERE Financial liabilities
BERITERBHFERTRE Debt securities and certificates of
deposit in issue 6,781,208 6,686,616 1,095,937 1,104,033
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FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES (Cont'd)

Financial instruments not measured at fair value

(Cont'd)

instruments with fair values disclosed.

The following tables show the fair value hierarchy for financial

2017
E—EBR F-EBR E=ZE®R st
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BT T BET T BET T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
SREE Financial assets
REZIHBEES Held-to-maturity securities - 3,452,680 - 3,452,680
B3R % FE YR Loans and receivables - - 3,776,502 3,776,502
SRBE Financial liabilities
BEITERESRFHRE  Debt securities and certificates of
deposit in issue - 6,686,616 - 6,686,616
2016
E—EBR F_BR F=ZER FEEa
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
PR T PRI BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EMEE Financial assets
REZIHAES Held-to-maturity securities - 2,109,576 - 2,109,576
B R % e R Loans and receivables - 1,238,137 3,534,920 4,773,057
=R Financial liabilities
BERTERELSARFRE  Debt securities and certificates of
deposit in issue - 1,104,033 - 1,104,033
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5. FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES (Cont'd)

5.3 Non-financial instruments measured at fair
value

The Group uses valuation techniques or quoted market prices
in active market to determine the fair value of non-financial
instruments.

Investment properties and premises

The Group's properties can be divided into investment properties
and premises. All of the Group's investment properties and premises
were revalued as at year end. The valuations were carried out by an
independent firm of chartered surveyors, Knight Frank Petty Limited,
who have among their staff Fellow and Members of The Hong Kong
Institute of Surveyors with recent experience in the locations and
categories of properties being valued. The Group’s Management had
discussions with the surveyors on the valuation methods, valuation
assumptions and valuation results when the valuation is performed
at each interim and annual reporting date. There has been no
change in valuation methods during the year.

(1) Valuation methods and inputs used in Level 2 fair value
measurements

The fair value of properties classified as Level 2 is determined using
either the market comparison approach by reference to recent
sales price of comparable properties or the income capitalisation
approach by reference to market rent and capitalisation rate, with
appropriate adjustments to reflect the differences between the
comparable properties and the subject properties. These adjustments
are considered as insignificant to the entire measurement.

The Group's properties are located in Hong Kong and major cities
in the PRC where the property markets are considered active and
transparent. Sales price, market rent and capitalisation rate of
comparable properties are generally observable either directly or
indirectly in these markets.
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5. FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES (Cont'd)

5.3 Non-financial instruments measured at fair
value (Cont'd)

Investment properties and premises (Cont’d)
(i) Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

The fair value of all of the Group’s properties classified as Level 3
is determined using either the market comparison approach or the
income capitalisation approach, adjusted for a premium or a discount
specific to the features of the Group’s properties compared to the
comparable properties.

The valuation methods and significant unobservable inputs used in

the fair value measurement of the Group’s properties classified as
Level 3 are as follows:

TUBRREEQNABBNER

BEATABERZ REF Relationship of
HERZE Significant Weighted unobservable inputs
Valuation method unobservable inputs average to fair value
R ES 5 A WERE AR EE -6.7% HEME AREMR-
WA B A% WE F2EE/ (FE) (2016: -20%) HEMS RAEBE-

Other properties Market comparison approach
or income capitalisation

approach

WMERE LB EEME E2RE (FE) D2
ZHEULBNEETAERENZR  fINKREZ
mSEE LB EEE BR KR EE EHE-
hREMEE -

=51

BEeBZARNBERREBTMEREXAE THEDN
I ME SRR -
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Premium/(discount) on features
of the property compared to
comparable properties

The higher the premium,
the higher the fair value.

The higher the discount,
the lower the fair value.

Premium/(discount) on features of a property is determined
after taken into account various factors, such as time for market
movement, location, accessibility, building age/condition, floor
level, size, layout, with reference to the differences in features with
comparable properties.

Precious metals

The fair values of precious metals are determined by obtaining
quoted market prices in active market or market quote with certain
adjustments.
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5. BEENEGEMNQAARE S 5. FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES (Cont'd)
53 UAREENEEMIE(H) 5.3 Non-financial instruments measured at fair
value (Cont'd)
A) AR EER (A)  Fair value hierarchy
2017
E—EBR E-EBR E=ZER £y
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BT T BT T BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FeMEE Non-financial assets
HEWZE (Ki7E25) Investment properties (Note 25) - = 302,702 302,702
I E YN Properties, plant and equipment
(Hi3E26) (Note 26) - 83,085 7,090,813 7,173,898
—BE — Premises
H & E (KisE27) Other assets (Note 27)
—BE%E — Precious metals 61,629 184,328 = 245,957
2016
E—ER F_BH F=ZER st
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
ok e BT BEETIT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FemMEE Non-financial assets
wEYE (K15E25) Investment properties (Note 25) = = 383,830 383,830
M3 - B3 R A Properties, plant and equipment
(Ki7E26) (Note 26)
—BE — Premises - 326,756 6,378,855 6,705,611
H &= (KisE27) Other assets (Note 27)
- 558 — Precious metals 52,338 178,273 - 230,611

AEEZICHMEERTFRRESF ELALRE-E
W2 HRER (20165F  £) °

There were no non-financial asset transfers between level 1 and level

2 for the Group during the year (2016: Nil).
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5. FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND

LIABILITIES (Cont'd)

5.3 Non-financial instruments measured at fair

value (Cont'd)

(B) Reconciliation of level 3 items

2017
FEMEE
Non-financial assets
Y - BB M
k&BE
Properties,
plant and
B equipment
Investment BE
properties Premises
BT T BET T
HK$'000 HK$’'000
R2017F1 A 18 At 1 January 2017 383,830 6,378,855
e Gains
— W am & — Income statement
—REMELARBERAEZ — Net gain from fair value adjustments on
F U investment properties 24,990 -
—BEEEZF N — Net gain from revaluation of premises = 1,173
—Hth 2wk — Other comprehensive income
—-BEER — Revaluation of premises = 405,320
e Depreciation = (112,070)
#E Additions 2,502 6,549
A Transfer in = 5,970
EAB=ZEBR Transfer into level 3 = 251,400
EFoLE Reclassification (108,620) 108,620
e &= Exchange difference = 44,996
R2017F12A31H At 31 December 2017 302,702 7,090,813
12017412318 A IEE F Total unrealised gains for the year included in
BEERFRNGTARGENARAER income statement for non-financial assets held
W 4258 as at 31 December 2017
—REMERAANEHARZ Fl = — Net gain from fair value adjustments on
investment properties 24,990 -
—EHEEFKE — Net gain from revaluation of premises - 1,173
24,990 1,173
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5. FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND

LIABILITIES (Cont'd)

5.3 Non-financial instruments measured at fair

value (Cont'd)

(B) Reconciliation of level 3 items (Cont’d)

2016
FemEE
Non-financial assets
L/E=-V7)
PET
Properties,
plant and
equipment
wEYE
Investment BE
properties Premises
EEE T ST
HK$'000 HK$'000
R2016F1 A 18 At 1 January 2016 414,736 6,462,986
& Gains
— a7 — Income statement
—REVMEAALBERAEZ — Net gain from fair value adjustments on
F U investment properties 29,340 =
—BEEEZF N — Net gain from revaluation of premises = 5,271
—Hth 2 mEmka= — Other comprehensive income
—FEEH — Revaluation of premises = (66,680)
e Depreciation = (116,962)
HE Additions - 96,419
BAFE=EL Transfer into level 3 = 217,000
EHE=BH Transfer out of level 3 = (251,400)
EM O Reclassification (59,082) 59,082
EHZERR Exchange difference (1,164) (26,861)
201612 HA31H At 31 December 2016 383,830 6,378,855
12016F12 8318 A IEE F Total unrealised gains for the year included in
EERFRNGTARGERNARAER income statement for non-financial assets held
W42 58 as at 31 December 2016
—REMERAANERARZ F = — Net gain from fair value adjustments on
investment properties 29,340 -
—EHEEZFKE — Net gain from revaluation of premises = 5,271
29,340 5,271
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6. FHMEBWA

5. FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES (Cont'd)

5.3 Non-financial instruments measured at fair
value (Cont'd)

(B) Reconciliation of level 3 items (Cont’d)

The transfer of properties into and out of level 3 is due to change
in the premium/(discount) on features applied between the subject
and comparable properties during the year. Premium/(discount)
on features is determined with reference to differences in features
between the subject properties and the comparable properties
recently transacted in the market. As comparable properties that
come from recent market transactions may be different in each year,
the premium/(discount) on features applied between the subject and
comparable properties would change from year to year accordingly.
As a result, the significance of adjustments made to observable
market inputs may vary and lead to the transfer of properties into
and out of level 3.

6. NET INTEREST INCOME
2017 2016
BT  B¥ETR
HK$’000 HK$'000

FIE WA Interest income

TR R 2 & Eofth & B 18 1) 5K Due from banks and other financial institutions 1,729,176 1,133,134

EPEX Advances to customers 6,825,418 5,160,921

BERERANBEE LT AERZZ Investment in securities and financial assets

CREE at fair value through profit or loss 2,183,187 1,244,987

H A, Others 11,127 11,073
10,748,908 7,550,115

FEXZH Interest expense

[A) 25 2 Hfth & A 1 7 P R IA Due to banks and other financial institutions (1,130,353) (401,536)

EXEFER Deposits from customers (3,208,580) (2,373,115)

BETEEES RFRE Debt securities and certificates of deposit in issue (196,428) (3,736)

H A, Others (219,148) (236,919)
(4,754,509) (3,015,306)

R B WA Net interest income 5,994,399 4,534,809

HZE2017F12A31B EFE 2 F B A BIEHE R E
AR EE KK FEET A B U A S #55,356,0007T (2016
£ : 4 #4,680,0007T ) °
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Included within interest income is HK$5,356,000 (2016:
HK$4,680,000) of interest with respect to income accrued on
advances classified as impaired for the year ended 31 December
2017.
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6. NET INTEREST INCOME (Cont'd)

Included within interest income and interest expense
are HK$10,710,602,000 (2016: HK$7,526,553,000) and
HK$4,738,725,000 (2016: HK$3,006,737,000), before hedging
effect, for financial assets and financial liabilities that are not
recognised at fair value through profit or loss respectively.

7. NET FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME
2017 2016
BETT  BETT
HK$’000 HK$'000

BREERASKWA Fee and commission income
EXAe Loan commissions 503,399 471,698
B Securities brokerage 260,947 158,426
EZM® Bills commissions 166,990 162,975
R Insurance 166,809 271,640
EE D Funds distribution 165,357 131,180
B AR Payment services 56,731 56,266
ERRER Credit card business 44,253 87,045
ErERFEE R Trust and custody services 40,160 23,075
REM Safe deposit box 18,635 30,636
BEEEH Currency exchange 600 502
HAh Others 307,201 240,223
1,731,082 1,633,666
BREERMAEXH Fee and commission expense
BHEEA Securities brokerage (32,811) (22,785)
ERRER Credit card business (3,336) (8,646)
RE2 Insurance = (227)
R BRTS Payment services (27) (18)
HAh Others (35,060) (29,919)
(71,234) (61,595)
FREERASWA Net fee and commission income 1,659,848 1,572,071
HERE Of which arise from
—FEURARBEELFABR — financial assets or financial liabilities not
JERMEENSRBEE at fair value through profit or loss
— RIS E R AL KA — Fee and commission income 489,016 452,128
—-REEBERASSE — Fee and commission expense (2,346) (3,677)
486,670 448,451
— SR REMZES — trust and other fiduciary activities
—RBERAEKA — Fee and commission income 52,792 35,463
-RBERASIE — Fee and commission expense (1,270) (1,388)
51,522 34,075
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8. BEXHZM (FE) hi#E

8. NET TRADING (LOSS)/GAIN
2017 2016
BETRT BETIT
HK$’000 HK$'000

F(BER) WERE Net (loss)/gain from
—HME X 5 J HNE 52 5 2 — foreign exchange and foreign exchange products (62,419) 146,678
—FM=ETA — interest rate instruments 5,203 17,092
—Em — commodities (86,950) (29,075)

(144,166) 134,695

9. HteMEEZFWHE

9. NET GAIN ON OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
2017 2016

BT  B¥ETR

HK$'000 HK$'000

AHEEE B H TR R Net gain on available-for-sale securities 29,018 91,985
BRI ERGR 2 F W Net gain on loans and receivables = 17
H Al Others 89,897 100,770

118,915 192,772

10. HKZUWA

10. OTHER OPERATING INCOME
2017 2016
BT  BETR
HK$'000 HK$'000

BHLEREBA Dividend income from investment in securities
—FLEMBHEE — Unlisted investments 2,980 2,338
wEYE RSB Gross rental income from investment properties 11,511 13,311
W EBIREME T Less: Outgoings in respect of investment properties (746) (1,507)
Hfh Others 12,676 12,917
26,421 27,059

(BRI EYMEZIH ] BEFARTHEEDEZ
HERKE S HB%342,0007T (20164 : ##146,000
JL) °

[REYEZBASRUA | BEERARAE S B
532,0007T (20164F : % #456,0007T ) °

184

Included in the “Outgoings in respect of investment properties”
is HK$342,000 (2016: HK$146,000) of direct operating expenses
related to investment properties that were not let during the year.

Contingent rent included in the “Gross rental income from
investment properties” amounted to HK$532,000 (2016:
HK$456,000).
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11. NET CHARGE OF IMPAIRMENT

ALLOWANCES
2017 2016
BT T BT T
HK$°000 HK$'000
BEFEX Advances to customers
& Bl 51 & Individually assessed
— IR A — New allowances (637,653) (585,698)
—# — Releases 60,256 120,001
— g Bl B #i S AR 1R — Recoveries 21,822 43,851
2 {8 Bl 5 B OB B 28 5 Net charge of individually assessed loan
impairment allowances (555,575) (421,846)
He Collectively assessed
— iR — New allowances (386,813) (104,915)
— B — Releases 28,163 54,823
— U [B] & i 88 BRI — Recoveries 560 1,490
REE T HEFTREEREF Net charge of collectively assessed loan
B impairment allowances (358,090) (48,602)
BRURBEEEFEE Net charge of loan impairment allowances (913,665) (470,448)
ERRERRERMREFRE Net charge of impairment allowance on
loans and receivables financial investments (6,740) (15,627)
Hih Others (56) =
BEEETFRE Net charge of impairment allowances (920,461) (486,075)
12. B&ELXTH 12. OPERATING EXPENSES
2017 2016
BET T BT
HK$000 HK$'000
ANEER (BRESH:) Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments)
—FMREMER — Salaries and other costs 1,463,685 1,256,081
—RRAK AR — Pension cost 165,921 150,768
—H TR IRAE T — Supplementary retirement benefits 4,510 5,190
1,634,116 1,412,039
FERFZESZL (TEEFERE) Premises and equipment expenses
(excluding depreciation)
—-EEMES — Rental of premises 254,412 256,994
— BB — Information technology 130,693 157,545
—H A — Others 59,777 59,717
444,882 474,256
e Depreciation 199,555 199,917
% 2 Al BN Auditor’s remuneration
—FET R — Audit services 7,701 7,084
— FEFRTIRTS — Non-audit services 2,304 4,504
Hth 48 & 2 Other operating expenses
—¥BINBE — Outsourcing activities fee 304,204 219,621
—EHfth — Others 310,307 339,156
2,903,069 2,656,577
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13. REYEAAEABRZFENRR 13. NET GAIN FROM FAIR VALUE

ADJUSTMENTS ON INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES

2017 2016
BETRT  ABTET
HK$'000 HK$°000

Net gain from fair value adjustments on investment
properties 24,990 29,340

24,990 29,340

14. HE EEYE BHRREZ 14. NET (LOSS)/GAIN FROM DISPOSAL/

B (FR) s REVALUATION OF PROPERTIES, PLANT
AND EQUIPMENT
2017 2016
BETT BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
HEREE 2 F W= Net gain from disposal of premises = 1,758
HERE EEfmhkE#Hz Net loss from disposal of equipment, fixtures and
ey k= fittings (3,206) (2,893)
BEFEEZFRE Net gain from revaluation of premises 1,173 5,271
(2,033) 4,136
15. Bi1E 15. TAXATION
Wzs kA2 BIEAKAT : Taxation in the income statement represents:
2017 2016
BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
NEATIE Current tax
BABFEH Hong Kong profits tax
—FEAF ATIE — Current year taxation 455,529 430,978
— A FEBREEE — Over-provision in prior years (5,600) (8,498)
449,929 422,480
B INER IR Overseas taxation
—FEAF ATRIE — Current year taxation 216,756 198,822
—FETREE — Under-provision in prior years 7,775 57
674,461 621,359
IR FE R IE Deferred tax
TR EBEI EEREBRR Origination and reversal of temporary differences
RMEAFIBEE R and unused tax credits (83,434) (24,214)
591,026 597,145

186



www.nch.com.hk

15. BB (&)

B A TS T TR B F S 51 B SR BRI R A R
16.5% (20164 : 16.5% ) 12 # < B IN&E | 2 Fi 7z f8
AEEGHFTRRFEANRAEELEEBAERR
ZHEITBEGHE -
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15. TAXATION (Cont'd)

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
(2016: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in
Hong Kong during the year. Taxation on overseas profits has been
calculated on the estimated assessable profits for the year at the
rates of taxation prevailing in the countries in which the Group
operates.

The taxation on the Group's profit before taxation that differs from
the theoretical amount that would arise using the taxation rate of
Hong Kong is as follows:

2017 2016
BET T BETIT
HK$’000 HK$'000

R 250 A1 i A Profit before taxation 3,847,258 3,344,522
BT *E16.5% (2016%F : 16.5% ) Calculated at a taxation rate of 16.5%

T EETIE (2016: 16.5%) 634,798 551,846
HWBERGTEREEN T L Effect of different taxation rates in other countries 40,345 55,331
mERERTZBA Income not subject to taxation (67,960) (29,401)
FiHs EAA R 2R Expenses not deductible for taxation purposes 24,749 27,465
REER BB E 18 Tax losses not recognised 1 1
AT FRERNNGESR Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses 9) (15)
FTETR(BE)BE Under/(over) -provision in prior years 2,175 (8,441)
EINERR T Foreign withholding tax 1,536 359
BITRARSZNEBIINEATEZSFHE  Adjustment in respect of cost and distribution payment

for additional equity instruments (44,609) -
T ATRIE Taxation charge 591,026 597,145
BB = Effective tax rate 15.36% 17.85%
16. KE 16. DIVIDENDS

2017 2016
=35y wa sl 4aga
it BT T P BT T
Per share Total Per share Total
HK$ HK$'000 HK$ HK$'000

AR B Interim dividends

2017FWES RS (20164F - #) °

No dividend has been declared for the year ended 31 December
2017 (2016: Nil).
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17. EBARER KA
(@) HBEMHHE

AEBGTASEE INREHRATE TR HE (58
& RO e 2 BRI 8 kP RERBE 8
EaarE - RIBEBERRAE B RARBERAG
H2BARFREEAFHE 5% MEXT 2EAMH
RREEEERBFH LZ5%E15%TE (BRFEEZR
BEH) - EEBENEN  FERIERER R L
BRIEFEMI0FHIA EFHR TUWEN00% 2 18 E
R RIFMIFEIFNE T HEMREAM L&
FRER (3 BB AR (R BR 51 - ATIER30% =90% 2 1B
HK-BBUIMBEHRK AR (RFEMEIESF
SR GI) PIAR -

BEE GRFEL M) M2000F 12818 E i NEE
M2 EPRRBE S RBESTE LB ZZEAR
FIRBIR A BERMEEER AT REEEABPIR
BERARRREEERERAA -

#H E2017F12A318 £k % 7%8 #1,355,0007C
(20164F : 4975 #£502,0007T ) Z 8 WAt k1% - By ¥ iR
Ret &) 2 B EE#) 578 #544,978,0007T (20164 ¢
#9785 #543,695,0007T ) + M A& Bl M2 T8 & 51 8] 2
RABFE B4 &7 #10,257,0007T (20164 : 4974 #&
9,313,0007T) ©

(b) HREF TS

AEBRET - HIFEESHNREN DR E
THEERAKET -EZAE T BITEBZRIKE
NEReE2BE FERMREMERKER-

AEHEIEY R AR RRIKE T2 B AR EHK
AR -
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17. RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS
(a) Defined contribution schemes

Defined contribution schemes for the Group’s employees are ORSO
schemes exempted under the MPF Schemes Ordinance and the BOC-
Prudential Easy Choice MPF Scheme. Under the ORSO schemes,
employees make monthly contributions to the ORSO schemes equal
to 5% of their basic salaries, while the employer makes monthly
contributions equal to 5% to 15% of the employees’ monthly basic
salaries, depending on years of service. The employees are entitled
to receive 100% of the employer’s contributions upon retirement,
early retirement or termination of employment after completing 10
years of service. Employees with 3 to 9 years of service are entitled
to receive the employer’s contributions at a scale ranging from 30%
to 90% upon termination of employment for other reasons other
than summary dismissal. All employer’s contributions received by
employee are subject to MPF Schemes Ordinance.

With the implementation of the MPF Schemes Ordinance on 1
December 2000, the Group also participates in the BOC-Prudential
Easy Choice MPF Scheme, of which the trustee is BOCI-Prudential
Trustee and the investment manager is BOCI-Prudential Manager.

The Group's total contributions made to the ORSO schemes for
the year ended 31 December 2017 amounting to approximately
HK$44,978,000 (2016: approximately HK$43,695,000), after a
deduction of forfeited contributions of approximately HK$ 1,355,000
(2016: approximately HK$502,000). For the MPF Scheme, the Group
contributed approximately HK$10,257,000 (2016: approximately
HK$9,313,000) for the year ended 31 December 2017.

(b) Defined benefit schemes

The Group operates an unfunded defined benefit plan for all its
retired employees. Under the plan, the employees are entitled to
retirement benefits which included fully redeemed medical care,
housing allowance and other retirement benefits.

The plan is exposed to interest rate risk and the risk of changes in
the life expectancy for pensioners.
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17.
(b)

Defined benefit schemes (Cont’d)

RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS (Cont'd)

The most recent actuarial valuations of the present value of the

defined benefit obligations were carried out at 31
by using the projected unit credit actuarial valuation

December 2017
method.

The principal actuarial assumptions used as at the end of the

reporting period are as follows:

2017 2016

P = Discount rate (%) 2.2 2.2
T8 HA B8 7 R e A 2 38 = (%) Expected rate of medical insurance cost increases (%) 6.0 6.0
T HA Bk 5 E B AS B 1B R (%) Expected rate of social entertainment cost increases (%) 0.0 0.0
FEHR R 2 A K R (%) Expected rate of retirement souvenir cost increases (%) 0.0 0.0
TEHRF € 3 R E (%) Expected rate of rental increases (%) 3.0 3.0
TE HA B 2 (%) Expected rate of withdrawal (%) 3.0-18.0 3.0-18.0
TEHASE T- & Expected death rate EBADEMEX BEADEMR
Hong Kong Hong Kong

EAREHRE EEREMR ZBRBMEDIHTAOT :

Life Tables 2012

Life Tables 2012

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions as at the

end of the reporting period is shown below:

2017

RERN=ZEF RERN=ZEF

AEzEm, AEZEM

(R 2>) R 2)

Increase,” Increase,”

(decrease) (decrease)

bt == 42 A in defined o ez in defined

Increase benefit Decrease benefit

in rate  obligations in rate  obligations

BT T BT T

% HK$°000 % HKS$°000

RS Discount rate 0.1 (1,830) 0.1 2,420
TEHIEERBRFASTIEEE  Expected rate of medical

insurance cost 0.5 10,870 0.5 (8,950)
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17. BHEREBEREEX (@)
(b) BERBE ()

www.nch.com.hk

17. RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS (Cont'd)

(b) Defined benefit schemes (Cont’d)

2016

FERE A 2 48 A 5 RE A 25 48 A

A2, A2,

ORt2>) (R 2)

Increase,/” Increase,/”

(decrease) (decrease)

L 2 18 0 in defined Lb 2 in defined

Increase benefit Decrease benefit

in rate obligations in rate obligations

BT T BT T

% HK$'000 % HK$'000

PR & Discount rate 0.1 (1,850) 0.1 2,450
TEHIEERBRFASTIEEE  Expected rate of medical

insurance cost 0.5 10,990 0.5 (9,050)

ERBEESTRRBERE BB AERBHE

HHRENmBAAELZ

FEiRe ham RN ER ARG 2

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined based on a

method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obligations

as a result of reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the

end of the reporting period.

The total expenses recognised in the consolidated income statement

B ARSI - in respect of the plan is as follows:
2017 2016
BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
HEF =t & Defined benefit schemes
— B BRG A A — Current service cost 2,190 2,510
— B ARG KA — Past service cost
—&TEl5]# — plan introduction = =
— T &l — plan amendment = 660
—FFEE — Net interest cost 2,320 2,020
B3 Total expenses 4,510 5,190
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17. RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS (Cont'd)

(b) Defined benefit schemes (Cont’d)

The total expenses recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income in respect of the plan is as follows:

2017 2016
BET T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
REF =t & Defined benefit schemes
—BREEHELENBERHS — Actuarial gains arising from changes in
assumptions - (4,700)
—EHRARELENRE (BR) BB — Actuarial (gains)/losses arising from experience
adjustments (3,060) 6,400
REAERZZERNDAEBAKAEZS  Components of defined benefit costs recognised in
comprehensive income (3,060) 1,700
AErEIMBELE LT The movement in respect of the plan is as follows:
2017 2016
BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
BB E Benefit liability
®1A1H At 1 January 106,560 102,330
& H AR A5 AR AN Current service cost 2,190 2,510
i@ K AR 75 A AR Past service cost
=Gl — plan amendment = 660
FHEE A Net interest cost 2,320 2,020
SHERE (Rf) B8 Actuarial (gains)/losses on remeasurement (3,060) 1,700
& 2 58 Benefit paid (2,640) (2,660)
®12H31H At 31 December 105,370 106,560
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17. BARBRKA (&)
(b) FEFEE(H)
BRI B R R 2 HEB ST

17. RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS (Cont'd)
(b) Defined benefit schemes (Cont’d)

Expected payment to the defined benefit plan in future years are as

follows:

2017 2016

BET T BT

HK$°000 HK$'000

RAR12{E A AR Within the next 12 months 3,090 2,920
2 B55 Between 2 and 5 years 12,800 12,140
6F F 105 Between 6 and 10 years 17,540 16,960
105 LA Over 10 years 211,800 231,140
TEHIER X Total expected payments 245,230 263,160

REMSRAAEERS R Z FHARR20F -

18. EE SEEEBEABRIEAE
B &

@ E=Ms

REEAKERARTEZTR/ARTREEMBA
ARt Z RN REBURARK 2 MEFENT

The average duration of the defined benefit obligations at the end of
the reporting period is 20 years.

18. DIRECTORS’, SENIOR MANAGEMENT'’S
AND KEY PERSONNEL’'S EMOLUMENTS
(a) Directors’ emoluments

Details of the emoluments paid to or receivable by the directors
of the Bank in respect of their services rendered for the Bank and
managing the subsidiaries within the Group during the year are as

follows:
2017 2016
BET T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
we Fees 1,622 1,269
H b < Other emoluments 16,320 12,272
17,942 13,541
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18. DIRECTORS’, SENIOR MANAGEMENT'’S
AND KEY PERSONNEL’'S EMOLUMENTS
(Cont'd)

(b) Remuneration for Senior Management and Key
Personnel under CG-5

REBERBEL Z2CGS5 (BEMFHMHIEIES) K Pursuant to CG-5 Guideline on a Sound Remuneration System issued
FEAEB 2 RRABTEABREZEAENTWFE by the HKMA, details of the remuneration for Senior Management

LI

()  REARTHIFH

and Key Personnel of the Group during the year are as follows:

(i) Remuneration awarded during the year
2017
BREEAE TEAE
Senior Management Key Personnel
FETE FERE
Non- B st Non- B st
deferred Deferred Total deferred Deferred Total

BRI BRI BRI BT BET T BRI
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

&l 7E 7 B Fixed remuneration
RBe Cash 29,924 - 29,924 13,061 - 13,061
7 B % B Variable remuneration
Be Cash 9,898 12,023 21,921 5,767 1,675 7,442
39,822 12,023 51,845 18,828 1,675 20,503
2016
BREEAE EX-IN-
Senior Management Key Personnel
JEEE JFRT
Non- EIE @it Non- BT @it
deferred Deferred Total deferred Deferred Total
BT BT BETT BT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(& % B Fixed remuneration
RBe Cash 20,972 - 20,972 9,406 - 9,406
FE B Variable remuneration
Be Cash 6,046 928 6,974 3,487 - 3,487
27,018 928 27,946 12,893 - 12,893

LA FH B E1E15%8 (20165 132 ) &R BB AE R The remuneration above includes 15 (2016: 13) members of Senior

8% (2016F : 7R )EBAE -

Management and 8 (2016: 7) members of Key Personnel.
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18. EE EEEBEEABRTEAE 18. DIRECTORS’, SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
& (&) AND KEY PERSONNEL’'S EMOLUMENTS
(Cont'd)
(b) CGSTEREEBAEREEAENIHN (b) Remuneration for Senior Management and Key
(%) Personnel under CG-5 (Cont'd)
(ii) I AE (ii) Deferred remuneration
2017 2016
SEREEAR SREEAEB
Senior FEAE Senior FEAE
Management Key Personnel Management  Key Personnel
BETT BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B IE 5 B Deferred remuneration
BERE Vested - - 637 -
5B Unvested 13,691 1,675 1,668 -
13,691 1,675 2,305 -
R1A1H At 1 January 1,668 - 1,377 -
ERT Awarded 12,023 1,675 928 -
B9 Paid out - - (637) -
ABRESGTE MRS Reduced through performance
adjustments - - - -
R12A31H At 31 December 13,691 1,675 1,668 -

RRERE NBORENEREEABREIEAER
TRBEEER (BEOFMEIEES) €& -

194

EREEAE ESCEREENRRERE
AB BERBREAERZXRY BREEES
= BH REH BEERE ¥Zes/d
BEAN BERRRE MBAE RREE.
Riff#ss EEgWE BRHBTE REME
EREAAS e

For the purpose of disclosure, Senior Management and Key
Personnel mentioned in this section are defined according to the
HKMA's Guideline on a Sound Remuneration System.

- Senior Management: The senior executives directly managed

by the Board who are responsible for oversight of the firm-
wide strategy or material business lines, including Managing
Director, Chief Executive, Deputy Chief Executives, Executive
Committee Members, Heads of Executive Committee
Working Group, Chief Strategy Officer, Chief Financial
Officer, Chief Risk Officer, Chief Technology Officer, Board
Secretary, Head of Audit Department and other particular
personnel.
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BEE EEEEAERTEAE
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G5TEREEAERTEAENHH
(&)
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FEAE BAAEREES K ERR A
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DIRECTORS’, SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
AND KEY PERSONNEL’'S EMOLUMENTS
(Cont'd)

Remuneration for Senior Management and Key
Personnel under CG-5 (Cont'd)

Deferred remuneration (Cont’d)

Key Personnel: The employees whose individual business
activities involve the assumption of material risk which may
have significant impact on risk exposure, or whose individual
responsibilities are directly and materially linked to the risk
management, or those who have direct influence to the
profit, including heads of material business lines, heads of
major subsidiaries, Head of Treasury, as well as Head of Risk
Management Department.

As of the date of these issuance of consolidated financial statements,
the above compensation packages including performance based
bonus for executive directors, senior management and key personnel
for the year ended 31 December 2017 has not been finalised.

REXESEAZE- Management of the Group believes that the difference between the
final emoluments and that disclosed above will not have significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

19. EFEESRTFHBITREMEM  19. CASH AND BALANCES WITH BANKS AND

B AEER OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS
2017 2016
BET T BT
HK$°000 HK$'000

EBEFRe Cash 603,213 561,587

R RERITH A R Balances with central banks 25,177,434 18,761,393

FHUERTT R E A € B s 1) 45 &8 Balances with banks and other financial institutions 3,118,161 3,392,991

ERITREMSFEE —EAR Placements with banks and other financial institutions

B8 2 & HATE maturing within one month 38,836,953 29,611,612
67,735,761 52,327,583
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FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

REAUAAERL
FABRZEMEE
Financial assets
REMEE designated at fair value @ct
Trading assets through profit or loss Total
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
BT BETT BT BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
N LI At fair value
[E % Treasury bills 3,806,354 3,438,763 - - 3,806,354 3438763
HEi5HES Other debt securities 158,381 - - 241,638 158,381 241,638
3,964,735 3,438,763 - 241,638 3,964,735 3,680,401
FHE Certificate of deposit 177,548 - = = 177,548 =
4,142,283 3,438,763 - 241,638 4,142,283 3,680,401
BAHRREE Em SN Total securities are analysed by place of listing as follows:
RERBUAAERL
FFABZEZEMEE

Financial assets

REMEE designated at fair value
Trading assets through profit or loss
2017 2016 2017 2016
BT T BT BT T BT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
B85 Debt securities

— RBEE L™ — Listed in Hong Kong - - - 241,638
— kLT — Unlisted 4,142,283 3,438,763 - -
Eee otk Total securities 4,142,283 3,438,763 - 241,638
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20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Cont'd)

Total securities are analysed by type of issuer as follows:
REBUDXAEZL
STABEZERMEE

Financial assets

REMEE designated at fair value
Trading assets through profit or loss

2017 2016 2017 2016
BT T BT T BT T BT T
HK$°000 HK$'000 HKS$°000 HK$'000
ELER Sovereigns 3,806,354 3,438,763 - -
NGRS Corporate entities 335,929 = - 241,638
Fe ek Total securities 4,142,283 3,438,763 - 241,638

21. (TESRIERY PeEst

SEFIZTHER FERERERANTESRTA
BAEEBERREBREE A

ERERHRENARE - BB KBNS A

B FEFESBEAREIBMTIRARERNER
A - HNERERBAIREE  ME (WEE
MEEFZHMNER)KESE (WA REH) A L
ARG (MXXEENEEE) - [RELEEEHE
BN ZERFEFIMAE -

SMNE-FIXRECBUIERERENET (WED)
RETT (FED) RBEERERE —HFERHHRE—
ERARROENEREE (RBEHR)REL (R
) —FHENS T ANRERN (MIEEE) D
— B - B BB INEMAM K ER - MR E IR
BRHMB—EnHgE AEEMEAOREH TS
GNP ER BB 5 PTETT (R 5 PTETT
BE ZHIHE) -

21. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
AND HEDGE ACCOUNTING

The Group enters into the following exchange rate, interest rate
and commodity related derivative financial instrument contracts for
trading and risk management purposes:

Currency forwards represent commitments to purchase and sell
foreign currency on a future date.

Currency, interest rate and precious metal swaps are commitments
to exchange one set of cash flows or commodity for another. Swaps
result in an exchange of currencies, interest rates (for example, fixed
rate for floating rate), or precious metals (for example, silver swaps)
or a combination of all these(for example, cross-currency interest rate
swaps). Except for certain currency swap contracts, no exchange of
principal takes place.

Foreign currency, interest rate and precious metal options are
contractual agreements under which the seller (writer) grants the
purchaser (holder) the right, but not the obligation, either to buy
(a call option) or sell (a put option) at or by a set date or during
a set period, a specific amount of the financial instrument at a
predetermined price. In consideration for the assumption of foreign
exchange and interest rate risk, the seller receives a premium from
the purchaser. Options are negotiated over-the-counter between the
Group and its counterparty or traded through the stock exchange(for
example, exchange-traded stock option).
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21. TEESRmIARYFET (&)

AEEZTEERTAGYH EEBEREAAE
HINTR-ZFRAUSRITANEN LEBHER
TREEBBERARTERZRXSE METERIA
AR/ AREBEIRET —EREEABRAM
BANR R EEEXBENH AR -ER BSALT
RERFTE REARRORERLERMNAAE At
THERBRAKEMEERNEERBRKTIZER - BEE
EITAE SR T AR OGFAENES mHEMNE%E
CBERERNIKE TEERITAMNMERRESE
BR(BEE)STHN(BEINFE SEFER
TRAEBERANKE -

(@) TEEWMIA
AEBETHIMTEERRINIEZEANRHARE
F%% -KEATPRAEMSRMOITEERR S
PEBERERANEES AR R EEBRRRBRE

TEERMTERNERRITRNOFNXER REHEE
WEZEMBE LHENITEERD TETR S
BMITEEMR P ELNRBAESRBBEARRE
# AHETXZHNERBR - BRTEERRXZBA
RENARH R LNETHEE MSEIE RER

i
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21. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
AND HEDGE ACCOUNTING (cCont'd)

The contract/notional amounts and fair values of derivative financial
instruments held by the Group are set out in the following tables.
The contract/notional amounts of these instruments indicate the
volume of transactions outstanding at the balance sheet dates
and certain of them provide a basis for comparison with fair value
instruments recognised on the balance sheet. However, they do not
necessarily indicate the amounts of future cash flows involved or the
current fair values of the instruments and, therefore, do not indicate
the Group’s exposure to credit or market risks. The derivative
financial instruments become favourable (assets) or unfavourable
(liabilities) as a result of fluctuations in foreign exchange rates,
market interest rates or metal prices relative to their terms. The
aggregate fair values of derivative financial instruments can fluctuate
significantly from time to time.

(a) Derivative financial instruments

The Group trades OTC derivative products mainly for customer
business. The Group strictly follows risk management policies and
requirement in providing derivative products to our customers and in
trading of derivative products in the interbank market.

Derivatives are also used to manage the interest rate risk of the
banking book. A derivative instrument must be included in the
approved product list before any transactions for that instrument can
be made. There are limits to control the notional amount of exposure
arising from derivative transactions, and the maximum tenor of
the deal is set. Every derivative transaction must be input into the
relevant system for settlement, mark-to-market revaluation, reporting
and control.
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21. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
AND HEDGE ACCOUNTING (Cont'd)

(a) Derivative financial instruments (Cont'd)

The following tables summarise the contract/notional amounts of

e 3 LE T each class of derivative financial instrument as at 31 December:
2017
TREEHA
HAPETHA
Not qualified
BEE [ B 3 for hedge #st
Trading Hedging accounting Total
BT T BT T BT T BT T
HK$°000 HKS$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
TEXR A% Exchange rate contracts
BNVHA R = A Spot and forwards 13,809,224 - - 13,809,224
1= 54 Swaps 10,038,826 - - 10,038,826
HMNE 32 5 BAHE Foreign currency options
— B AHi# — Options purchased 11,066 - - 11,066
— B — Options written 11,066 - = 11,066
23,870,182 - - 23,870,182
F=EEH Interest rate contracts
= B Swaps 31,248,317 - - 31,248,317
GRS Commodity contracts 2,390,235 - - 2,390,235
57,508,734 - - 57,508,734

199



#1795 B % 445 « NANYANG COMMERCIAL BANK 2017 ANNUAL REPORT 4 &

B 5 ¥R < B 5

Notes to the Financial Statements

21. FTEESRMIARYFET (&) 21.

www.nch.com.hk

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

AND HEDGE ACCOUNTING (Cont'd)

(@) PTEEWMIE(E) (a) Derivative financial instruments (Cont'd)
2016
& A
E Dk D7
Not qualified
BE [ gz 7 ) for hedge 4t
Trading Hedging accounting Total
BT T BT T BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
[EXRE4 Exchange rate contracts
BIHEA K2 iz HA Spot and forwards 14,183,037 - - 14,183,037
= B Swaps 33,099,594 6,983,272 - 40,082,866
HINEE 32 5 HA Foreign currency options
— B AHIR — Options purchased 13,885 - - 13,885
— B — Options written 13,885 = = 13,885
47,310,401 6,983,272 - 54,293,673
FEESH Interest rate contracts
= HA Swaps 37,943,200 - 231,866 38,175,066
[SEERSED Commaodity contracts 3,464,165 = = 3,464,165
88,717,766 6,983,272 231,866 95,932,904

THERAEPEE: RER (RITE(RE)R
A) 25k FHEUBRBETTEEAE hGTHEER
BEEFUAFEELRRERARNER T A 06

EENITETESLN-
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Not qualified for hedge accounting:derivative contracts which do
not qualify as hedges for accounting purposes but are managed in
conjunction with the financial instruments designated at fair value

through profit or loss are separately disclosed in compliance with the

requirements set out in the Banking (Disclosure) Rules.
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21. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
AND HEDGE ACCOUNTING (Cont'd)

(a) Derivative financial instruments (Cont'd)

The following tables summarise the fair values of each class of
derivative financial instrument as at 31 December:

2017
MAEEE MERE
Fair value assets Fair value liabilities
FHERA FRERA
et HHEA
Not Not
qualified qualified
BE ERHW for hedge @t BE ERHN® for hedge @t
Trading Hedging accounting Total Trading Hedging accounting Total
BETT BT E%Tn  BETr BETx  E¥Tn  B%Tr  BETrx
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EZE4 Exchange rate contracts
HERAE Spot and forwards 366,975 - - 366,975 (152,365) - - (152,365)
=58 Swaps 22,581 - - 22,581 (162,062 - - (162,062)
INER 5 E Foreign currency options
B-UN:il: - Options purchased 78 - - 78 - - - -
—Einie - Options written - - = - (78) - - (78)
389,634 - - 389,634  (314,505) - - (314,505)
SR Interest rate contracts
fR Swaps 6,211 - - 6,211 (6,436) - - (6,436)
Eme Commodity contracts 4,998 - - 4,998 (76,855) = = (76,855)
400,843 - - 400,843 (397,796) - - (397,7%)
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21. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
AND HEDGE ACCOUNTING (Cont'd)

(a) Derivative financial instruments (Cont'd)

2016
AREEE AREER
Fair value assets Fair value liabilities
&R T4 A
HAgsE gtk
Not Not
qualified qualified
BE ERYH  for hedge Bt BE ERYF  for hedge st
Trading Hedging accounting Total Trading Hedging accounting Total
BT A¥%Tr BETr EBTr BT B¥Tr %t EETx
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
EXEH Exchange rate contracts
HEARAE Spot and forwards 595,124 - - 595,124 (350,145) - - (350,145)
i Swaps 184,153 95,101 - 279,254 (126,540)  (202,040) - (328,580)
HME R 5 Foreign currency options
- EAHE - Options purchased 499 - - 499 - - - -
- B — Options written = = = = (499) - - (499)
779,776 95,101 = 874,877 (477,184)  (202,040) = (679,224)
FIREH Interest rate contracts
8 Swaps 9,210 - - 9,210 (9,208) - (8431)  (17,639)
Hma & Commodity contracts 12,389 - - 12,389  (237,381) - - (237,381)
801,375 95,101 = 896,476 (723,773)  (202,040) (8,431)  (934,244)
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21. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

AND HEDGE ACCOUNTING (Cont'd)

(a) Derivative financial instruments (Cont'd)

The table below gives the credit risk-weighted amounts of the
derivative financial instruments and is prepared with reference to the

completion instructions for the HKMA return of capital adequacy

ratio.

2017 2016
BETT BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
XS4 Exchange rate contracts
= H Forwards 107,155 236,167
1= 5 Swaps 64,549 213,873
HINEE 32 5 H fE Foreign currency options
— BEAHI®% — Options purchased - 124
171,704 450,164
FEEL Interest rate contracts
2 HA Swaps 177 37
& ma A Commodity contracts 4,249 =
176,130 450,201

FEERRMEREERE (RITXE(BX)RR) 5
B BBBARR ZHF 2B RSBANZHR
Bk o

AEEEESNEEFELEERZEBENITAERS
NI EERE 5B ¥317,286,0007T (20164 : B
450,268,0007T) * B E Z FRLEE HENIRAB
#103,610,0007T (20164 : % #£126,038,0007T ) °

The credit risk-weighted amounts are calculated in accordance with
the Banking (Capital) Rules. The amounts are dependent upon the
status of the counterparty and the maturity characteristics of each

type of contract.

The total fair values of derivatives subject to valid bilateral netting
agreements for the Group amounted to HK$317,286,000(2016:
HK$450,268,000)and the effect of valid bilateral netting agreements

amounted to HK$103,610,000(2016:HK$126,038,000).

203



#1558 % 441 « NANYANG COMMERCIAL BANK 2017 ANNUAL REPORT 4 &

B 55 R 2R Bff 5F
Notes to the Financial Statements

21. FTEESRMIARYFET (&)

(b) EHEE

AEEHHRTEZTESMTERI2AITHHNAR
(ERUNNE

www.nch.com.hk

21. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
AND HEDGE ACCOUNTING (Cont'd)

(b) Hedge accounting

The fair values of derivative financial instruments designated as
hedging instruments as at 31 December are as follows:

2017 2016
EE a& BE =K
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
BET T BET T BT T BT T
HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
IR E A Cash flow hedges = = 95,101 (202,040)
B2 mEH Cash flow hedges

AR BF A 32 B M) R B 5 RS OB RO A R A
REFNASRENDETENRE - KREHRE S
BoFfEe

FRNREERT D 2 WH B RN WS R AER
(2016%F - &) °

22. EXRKREMERIE

The group used cross-currency interest rate swap to minimise the
cash flow fluctuation of interbank borrowing triggered by foreign
exchange risks and interest rate risk.

There were no gains or losses on ineffective portion recognised in the
income statement during the year (2016: Nil).

22. ADVANCES AND OTHER ACCOUNTS

2017 2016

BET T BT T

HK$'000 HK$'000

[EPN= Personal loans and advances 41,696,450 38,210,006

AEIER Corporate loans and advances 193,510,886 149,570,956

BEFEX Advances to customers 235,207,336 187,780,962
ERORE %R (Mi5E23) Loan impairment allowances (Note 23)

— AR FE — Individually assessed (819,789) (474,147)

— REA TG — Collectively assessed (1,217,025) (852,377)

233,170,522 186,454,438

B5ER Trade bills 1,526,269 5,665,154

234,696,791 192,119,592

R2017F 128318 - BFERBREEF BB
948,297,0007T (20164 : ##601,123,0007T ) °

R2017F12A318 R BHE S EEBEENERREZLE
& (20165F - ££) o
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As at 31 December 2017, advances to customers included accrued
interest of HK$948,297,000(2016 : HK$601,123,000).

As at 31 December 2017, no impairment allowance was made in
respect of trade bills (2016 : Nil).
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23. LOAN IMPAIRMENT ALLOWANCES

2017
218 Bl FFAk
Individually assessed
& A AT st
Personal Corporate Total
BET T BT T BETT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
RK2017F1 18 At 1 January 2017 14,705 459,442 474,147
Rk R (B8 B (Credited)/charged to income statement (2,577) 558,152 555,575
& SR 2 AR U B & 3R Loans written off during the year
as uncollectible (443) (269,775) (270,218)
e =] 2 4 5 R 1R Recoveries 8,690 13,132 21,822
P IR R (B % S O % Unwind of discount on impairment
allowances - (5,356) (5,356)
bE i =& Exchange difference 1,836 41,983 43,819
MK2017912A31H At 31 December 2017 22,211 797,578 819,789
2017
REE T
Collectively assessed
& A A H st
Personal Corporate Total
BT T BET T BETT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
201751418 At 1 January 2017 49,915 802,462 852,377
N EE e Charged to income statement 32,809 325,281 358,090
F SR 2 R U B B 3R Loans written off during the year
as uncollectible (36,675) (65) (36,740)
e =] 2 4 5 B 1R Recoveries 288 272 560
IE =R Exchange difference (653) 43,391 42,738
K2017F12831H At 31 December 2017 45,684 1,171,341 1,217,025
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23. LOAN IMPAIRMENT ALLOWANCES (Cont'd)

2016
2B Bl &Y 1
Individually assessed
& A NG st
Personal Corporate Total
BT T BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
7201651 818 At 1 January 2016 18,167 415,400 433,567
RU R (T8 B (Credited)/charged to income statement (4,248) 426,094 421,846
F SR 2 R U B & 3R Loans written off during the year
as uncollectible (1,461) (384,313) (385,774)
W [El E i 35 BR 18 Recoveries 3,464 40,387 43,851
P IR R (B 7 S O 1% Unwind of discount on impairment
allowances - (4,680) (4,680)
VEH =% Exchange difference (1,217) (33,446) (34,663)
72016512 H31H At 31 December 2016 14,705 459,442 474,147
2016
b = R
Collectively assessed
& A NG st
Personal Corporate Total
BT T BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RK2016F1 511 At 1 January 2016 63,965 887,371 951,336
RUREE R B (E#B) Charged/(credited) to income statement 103,425 (54,823) 48,602
F A EE 2 AR U BB X Loans written off during the year
as uncollectible (116,169) - (116,169)
W Bl E i #F BR 18 Recoveries 1,490 - 1,490
e 5 =R Exchange difference (2,796) (30,086) (32,882)
K20165F12A31H At 31 December 2016 49,915 802,462 852,377
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24. FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS

2017
RAREIER R R AT BR
At fair value At amortised cost
aHHE
SREE BEZE
Available- ZIHiR&EF BRR
for-sale Held-to- i A&
financial maturity Loans and Azt
assets securities  receivables Total
BET T BET T BET T BET T
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
E % Treasury bills 34,797,891 1,013,968 - 35,811,859
HMEBE 5 Other debt securities 32,485,435 2,286,491 - 34,771,926
67,283,326 3,300,459 - 70,583,785
FRE Certificates of deposit 19,311,627 156,728 - 19,468,355
BEBES MR FREBLE Total debt securities and
certificates of deposit 86,594,953 3,457,187 - 90,052,140
& {7 3% % Equity securities 15,156 = = 15,156
HAh Others 17,430,518 - 3,753,086 21,183,604
104,040,627 3,457,187 3,753,086 111,250,900

207



#1798 B % 4845 « NANYANG COMMERCIAL BANK 2017 ANNUAL REPORT 4 &

B 5 e 2 B 51

Notes to the Financial Statements

24, @B E (8

24.

FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS (Cont'd)

RRRETI

2016
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12 3 SH P AR 1) BR

At fair value At amortised cost
Al E
TRMEE BEE
Available-  Z|EAB #F % B
for-sale Held-to- €N
financial maturity Loans and W@t
assets securities receivables Total
BT BT BT BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
& % Treasury bills 27,295,389 1,856,312 - 29,151,701
H i EBES Other debt securities 20,126,675 207,630 1,240,319 21,574,624
47,422,064 2,063,942 1,240,319 50,726,325
F k& Certificates of deposit 14,907,151 = - 14,907,151
BEREHF R T RE R Total debt securities and
certificates of deposit 62,329,215 2,063,942 1,240,319 65,633,476
f& 17 78 5 Equity securities 13,381 = = 13,381
H b Others 7,768,729 - 3,519,496 11,288,225
70,111,325 2,063,942 4,759,815 76,935,082
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Financial investments is analysed by place of listing as follows:

2017
At &
THEE BEZE ERR
Available- ZIHi B &% i EN
for-sale Held-to- Loans and
financial maturity  receivables
assets securities
BT T BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BB H R ERH Debt securities and certificates of deposit
— REBLT — Listed in Hong Kong 6,965,429 812,468 -
— RBEABAIN LT — Listed outside Hong Kong 9,157,104 1,228,223 -
16,122,533 2,040,691 -
— 3E kT - Unlisted 70,472,420 1,416,496 -
86,594,953 3,457,187 -
& 7 & % Equity securities
— kL™ — Unlisted 15,156 = =
HAh Others
— L — Unlisted 17,430,518 - 3,753,086
104,040,627 3,457,187 3,753,086
REZIHBRz EMBESFME Market value of listed
held-to-maturity securities 2,029,917
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2. ERRE ) 24. FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS (Cont'd)
2016
Bk
ERIEE BEE
Available-  EIHAHEH Exk
for-sale Held-to- & WK
financial maturity Loans and
assets securities receivables
AR T T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B85 R RE Debt securities and certificates of deposit
—REE L™ — Listed in Hong Kong 5,538,663 = =
— RBEBAIN LT — Listed outside Hong Kong 7,456,152 97,678 =
12,994,815 97,678 -
— kLM — Unlisted 49,334,400 1,966,264 1,240,319
62,329,215 2,063,942 1,240,319
AR 1D 78 2 Equity securities
— JELET — Unlisted 13,381 = =
HAb Others
— 3k kT — Unlisted 7,768,729 - 3,519,496
70,111,325 2,063,942 4,759,815
BEZEHEz ETHESTE Market value of listed
held-to-maturity securities 99,043
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SRR ERBITHRIEBE 2 BT Financial investments is analysed by type of issuer as follows:
2017
At &
THEE BEZE
Available- Z/Hi A &% Bk
for-sale Held-to- P& WL R
financial maturity Loans and
assets securities  receivables
BT T BT T BT T
HK$°000 HK$000 HK$’000
BELESR Sovereigns 35,184,292 1,013,968 =
HRIT R H A & @R Banks and other financial institutions 62,121,932 2,443,219 3,753,086
AaEldE Corporate entities 6,734,403 - -
104,040,627 3,457,187 3,753,086
2016
At E
CRIEE HEZE
Available-  Z|Ef B &F#H BERK
for-sale Held-to- FE MR
financial maturity Loans and
assets securities receivables
BT T BT BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEAEE Sovereigns 15,847,705 1,375,850 -
NEERL* Public sector entities* 2,486,182 109,953 -
R1T R H A & RS Banks and other financial institutions 43,820,989 480,461 4,759,815
DA Corporate entities 7,956,449 97,678 -
70,111,325 2,063,942 4,759,815

*

109,953,0007T) °

R2017F R BECRITE(EXR)HRAD) RHEA *
RAEENHAHEESREE (2016F : B
248618200075)&?%ﬁ Z|HA B % % (20164F : B

2017.

No available-for-sale financial assets (2016: HK$2,486,182,000) nor held-
to-maturity securities (2016: HK$109,953,000) of which are eligible to
be classified as public sector entities under the Banking (Capital) Rules in
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The movements in financial investments are summarised as follows:

2017
At &
THEE BEZE
Available- Z/H A &3 Bk
for-sale Held-to- P& WK
financial maturity Loans and
assets securities  receivables
BT T BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
201751418 At 1 January 2017 70,111,325 2,063,942 4,759,815
0 Additions 230,672,182 - 982,789
RE BEK&EH Disposals, redemptions and maturity (196,691,615) (938,643)  (2,268,745)
BNHER Reclassification (2,1178,299) 2,178,299 -
55 Amortisation 381,542 1,757 13,227
NAEEE Change in fair value (192,239) - -
PE N =58 Exchange difference 1,937,731 151,832 272,740
FRREEH Impairment during the year - - (6,740)
K2017F12H31H At 31 December 2017 104,040,627 3,457,187 3,753,086
2016
At
CRIEE HEZE
Available-  Z|Hi B &% BERK
for-sale Held-to- FE W5k
financial maturity Loans and
assets securities receivables
BT BT BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
M201651 818 At 1 January 2016 52,355,661 2,466,530 585,792
&N Additions 101,143,245 - 4,760,501
RE B &E E Disposals, redemptions and maturity (82,239,818) (278,026) (581,015)
55 Amortisation (21,407) 3,088 9,611
NABEE Change in fair value (474,313) - -
FEH = Exchange difference (652,043) (127,650) 553
FRRELEH Impairment during the year = = (15,627)
R20165F12A31H At 31 December 2016 70,111,325 2,063,942 4,759,815
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ERREBGR 2 BEEEZ SR T The movements in impairment allowances on loans and receivables

are summarised as follows:

2017 2016
BET T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
m1A1H At 1 January 15,424 -
FRRELEH Impairment during the year 13,482 15,627
pERIER =R Reversal of impairment (6,742) =
MEH =% Exchange difference 1,252 (203)
M®12A31H At 31 December 23,416 15,424
25. REY= 25. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
2017 2016
BET T BT T
HK$'000 HK$’000
R1A1H At 1 January 383,830 414,736
®E Additions 2,502 =
A ERE Fair value gains 24,990 29,340
BN EEEYE Reclassification to properties,

BN KA (FFE26) plant and equipment (Note 26) (108,620) (59,082)
bE i = &R Exchange difference = (1,164)
®12A31H At 31 December 302,702 383,830
TEYEZRMERBLOFIRERSTAT The carrying value of investment properties is analysed based on the

remaining terms of the leases as follows:
2017 2016
BET T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000

EBERE Held in Hong Kong

REATHA) (BiB504) On long-term lease (over 50 years) 148,790 244,290
FREBFR 49 (10F =504 ) On medium-term lease (10 to 50 years) 153,912 139,540
302,702 383,830
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R2017F12A318 JIREERBERAZREMSE
THRIBIE AR E DA RGBT TR A RN 2017
FRANBARRERBEEMETZERMGEE AR
EEARFRRNBERATATSE2
BEHNES -AREVERRSHER-

B Y

26. ME- -BHERE

25. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Cont'd)

www.nch.com.hk

As at 31 December 2017, investment properties were included in
the balance sheet at valuation carried out at 31 December 2017
on the basis of their fair value by an independent firm of chartered
surveyors, Knight Frank Petty Limited. The fair value represents the
price that would be received to sell each investment property in an

orderly transaction with market participants at the measurement

date.

26. PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

BRfE
& & 5% it
R#EE
Equipment,
BEE fixtures and st
Premises fittings Total
BET T BET T BET T
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
M2017%1 A18 2 BREVFE Net book value at 1 January 2017 6,705,611 223,796 6,929,407
HE Additions 6,549 68,376 74,925
& Disposals - (3.321) (3,321)
EXR Revaluation 423,242 - 423,242
FEFE Depreciation for the year (121,734) (77,821) (199,555)
ENoEEERENME Reclassification from
(Mf5E25) investment properties (Note 25) 108,620 = 108,620
BA(H) Transfer in/(out) 5,970 (5,970) =
PE i =& Exchange difference 45,640 8,023 53,663
R2017F 128318 ZBREFE Net book value at 31 December 2017 7,173,898 213,083 7,386,981
2017612 A31H At 31 December 2017
PN ED AL Cost or valuation 7,173,898 903,140 8,077,038
REtHE Accumulated depreciation = (690,057) (690,057)
R2017F12 A318 2 BREFE Net book value at 31 December 2017 7,173,898 213,083 7,386,981
LB E 2 R AN E S The analysis of cost or valuation
HEITWT of the above assets is as follows:
2017512 A31H At 31 December 2017
LK ANE At cost - 903,140 903,140
BEE At valuation 7,173,898 - 7,173,898
7,173,898 903,140 8,077,038
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26. E -F|MREE 5 26. PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Cont'd)
B
B giiid
&
Equipment,
EE fixtures and FEE
Premises fittings Total
BT T BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R20165%1 818 2 BREFE Net book value at 1 January 2016 6,773,252 234,768 7,008,020
HE Additions 131,175 80,646 211,821
s Disposals (50,810) (4,643) (55,453)
Hih Revaluation (59,114) = (59,114)
FEHE Depreciation for the year (119,939) (79,978) (199,917)
B EEEREYE Reclassification from
(FfF5E25) investment properties (Note 25) 59,082 - 59,082
e 5 =R Exchange difference (28,035) (6,997) (35,032)

R20165F12A318 Z R mEFE

Net book value at 31 December 2016 6,705,611 223,796 6,929,407

#2016F12H831H

At 31 December 2016

AR E S HE Cost or valuation 6,705,611 836,637 7,542,248
REE Accumulated depreciation = (612,841) (612,841)
R2016F12A31H Z BRI F(E Net book value at 31 December 2016 6,705,611 223,796 6,929,407
L& E 2 R ANE S The analysis of cost or valuation of

[HED T : the above assets is as follows:

R20169F12H31H

At 31 December 2016

B AE At cost = 836,637 836,637
B HE At valuation 6,705,611 = 6,705,611
6,705,611 836,637 7,542,248
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26. M¥E - -BMRFZE @

FEZEEERBORGHBEHTOT

26. PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Cont'd)

The carrying value of premises is analysed based on the remaining
terms of the leases as follows:

2017 2016
BET T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
EEBEE Held in Hong Kong
REFME %) (BRS04 ) On long-term lease (over 50 years) 4,320,217 3,951,487
FREAFR A (10 =504 ) On medium-term lease (10 to 50 years) 2,168,005 2,155,234
TR BAINFE Held outside Hong Kong
FRHERFR A (10F Z=50%F ) On medium-term lease (10 to 50 years) 654,550 576,025
REIAEA (LR104) On short-term lease (less than 10 years) 31,126 22,865

7,173,898 6,705,611

MR2017512A318 IR EEBBRRAZEE - JiKk
BT R ORI 2 A0 A BIET RN AT B IR A Al 20174
RANBUARBEAEEMETZEEGE  ARE
EEFEEEEEERFRRNBE L THEMHESH
HELEET—BEERISHER-

g PR BEAR REAESDEREEEREHE
B RS R R ¢

As at 31 December 2017, premises were included in the balance
sheet at valuation carried out at 31 December 2017 on the basis of
their fair value by an independent firm of chartered surveyors, Knight
Frank Petty Limited. The fair value represents the price that would be
received to sell each premises in an orderly transaction with market
participants at the measurement date.

As a result of the above-mentioned revaluations, changes in value of
the premises were recognised in the premises revaluation reserve and
the income statement as follows:

2017 2016
BET T BT T
HK$000 HK$'000
EXEESHEBZEMEE, (BE) Increase (decrease) in valuation credited to
premises revaluation reserve 422,069 (64,385)
ERlamR s EHIEE Increase in valuation credited to income statement 1,173 5,271
423,242 (59,114)

RK2017F12 8318 ' BEREZKAEINRRITE
PR ANEBzEEBBRAZEERAFEEAS
#861,124,0007T (20164 : ##£728,077,0007T ) °
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As at 31 December 2017, the net book value of premises that
would have been included in the Group's balance sheet had the
premises been carried at cost less accumulated depreciation was
HK$861,124,000 (2016: HK$728,077,000).
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27. H&E=E 27. OTHER ASSETS
2017 2016
BET T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
el & E Repossessed assets 127,772 84,952
=l Precious metals 245,957 230,611
FEWERIE R TES & A Accounts receivable and prepayments 2,435,209 564,424
2,808,938 879,987

28. AARES{TABEZ2EMERE 28. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

2017 2016
BET T BT T
HKS$°000 HK$'000
RBMERE Trading liabilities
- NEESEBRRESFEE — Short positions in Exchange Fund Bills and Notes 4,345,543 3,223,456

MR2017F12A31BRBRAERARALEE LT AR At 31 December 2017, there was no financial liabilities designated at

HZeRBE (20165128318 &) - fair value through profit or loss (2016: Nil).
29. BEFERERSEHE 29. DEPOSITS FROM CUSTOMERS AND
HEDGE ACCOUNTING
@ EFEEX (a) Deposits from customers
2017 2016
BT T ke e
HK$'000 HK$'000
BVERTF 3R 2 A 2R A7 3R Demand deposits and current accounts
— Al — Corporate 55,089,269 38,043,836
— EA — Personal 3,207,231 2,984,973
58,296,500 41,028,809
HEFEK Savings deposits
— A7 — Corporate 22,529,083 21,191,418
— @AA — Personal 43,329,013 40,575,220
65,858,096 61,766,638
TEH - 58 HA B AE R Time, call and notice deposits
/NG| — Corporate 141,510,986 103,954,603
— fEA — Personal 59,750,057 50,777,480

201,261,043 154,732,083
325,415,639 257,527,530
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29. EFERREHER @

(b) #HEF
I EEFREH T

R2017%12 8318 REBREHH ARBAENT
Flzia ti#14,991,848,0007T (20164F : £ ) A ¥
SR E - A A R INEE R E -

FE N8 A ERI D 2 W8 518 R IR R AR
(20164 : #) o

30, ERITEBESRERE

www.nch.com.hk

29. DEPOSITS FROM CUSTOMERS AND
HEDGE ACCOUNTING (Cont'd)

(b) Hedge accounting
Hedges of net investments in foreign operations

As at 31 December 2017, a proportion of the Groups's RMB-
denominated deposits from customers of HK$4,991,848,000 (2016:
Nil) were designated as a hedging instrument to hedge against the
net investments in foreign operations.

There were no gains or losses on ineffective portion recognised in the
income statement during the year (2016: Nil).

30. DEBT SECURITIES AND CERTIFICATES OF
DEPOSIT IN ISSUE

2017 2016
BETT BT T
HKS$’000 HK$'000

BT 5 RAFRE - RE A AN BR Debt securities and certificates of deposit,

at amortised cost

—ERH — Certificates of deposit 3,076,684 541,378
—HA BB E S — Other debt securities 3,704,524 554,559
6,781,208 1,095,937

31. HiBREREH

31. OTHER ACCOUNTS AND PROVISIONS

2017 2016

BETT BT T

HK$'000 HK$'000

Hh fE AR IR Other accounts payable 17,086,211 15,836,284
A Provisions 58,993 72,424
17,145,204 15,908,708

32. EERIE

BERERBRRREE LG ERNFE 125K [AAEH] 5
B REERBZRBERBEEMBRRAKREE
W 2 BB M R ORI R AE PR A o

218

32. DEFERRED TAXATION

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of the temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the financial statements and unused tax credits
in accordance with HKAS 12 “Income Taxes”.
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32. IRAEBIE (4) 32. DEFERRED TAXATION (Cont'd)
BEABRAZEERE (EE) ABXZEHE The major components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recorded
AREEFERNZZBHINT in the balance sheet, and the movements during the year are as
follows:
2017
mEFE
RBE
Accelerated MEEL HEERE
tax Property B8  Impairment Hitr @t
depreciation  revaluation Losses  allowances Others Total

BRI BRI BRI BRI BRI BRI
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000

2017118 At 1 January 2017 26,192 1,034,579 - (111,055) (314,693) 635,023
i/ (Bi)EK  Charged/(credited) to income
statement 5,517 16,688 - (162,899) 57,260 (83,434)
B E M2k Credited to other comprehensive
income - 59,426 - - (34,651) 24,775
R Exchange difference - 5,922 - (4,623) (10,401) (9,102)
R2017412A318 At 31 December 2017 31,709 1,116,615 - (278,577) (302,485) 567,262
2016
nEFE
EHE
Accelerated MEER HEER
tax Property B Impairment Hith wst
depreciation revaluation Losses allowances Others Total
BETT BB BB BETT BT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
"®2016E1A1H At 1 January 2016 18,156 1,054,384 (33,609) (136,641) (95,900) 806,390
(83) /8@ MaEKX  (Credited)/charged to income
statement 8,036 5,592 31,511 22,458 (91,811) (24,214)
(B)/fEasf (Credited)/charged to other
2ENE comprehensive income = (21,645) - = (125,625) (147,270)
BHER Exchange difference - (3,752) 2,098 3,128 (1,357) 117
R2016%12A31H At 31 December 2016 26,192 1,034,579 - (111,055) (314,693) 635,023

219



#1795 7% 4845 « NANYANG COMMERCIAL BANK 2017 ANNUAL REPORT 4

B 55 R R Bff 5F
Notes to the Financial Statements

32. EEFHIE (&)

ERZEERNAKREVAEERRBERBARE
3 MARE B RS I R — B B RE - BRI A (E BIE A
FRERIRE EREERAREEREE - THHEE
ERBERASIRZEH CRIAEEEE:
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32. DEFERRED TAXATION (Cont'd)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset on an individual entity
basis when there is a legal right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred taxation relates to the
same authority. The following amounts, determined after appropriate
offsetting, are shown in the balance sheet:

2017 2016
BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FIEFTBE E Deferred tax assets (222,516) (100,652)
EERIEAE Deferred tax liabilities 789,778 735,675
567,262 635,023
2017 2016
T 5T BT T
HK$000 HK$'000

FEEFIEEE (HBiB1218 A %4k =) Deferred tax assets to be recovered
after more than twelve months (101,172) -

EEFIBEE (BB128 8% ) Deferred tax liabilities to be settled
after more than twelve months 946,068 928,224
844,896 928,224

R2017F12A318  AEBEARBERBELEHRIBEE 2
7% &5 18 & 7B #52,373,0007T (20164F « /& #2,417,000
TC) RBIRITRG BN ISEIER B EEHR -

As at 31 December 2017, the Group has not recognised deferred tax
assets in respect of tax losses amounting to HK$2,373,000 (2016:
HK$2,417,000). These tax losses do not expire under the current tax
legislation.

33. B 33. SHARE CAPITAL
2017 2016
BET T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETRAR: Issued and fully paid:
7,000,000/ & 38 f% 7,000,000 ordinary shares 3,144,517 3,144,517
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34. ADDITIONAL EQUITY INSTRUMENTS

2017 2016
BET T BT T
HK$'000 HK$’000
1218 UK A IEREHR R EEHI US$1,200 million perpetual non-cumulative
—MERFESH subordinated additional tier 1 capital securities 9,314,890 -

AIRTTHR2017F6 A2 1T T EAEME 12T (0B
$B B ITRAN 18 S B #93.15(8 7T ) UK A JE 25t
IRBEEIN—RERFS ([FBHINERTEAE]) o« fbk A
ﬁﬁ&\\§$lﬂﬁé2022¢6ﬁ2 ER=R (TG N =R
EEFHNEERS.00% - HERFAREITEEBRE =
AFHEEBAFRERAFHEXBEBEERSS X
B EFEFZ= N LR ETHESR

EFEFFIRMN—R RRTARRIEZRINER
T AR EBUSA S E - MBUEHAE & R
AT - AERITIREE LS AR E SRR R 20 RS
ET—REBRMERIL-

=
as

&
H

RINE E R B M AIRIT TG R S 1T B SR 4
BRE ZRINBEATANASRERESE RIHE
BREZEES TETHME-

M2022F6 A2 B A EEBHNIRE R  RR1THAE
EEERMAREMNNBEINERTE BEXESE
2 {65k K 4 BI BT AR )

201712828  ABITENREINEARTEAEEITF
= %fu

\\-//

On 2 June 2017, the Bank issued perpetual non-cumulative
subordinated additional tier 1 capital securities (“additional equity
instruments”) with a face value of US$1,200 million (equivalent to
HK$9,315 million net of related issuance costs). The additional equity
instruments are perpetual and bear a 5.00% coupon until the first
call date on 2 June 2022. The coupon will be reset every five years
if the additional equity instruments are not redeemed to a fixed rate
equivalent to the then-prevailing five-year US Treasury rate plus a
fixed initial spread.

The coupon shall be payable semi-annually. The Bank has the right
to cancel coupon payment (subjected to the requirement as set out
in the terms and conditions of the additional equity instruments) and
the coupon cancelled shall not be cumulative. However, the Bank is
stopped from declaring dividend to its ordinary shareholders unless
the next scheduled coupon payment is paid.

The principal of the additional equity instruments will be written
down to the amount as directed or agreed with the HKMA if the
HKMA notifies the Bank that the Bank would become non-viable if
there is no written down of the principal.

The Bank has a call option to redeem all the outstanding additional
equity instruments from 2 June 2022 or any subsequent coupon
payment date, but subject to restriction as set out in the terms and
conditions.

The Bank has distributed coupon payment for additional equity
instruments for US$30 million on 2 December 2017.
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35. ZERERERWE
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35. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW

STATEMENT
(a) RERFERBAKEREZRMALER (a) Reconciliation of operating profit to operating
cash inflow before taxation
2017 2016
BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
48 & i A Operating profit 3,824,301 3,311,046
e Depreciation 199,555 199,917
BT R Net charge of impairment allowances 920,461 486,075
Hr 3R R (B 2= s [0 43¢ Unwind of discount on impairment allowances (5,356) (4,680)
EisE 2 B (BRI B 35 ) Advances written off net of recoveries (284,576) (456,602)
[REHA B B @318 A 2 F R 1T & Change in balances with banks and
Hth & M ) 45 84 2 E 8 other financial institutions with original
maturity over three months 601,664 (5,576,552)
[REHA BB E3ME A 2 E 1T R Change in placements with banks and
HiertgE sz ERFme# other financial institutions with original
maturity over three months 9,434,409 (7,236,680)
AABEZ T AERZ Change in financial assets at fair value
CREEZEEH through profit or loss (1,594,211) 2,486,261
Mii BT H 2 &8) Change in derivative financial instruments 28,298 366,960
ERNEHMEE #8) Change in advances and other accounts (43,287,489) (23,137,199)
%rﬂ%xéfZ%& Change in financial investments (36,340,312) (20,456,994)
Hth & 2= 2 B8 Change in other assets (1,929,008) 3,415,244
RIT R E A & mEE 2 TF R R Change in deposits and balances from banks and
BHzEE other financial institutions (2,714,703) (510,964)
NABERB T ABZZ Change in financial liabilities at fair value
EHBECES through profit or loss 1,122,087  (1,351,900)
BEEERZE Change in deposits from customers 67,888,109 39,265,547
Emﬁﬁlﬁﬁfﬁﬁzm‘ﬁ Change in other accounts and provisions 1,239,556 2,932,208
BEgowE Effect of changes in exchange rates (1,501,016) 616,996
f‘é‘fﬁﬁ%&?*é*EQZﬁHj Operating cash outflow before taxation (2,398,231) (5,651,317)
LEEB RS REF BRI Cash flows from operating activities included:
— B WA B — Interest received 10,046,079 7,329,518
—BAE — Interest paid (4,259,687) (3,188,492)
—BHRE - Dividend received 2,980 2,338
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35. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW

STATEMENT (Cont'd)

(b) Analysis of the balances of cash and cash
equivalents(c) Changes in liabilities arising from

financing activities

2017 2016
BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
EFRERRINBEEIEAANZ Cash and balances with banks and
TFHERTT & A b & @18 A A5 84 other financial institutions with original
maturity within three months 52,576,238 36,566,396
REHBE3EARZERITR Placements with banks and other
Hth & @i 2 € HfF financial institutions with original
maturity within three months 2,461,351 1,592,218
RE|EA B E3(E A Rz EH Treasury bills with original maturity
within three months 5,018,235 4,908,283
RENEA B E3(E A A2 75K E Certificates of deposit held with original
maturity within three months 1,455,290 4,501,831
61,511,114 47,568,728

(0 RMEXBEEZ2F

(c) Changes in liabilities arising from financing

activities

BRTEY

HEREFARE

Debt
securities
and

certificates

of deposit

in issue

BT T

HKS$°000

R2017F1 818 At 1 January 2017 1,095,937
ARFEELT Issuance during the year 5,685,271
2017128318 At 31 December 2017 6,781,208
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36. WABBRERE

FREBEREENL2RBREBEARARRLEXZEER
BROABRETIMRE HERESERR 2 AN
RBEERRINEBRBRIT :
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36. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND
COMMITMENTS

The following is a summary of the contractual amounts of each
significant class of contingent liability and commitment and the
aggregate credit risk-weighted amount and is prepared with
reference to the completion instructions for the HKMA return of
capital adequacy ratio.

2017 2016
BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BEREEERIER Direct credit substitutes 9,884,212 16,555,219
HRXHBEBEHAEE Transaction-related contingencies 1,548,920 1,540,154
HEZHEBEIIAEE Trade-related contingencies 14,018,162 12,158,792
BERENEELE Asset sales with recourse 9,279,111 4,796,235
TR = 503 A B R 2 G Commitments that are unconditionally

cancellable without prior notice 75,424,409 81,546,051

HEhadE RIHBAR Other commitments with an original maturity of
- 1F T — up to one year 1,984,229 1,210,783
- 1FERE — over one year 10,920,331 8,884,742
123,059,374 126,691,976
1= 5 &b N B zE Credit risk-weighted amount 22,524,099 21,302,109

EERRMERBEIRE RITE(ER)RRD 5
B WBRBARZSZHF 2 BERARSEANZHR
Bk o

37. BEXRKIE
AEEARUBREDRES EAEBLBENT -

The credit risk-weighted amount is calculated in accordance with the
Banking (Capital) Rules. The amount is dependent upon the status
of the counterparty and the maturity characteristics of each type of
contract.

37. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Group has the following outstanding capital commitments not
provided for in the financial statements:

2017 2016

BET T BT T

HK$'000 HK$’000

B L& R E L EREE Authorised and contracted for but not provided for 3,598 9,230
EHEEREL Authorised but not contracted for 16,160 1,069
19,758 10,299

A EBAREIERE D RSB 2 EREAE 1T R A
RAKREZBFRETZZAE-
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The above capital commitments mainly relate to commitments to
purchase computer equipment and software, and to renovate the
Group’s premises.
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RBETAHE REHERK T AREEREE
RHEARMASN Z&ERS
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38. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
(a) As lessee

The Group has commitments to make the following future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases:

2017 2016
BT T BT T
HK$°000 HK$'000

T REF Land and buildings
— BN F — Not later than one year 262,999 249,064
—1F N EESFR — Later than one year but not later than five years 544,298 541,158
—5%F 1% — Later than five years 11,999 41,999
819,296 832,221

H fth i Other commitments
— B F — Not later than one year 822 555
—1F U EEFR — Later than one year but not later than five years 38 147
820,156 832,923

(b) fEBHBEA (b) As lessor

WETAHEE 2 REHESH TR EEEHEY The Group has contracted with tenants for the following future

B GHZAREBEBEHRE 2 EEWHES minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable operating leases:
2017 2016
BET T BT T
HKS$’000 HK$’000

Tt RBF Land and buildings

—TEB@1E — Not later than one year 8,310 12,351
—1F A EESFR — Later than one year but not later than five years 4,352 7,377
12,662 19,728

AEEUKEHEVABLRENE HEFHAR
HIFEE3F - BB RERBATRZIRBEL -

The Group leases its investment properties under operating lease
arrangements, with leases typically for a period from one to three
years. The terms of the leases generally require the tenants to pay
security deposits.
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39. FaA

AEBEAHZERABLATRENRERRRE -
HERERRREARAKRENLIEHXEHHER-

HREZRRAKETHERAFLHAENRRETR
ST ERRME RNBRIA MU R FRER
REEIEREREE -

40. DEHE
(a) ®BEESE

REBEBHOREEEIZNHE  HAIRMEART
ERRIT PEEBRERE-

BARITHNEERITERRESREZEARITR
B AARTEBRERBEATS MERRITE
BRERBIIFBEATE ENMEXHGR KRTAE
BEE/ BRAEEAKENEN RBPED X
FMINER O - A RKHPFIEEARBOREZEM
B REMEBGRRHES  WEREREARITM
CERTEBRNREEFREBDFARENES E
LEBRIENESZRZIEREBRNFTECES
EREHIEE EANE2INMEXBERER
EERLAXBRIENKSIR S BREEREER
I RRREBRZENER (T2 TRRER
BEBHNERENEEEERBEEMLE) -

REBRBAEENFHENSIRBLMERNR
HRNERAKENYDE HUXBERFRRREY S
RO ISEREREXRBETER - A ANKE KB
RE-mEE (PE) 2EAeMELARDRERER
HRNEBHREZH CEERERBIEA -

[Hit ] fEBEEMEER T EERBEASEER
BB E RPN E X AR B IAR

—AEBROBARSH T ECERERRBRZE
BRMWAR -ZERNERER SREAEEEHRD -
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39. LITIGATION

The Group has been served a number of claims and counterclaims by
various independent parties. These claims and counterclaims are in
relation to the normal commercial activities of the Group.

No material provision was made against these claims and
counterclaims because the directors believe that the Group has
meritorious defences against the claimants or the amounts involved
in these claims are not expected to be material.

40. SEGMENTAL REPORTING
(a) By operating segment

The Group divides its business into four major segments, Personal
Banking, Corporate Banking, Treasury and Investment.

Both Personal Banking and Corporate Banking provide general
banking services. Personal Banking serves individual customers while
Corporate Banking deals with non-individual customers. The Treasury
segment is responsible for managing the capital, liquidity, and the
interest rate and foreign exchange positions of the Group in addition
to proprietary trades. It provides funds to other business segments
and receives funds from deposit taking activities of Personal Banking
and Corporate Banking. These inter-segment funding is charged
according to the internal funds transfer pricing mechanism of the
Group. The assets and liabilities of Treasury have not been adjusted
to reflect the effect of inter-segment borrowing and lending (i.e. the
profit and loss information in relation to Treasury is not comparable
to the assets and liabilities information about Treasury).

Investment includes bank premises and equipment used by
supporting units. Charges are paid to this segment from other
business segments based on market rates per square foot for their
occupation of the Group’s premises. The exchange difference arising
from capital of our subsidiary, NCB (China), which is recognised in its
income statement, is also included in this class.

“Others” refers to other group operations and mainly comprises of
items related to the Group as a whole and totally independent of the
other four business segments.

Revenues and expenses of any business segment mainly include
items directly attributable to the segment. For management
overheads, allocations are made on reasonable bases.
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40. 7EHRE (@) 40. SEGMENTAL REPORTING (Cont'd)
() REESE(E) (a) By operating segment (Cont'd)
AR LERT
Personal  Corporate BEEH RE Hity et SPHES &
Banking Banking Treasury  Investment Others Subtotal ~ Eliminations Consolidated
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EZ2017%128318 Year ended 31 December 2017
BHEMA/ (ZH) Net interest income/(expense)
5K ~ External 185703 4,382,164 1,426,532 - - 5994399 - 5994399
-EBx% - Inter-segment 561,983 371,823 (933,806) - - - - -
747,686 4,753,987 492,726 - - 5994399 - 5,994,399
FREERES Net fee and commission
WA/ (%) income/(expense) 609,787 940,842 111,432 62 (2275) 1,659,848 - 1,659,848
FR NS/ (B8R Net trading gain/(loss) 32,92 66,564 (175,123) (67,914) 15 (144,166) = (144,166)
REAUALESZHABE Net loss on financial instruments
JERIAEER designated at fair value through
profit or loss - - (7,586) - - (7,586) - (7,586)
EthemERE 2 FRE Net gain on other financial assets - 89,898 29,017 - - 118,915 - 118,915
EhEBA /() Other operating income/(expense) 52 ¥)] - 138,207 12,627 150,884 (124,463) 26,421
REVAEERR 2 Net operating income before
FRERA impairment allowances 1,389,817 5,851,289 450,466 70,355 10,367 7,772,294 (124,463) 7,647,831
HEERTRE Net charge of impairment allowances (30,231) (883,433) (6,740) - (57) (920,461) - (920,461)
FRERA Net operating income 1,359,586 4,967,856 443,726 70,355 10310 6,851,833 (124,463) 6,727,370
Fd=Sa] Operating expenses (984,575)  (1,647,214) (119,108)  (179,545) (97,090)  (3,027,532) 124,463 (2,903,069)
"ERH/ (FE) Operating profit/(loss) 375,011 3,320,642 324,618 (109,190) (86,780) 3,824,301 - 3,824301
RENEAAEREZ Net gain from fair value adjustments
Flg on investment properties - - - 24,990 - 24,990 - 24,990
WE /B B R Net loss from disposal/revaluation of
XEZFER properties, plant and equipment = = = (2,033) = (2,033) = (2,033)
BREHER/ (58 Profit/(loss) before taxation 375011 3,320,642 324,618 (86,233) (86,780) 3,847,258 - 3847258
R2017F128318 At 31 December 2017
& ASSETS
PREE Segment assets 43562,710 193,081,724 190,352,353 7,733,493 331,858 435,062,138 - 435,062,138
af& LIABILITIES
AHEE Segment liabilities 108,471,515 231,197,241 41,049,841 3053 2,251,408 382,973,058 - 382,973,058
HZ2017£128318 Year ended 31 December 2017
HitER Other information
BARMY Capital expenditure - - - 71,421 - 71421 - 71,421
il Depreciation 8,386 4,637 462 179,533 6,537 199,555 - 199,555
EREH Amortisation of securities - - 396,526 - - 396,526 - 396,526
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40. 7 EHRE (@ 40. SEGMENTAL REPORTING (Cont'd)
() REESE(H) (a) By operating segment (Cont'd)
BART PERT
Personal Corporate BEE ®E Hit gt AHFEE e
Banking Banking Treasury Investment Others Subtotal  Eliminations  Consolidated
BETT BETT AR T BETT BETT BRI T BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
22016512318 Year ended 31 December 2016
FHEMA/ (Kit) Net interest income/(expense)
=5k ~ External 307,501 3,009,601 1,217,707 = - 4534809 - 4534809
-Bx% - Inter-segment 558,112 173,881 (731,993) - - - - -
865613 3,183482 485,714 - - 4534809 - 4534809
FREERES Net fee and commission
WA/ (%) income/(expense) 774,215 784,771 14,072 98 (1,085 1,572,071 - 152,01
FR NS/ (B8] Net trading gain/(loss) 37,113 50,907 15,899 32,007 (1,321) 134,695 - 134,695
REBADREEEARZE Netloss on financial instruments
LERIAFER designated at fair value through
profit or loss - (7,708) - - (7,708) - (7,708)
HLpemEE N Net gain on other financial assets = 100,770 92,002 - - 192,772 - 192,772
EhEERA Other operating income 128 3 - 138,393 12,785 151,309 (124,250) 27,059
REBEREANZ Net operating income before
FRERA impairment allowances 1677,069 4,119,933 599,979 170,588 10379 6,577,948 (124,250) 6,453,698
HEERTRE Net charge of impairment allowances (99,177) (371,271) (15,627) - - (486,075) - (486,075)
FREHA Net operating income 1577,892 3,748,662 584,352 170,588 10379 6,091,873 (124250 5,967,623
mET Operating expenses (1,013,932)  (1,140,060) (279,794) (184,470) (162,571)  (2,780,827) 124250  (2,656,577)
"ERH/ (FE) Operating profit/(loss) 563960 2,608,602 304,558 (13,882) (152,192) 3,311,046 - 3311,046
RENEANERRL Net gain from fair value adjustments
bt on investment properties - = = 29,340 = 29,340 = 29,340
WE /B B R Net gain from disposal/revaluation of
ez F e properties, plant and equipment - - - 4136 - 4136 - 4,136
BREARR/ (B8) Profit/(loss) before taxation 563,960 2,608,602 304,558 19,594 (152,192) 3,344,522 - 33M4522
#2016F12A318 At 31 December 2016
EE ASSETS
PBEE Segment assets 39,800,947 153,986,068 147,613,051 7,353,037 179,606 348,932,709 - 348,932,709
8% LIABILITIES
PHAE Segment liabilities 96,078909 173,305,873 38,952,505 4123 1906331 310,247,741 - 310,247,741
HZ2016%128318 Year ended 31 December 2016
HitER Other information
EAMSH Capital expenditure - 211,821 - 211,821 - 211,821
bk Depreciation 11,848 6,016 390 184,466 (2,803) 199,917 - 199,917
BHEH Amortisation of securities - - (8,708) - - (8,708) - (8,708)
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40. SEGMENTAL REPORTING (Cont'd)
(b) By geographical area

The following information is presented based on the principal places
of operations of the subsidiaries, or in the case of the Bank, on the
locations of the branches responsible for reporting the results or
booking the assets:

2017 2016

REURE EEURE

BRI Z R 2

FRERA RN

Net Net

operating operating
income  BRFLATER income  BRF A& A
before Profit before Profit
impairment before impairment before
allowances taxation allowances taxation
BT T BT T BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BB Hong Kong 4,744,698 3,035,488 3,949,714 2,582,188
H B i Mainland of China 2,903,133 811,770 2,451,494 705,399
HAth Others - - 52,490 56,935
i Total 7,647,831 3,847,258 6,453,698 3,344,522

2017

RAEE
A
Contingent
REE BEE FRBEE liabilities
Total Total Non-current and
assets liabilities assets commitments
BT T BT T BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
B Hong Kong 260,457,002 223,835,403 6,923,364 49,902,361
AR i Mainland of China 174,605,136 159,137,655 895,593 73,157,013
A& Total 435,062,138 382,973,058 7,818,957 123,059,374
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40. DEHRE (@
(b) R EBEEFE S (8)

40. SEGMENTAL REPORTING (Cont'd)
(b) By geographical area (Cont'd)

2016
HARBE
A HE
1BE E BwBE FERBEE Contingent
Total Total Non-current liabilities and
assets liabilities assets commitments
BT T BT T BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BB Hong Kong 213,536,801 185,711,520 6,584,651 40,740,121
R A3 Mainland of China 135,395,908 124,536,221 814,200 85,951,855
BEr Total 348,932,709 310,247,741 7,398,851 126,691,976
41. EEHREE 41. ASSETS PLEDGED AS SECURITY

M2017F 12831 A& B 28 B8
5,258,501,0007T (2016%F : /& #3,140,124,0007T )
REUAGEBRRPRREERZGABREE 2 BEIER
Holsh N"EEBBAEROERENELELFRE
B 2 B (& A7 #3,208,148,0007T (20164 : /&
#889,830,0007T) ° AN & [E & & R UL & & (& M & #
2B ES R 5H%8,579,860,0007T (20164 : jH#
4,058,932,0007t) W ER [RZMUEEE] [
KREIRIBESEE]RTEK-
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As at 31 December 2017, the liabilities of the Group amounting
to HK$5,258,501,000 (2016: HK$3,140,124,000) were secured by
assets deposited with central depositories to facilitate settlement
operations. In addition, the liabilities of the Group amounting to
HK$3,208,148,000 (2016: HK$889,830,000) were secured by debt
securities and bills related to sale and repurchase arrangements. The
amount of assets pledged by the Group to secure these liabilities was
HK$8,579,860,000 (2016: HK$4,058,932,000) mainly included in
“Trading assets”, “Financial investments” and “Trade bills”.
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42. ¢RI H K 42.

TRIIAKEERE ZATIEFEEE R HHEN
BlmZEORNERTAFRE-

OFFSETTING FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The following tables present details of the Group’s financial
instruments subject to offsetting, enforceable master netting
arrangements and similar agreements.

2017
REEER
RPEHEZ
EERZ  REEER AEREERBRTEHE
SRHEELE FAGIRH ZiEBLHE
EEALH Gross SMEEFHE  Related amounts not set off
BEHAE  amountsof Netamounts in the balance sheet
Gross  recognised of financial EKEZ
amounts of financial assets Refm
recognised liabilities set  presented in SWIA Cash
financial offinthe  the balance Financial collateral e
assets balance sheet sheet  instruments received  Net amount
BETT BET T BETT BET T BETT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BE Assets
TESRMIA Derivative financial instruments 35,861 - 35,861 (17,258) - 18,603
At EE Other assets 1,524,687 (1,287,388) 237,299 - = 237,299
1,560,548 (1,287,388) 273,160 (17,258) - 255,902
2017
REESE
RPEHZ
ERR  HREEBE KENEESERTESZ
tREELE R HIRH EBEeE
ERALH Gross SMEMEFHE  Related amounts not set off
EfE#%E  amountsof Netamounts in the balance sheet
Gross  recognised of financial EEMZ
amounts of financial liabilities ReHm
recognised assets set  presented in SRIA Cash
financial offinthe the balance Financial collateral BH
liabilities balance sheet sheet  instruments pledged  Net amount
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
& Liabilities
fTESBMIA Derivative financial instruments 296,570 - 296,570 (17,258) - 279,312
En&f Other liabilities 1,798,845 (1,287,388) 511,457 - - 511,457
2,095,415 (1,287,388) 808,027 (17,258) - 790,769
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42. €T HEZESE ® 42. OFFSETTING FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Cont'd)
2016
REEAR
FRHEHEZ
ERR  REEER RENEEABRTHEHE
SREELSR K5I RA ZHEBeE
ERReH Gross 4 EBAEFE  Related amounts not set off
BEEAS amounts of  Net amounts in the balance sheet
Gross recognised of financial Bl
amounts of financial assets Hefm
recognised liabilities set presented in i Cash
financial off in the the balance Financial collateral FE
assets  balance sheet sheet instruments received Net amount
BETT BETT BETT BT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BE Assets
fTEemIE Derivative finandial instruments 527,532 - 527,532 (395,983) - 131,549
HibBE Other assets 923,058 (830,329) 92,729 - - 92,729
1,450,590 (830,329) 620,261 (395,983) - 224,278
2016
REEBE
KPHEEZ
BEHER  REEAE AEREAEBRRTEHEL
SHEERE  RPITH EESE
BEREH Goss ®RMEEEE  Related amounts not set off
BEEE amounts of  Net amounts in the balance sheet
Gross recognised of financial BERZ
amounts of financial liabilities Refm
recognised assets et presented in SRIA Cash
financial off in the the balance Financial collateral FE
liabilities  balance sheet sheet instruments pledged Net amount
BETT BT BETT BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
afs Liabilities
TESRIA Derivative financial instruments 598,744 - 598,744 (395,983) - 202,761
At EfE Other liabilities 1,254,456 (830,329) 424,127 - = 424,127
1,853,200 (830,329) 1,022,871 (395,983) - 626,388

BAKBRITBRSMIETANEROBEI S W

FREEAHE WEBREROEMELETE

AR —XZEF2HEBSEATRAFEEE-
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kS

other predetermined events occur.

For master netting agreements of OTC derivative and sale and
repurchase transactions entered into by the Group, related amounts
with the same counterparty can be offset if an event of default or



www.nch.com.hk

43, cRIEEHEB

M20174 K20165F12 8318 REBR AR T AR
IHHERGEGEZEEREMEE-

44, EEER

REES (DT $33ER (A7 (RBEHH
wER)ROD E=BORT ARRTEFRE
EREFEDT

#1175 % 4645 « NANYANG COMMERCIAL BANK 2017 ANNUAL REPORT 4 #§

B S HR R B X
Notes to the Financial Statements

43. TRANSFERS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, there were no transferred
financial assets of the Group that do not qualify for derecognition.

44. LOANS TO DIRECTORS

Particulars of loans made to directors of the Bank pursuant to section
383 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 3 of the
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors)
Regulation are as follows:

2017 2016
BETT BT T
HKS$°000 HK$'000
RERHAEZBEZEAR BT Aggregate amount of relevant transactions
outstanding at year end 608 833
RERNKEEERARI 2m=B8 Maximum aggregate amount of relevant transactions
outstanding during the year 833 1,079

45. FECEFBEEALIRS

SATMERER -

AEBERERARREESRIERARAA ([E
EZeiR]) KRERARATEEEEEETERNE
Rom([hEEZ]) MPREEEATEARK
MBIEAERER (TRFBCAR ) P E AR ([HE])
RIMBEERER EROTETABMERZME
AR (BRI EMR5 -

AEENERERABDTERIT(FE)ARQA
(THhREE]) BHEAERENEZERELE T
EERNFEERFALE FAREESR X ER2016
F5A308 ([£A ) ETRE AEBEBREEES
ZHRENXERR-

45. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

General information of the parent companies:

The Group's immediate holding company is Cinda Financial
Holdings Co., Limited (“Cinda Financial Holdings”), the Group's
ultimate holding company is China Cinda Asset Management Co.,
Ltd. (“China Cinda"”) which is a state-owned financial enterprise
established in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") by the
Ministry of Finance (the “MOF") and its shares are listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Hong Kong
Stock Exchange”).

The Group’s former immediate holding company is Bank of China
(Hong Kong) Limited (“BOCHK"), which disposed all its interests in
the Group to Cinda Financial Holdings, a indirectly wholly owned
subsidiary of China Cinda. The transaction was completed and the
share transfer of the Group effected on 30 May 2016 (the “effective
date").
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45,

(a)

234

FECEBREALIRS (8)

HRARRFOFTEG 2 EMDTETH
X5

AEBEzHEEERARREESE MEE
SERXPEGEE (FE)EREGRAR ([E
ERBDES HEEEREEFEZER
AE EEERREEBRZEGASTEE &
A 2 R 2 A R AN B8 B8 5 e ) ALK B P -
TERARBAFRM BT MBERBRSE -

PEEENKLEN O ERIGERIEER -

AP EFEEEETHRIRERRF
He2017F 128318 AEEHBERIEL
%8 /575 #27,487,883,0007T (20164F : /6 &
28,854,437,0007T) ° # ZE20175F12 A31H Lt
FE - BFRBREERMEEERBRTEEN
X H 485 A5 #5342,197,0000T (B £ %% B #E
2016512 H311 : /B#27,845,2967T) °

REP EEERBETHNRZRERPFR e
M2017F12A318 AEBHBRIBAE R
75 6,378,915,0007T (20165F 12 A31H : /B
#18,219,0007T) ° EE2017412 A31H LEF
B BEEERSMMLEERRERELD
> KB BB H67,064,0007T ( B AR BEE
2016412 A831H : #%3,882,0007T) °

AEBHEFRARZEH 2 EMARNRZRE
S RIZRE - N2017F128318 NEE B
FRIE 4A%E 575 #54,859,435,0007T (20164E12
B318 : ##3,696,629,0007T) ° #H E20174F
ANBLEFE HEERAFEHZEA A A
MM BEESBRTPFELENRALEBBE
178,719,0007T ( B A B 22016512 A31
B :%%11,731,0007T) °

45,

(a)
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SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)

Transactions with the parent companies and
the other companies controlled by the parent
companies

The Group's immediate holding company is Cinda Financial
Holdings which is in turn controlled by China Cinda (HK)
Holdings Company Limited (“Cinda Hong Kong”). China
Cinda is the controlling entity of Cinda Hong Kong and its
major shareholder and de facto controller is MOF, which is
one of the ministries under the State Council of the PRC
Government, primarily responsible for state fiscal revenue
and expenditures, and taxation policies.

China Cinda has controlling equity interests in certain other
entities in the PRC.

The majority of transactions with China Cinda arises
from deposits from customers. As at 31 December
2017, the related aggregate amount of the Group
was HK$27,487,883,000 (31 December 2016:
HK$28,854,437,000). The aggregate amount of expenses of
the Group arising from these transactions with China Cinda
for the year ended 31 December 2017 was HK$342,197,000
(from effective date to 31 December 2016: HK$27,845,296).

The majority of transactions with Cinda Hong Kong
arises from deposits from customers. As at 31 December
2017, the related aggregate amount of the Group was
HK$6,378,915,000 (31 December 2016: HK$18,219,000).
The aggregate amount of expenses of the Group arising from
these transactions with Cinda Hong Kong for the year ended
31 December 2017 was HK$67,064,000 (from effective date
to 31 December 2016: HK$3,882,000).

The majority of transactions with other companies controlled
by the parent companies arises from financial investments.
As at 31 December 2017, the related aggregate amount
of the Group was HK$4,859,435,000 (31 December 2016:
HK$3,696,629,000). The aggregate amount of income of the
Group arising from these transactions with other companies
controlled by the parent companies for the year ended 31
December 2017 was HK$178,719,000 (from effective date to
31 December 2016: HK$11,731,000).
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(ii)

FECEBREALIRS (8)

BEBNFARSQAEHN HMRBETH
X5 (%)

ABLEFRAREFZEMAFTHNRZRER
FEREEFLFER -M2017412A318 » A&
B EBRIEARE D Bl A %E1,213,388,0007T
(2016512 4310 : /5#732,259,0007T) K&
#%15,632,964,0007T (2016512 A31H : BH
6,171,802,0007T) * # 22017412 A318 Ik
FE-ENREES 2 B AR B AL
BHEPFEANBARSZ LRSS B ABE
89,895,0007T (B £ % H#£ =2016912 A31
B : 7% #%22,336,0007T ) & 7 % 136,259,000
T(BELEMB#EE2016F12A318 : B
82,699,0007T ) °

AEBERAR cERERARZPIRERS
MAREBEXPRBITROHDBERAF ([
BRTT]) =S (A [RERTER]) -
RESKREFREELA ([EL )RR
TZERAR TRPEREBRAEELRT
(PR EHBAR MHR2/REIN
EESREEERTNBEEBEAR -

[EERRLNIM BRI HEE IR HIES-

AL ERERITEEETHNRSREEE
M5 EE - H2016F1 1B E AW B H
RITEBMMUEEEBREPEENRA
KX i #EE 5 Rl & 7S #15,087,0007T & 7 #
100,307,0007T °

2016F1ATBEELE B  AEBEEETE
ETHRED HEEAEBE187,012,000
T HEALEEEZFR=HNARBE
1,105,0007C ' R 5 1Z T % — M B X G308
o

KB EERBAT 2 FRFHEH 2 HAb A A
MR ZBRERFETFR-H016F1A1BEE
MBS EEEBEREEN T HBE
575 %39,799,0007T °
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SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (cCont'd)

Transactions with the parent companies and
the other companies controlled by the parent
companies (Cont'd)

The majority of transactions with other companies
controlled by the parent companies arises from advances
to customers and deposits from customers. As at 31
December 2017, the related aggregate amount of the
Group was HK$1,213,388,000 (31 December 2016:
HK$732,259,000) and HK$15,632,964,000 (31 December
2016: HK$6,171,802,000) respectively. The aggregate
amount of income and expenses of the Group arising from
these transactions with other companies controlled by the
parent companies for the period ended 31 December 2017
were HK$89,895,000 (from effective date to 31 December
2016: HK$22,336,000) and HK$136,259,000 (from effective
date to 31 December 2016: HK$82,699,000) respectively.

The Group's former immediate holding company is BOCHK,
which is in turn controlled by Bank of China Limited (“BOC")
(collectively as “BOC Group”). Central Huijin Investment Ltd.
(“Central Huijin”) is the controlling entity of BOC, and it is
a wholly-owned subsidiary of China Investment Corporation
("CIC") which is a wholly state-owned company engaging in
foreign currency investment management.

Central Huijin has controlling equity interests in certain other
entities in the PRC.

The majority of transactions with BOC Group arises from
money market activities. The aggregate amounts of income
and expenses of the Group arising from these transactions
with BOC Group from 1 January 2016 to effective date were
HK$15,087,000 and HK$100,307,000 respectively.

From 1 January 2016 to effective date, the Group sold
certain premises to BOCHK with selling price amounting to
HK$187,012,000. The gain from disposal of premises were
approximately HK$1,105,000. The transactions were entered
on normal commercial terms.

The majority of transactions with other companies controlled
by the former parent companies arises from deposits from
customers. The aggregate amount of expenses arising from
these transactions from 1 January 2016 to effective date was
HK$39,799,000.
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45. FECEHEALTRS (8)

(@) BRELFRFGRFEHZEMDFETH

X5 (&)
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BRER BHRREMEBEMHER

(b) EBUFHE REHE MERERHEM
BAEHERNXS

FEARAMBEBRBETRIES MREBHA
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BURZGBEETRER TIEE:

fEE REREREBEFRMEZFR:

- RITEEZ TR A

- HE BE SELEDHEBEAE TR
FrEiT 2 E5

- Ke (L SINGE - BE SR N AR RE AR B AR TS

- BEAKERX RBIA SELRBBRS-

236

www.nch.com.hk

45. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)

(@) Transactions with the parent companies and
the other companies controlled by the parent
companies (Cont'd)

Save as disclosed above, transactions with other parent companies
and the other companies controlled by the parent companies are not
considered material.

The Group enters into banking transactions with these entities in the
normal course of business which include loans, investment securities
and money market transactions.

(b) Transactions with government authorities,
agencies, affiliates and other state controlled
entities

The Group is subject to the control of the MOF and the control of
State Council of the PRC Government through CIC and Central
Huijin, which also directly or indirectly controls a significant number
of entities through its government authorities, agencies, affiliates
and other state controlled entities. The Group enters into banking
transactions with government authorities, agencies, affiliates and
other state controlled entities in the normal course of business at
commercial terms.

These transactions include, but are not limited to, the following:

- lending, provision of credits and guarantees, and deposit
taking;

- inter-bank balance taking and placing;

- sales, purchases, underwriting and redemption of bonds
issued by other state controlled entities;

- rendering of foreign exchange, remittance and investment
related services;

- provision of fiduciary activities; and

- purchase of utilities, transport, telecommunications and
postage services.
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45. FEC2EHEALTRS (8)
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45. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)

(c) Key management personnel

Key management personnel are those persons having authority and
responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities
of the Group, directly or indirectly, including Directors and Senior
Management. The Group accepts deposits from and grants loans and
credit facilities to key management personnel in the ordinary course
of business. During both the current and prior years, no material
transaction was conducted with key management personnel of the
Bank and its holding companies, as well as parties related to them.

The compensation of key management personnel for the year ended
31 December is detailed as follows:

2017 2016

BET T ST T

HK$000 HK$'000

W R E b2 H 8 TR A Salaries and other short-term employee benefits 64,785 37,322
RIRTEF Post-employment benefits 4,378 2,958
69,163 40,280

(d) ERELQTNEER

MR2017F12A318 AT ER S EBAEFIZ—
MEAEKRETRSIEENRBREMKERQ A
FRIE 4858 5 Bl &7 #5297,746,0007T (20164 : /5 ¥
777,815,0007T ) K 7 #185,478,0007T (2016%F : 7
#277,885,0007C ) °

46. ERRERE

AT T2REBERRITERT ZEERBREK
Wﬁﬁhiﬁﬁ%°lmL%E%§%ﬁiﬁﬁm%
REREBRAR ST ZRERBAENDRD
%’E@WE%WEMMZ%I%%&KMZ%%%
R o E B 2 FER AFTTEM BE 22 5 F 73 (R -
AR EBEERRAZMEL - SEEBRTZE
ST HERS S E R ERRIT 2 BITE -

(d) Balances with subsidiaries

As at 31 December 2017, the aggregate sums of amounts due from
subsidiaries and amounts due to subsidiaries of the Bank arising
from transactions entered into during the normal course of business
at commercial terms are HK$297,746,000 (2016: HK$777,815,000)
and HK$185,478,000 (2016: HK$277,885,000) respectively.

46. INTERNATIONAL CLAIMS

The below analysis is prepared with reference to the completion
instructions for the HKMA return of international banking statistics.
International claims are exposures to counterparties on which the
ultimate risk lies based on the locations of the counterparties after
taking into account the transfer of risk, and represent the sum
of cross-border claims in all currencies and local claims in foreign
currencies. For a claim guaranteed by a party situated in a country
different from the counterparty, the risk will be transferred to the
country of the guarantor. For a claim on an overseas branch of a
bank whose head office is located in another country, the risk will be
transferred to the country where its head office is located.
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46. EBRERE (®)
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46.

INTERNATIONAL CLAIMS (Cont'd)

www.nch.com.hk

Claims on individual countries or areas, after risk transfer, amounting
to 10% or more of the aggregate international claims of the Group

are shown as follows:

2017
FEER1TFAAMEAE
Non-bank private sector
FERAT & HE
SEEE HABE
BELHE Non-bank Non-financial
R1T Official financial private et
Banks sector institutions sector Total
BT T BT T BT T BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
A A i Mainland of China 49,317,277 9,534,250 212,539 38,767,290 97,831,356
B Hong Kong 2,629,913 443,739 4,739,648 35,321,601 43,134,901
2016
FERITIL A
Non-bank private sector
FEERTT HER
RIS FLAME
WL Non-bank Non-financial
ERAT Official financial private #Et
Banks sector institutions sector Total
BT BT T BT T BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
A i Mainland of China 48,470,053 1,820,537 216,198 31,209,791 81,716,579
BB Hong Kong 2,368,664 14,781 3,929,130 34,635,628 40,948,203
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47. NON-BANK MAINLAND EXPOSURES

The analysis of non-bank Mainland exposures is based on the
categories of non-bank counterparties and the types of direct
exposures with reference to the completion instructions for the
HKMA return of Mainland activities, which includes the Mainland
exposures extended by the Bank and its banking subsidiaries.

2017
EESERAN BEEAEXRHN
ER MEREE HEBERE
HRKIEH On-balance  Off-balance = #REBAIE
Items in the sheet sheet Total
HKMA return exposure exposure exposure
BET T BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RRIRAT RREFFHEHR  Central government, central
B HIFE AR R government-owned entities
SERE and their subsidiaries and
joint ventures 1 48,913,115 5,511,590 54,424,705
5 RS  # ERIF AR Local governments, local
g HB AR R government-owned entities
BB and their subsidiaries and
joint ventures 2 22,038,554 4,703,027 26,741,581
HEIFEE AR RS EAM PRC nationals residing in Mainland
T35 AR i R4 - or other entities incorporated in
HBARRAEMRE Mainland and their subsidiaries
and joint ventures 3 76,240,258 15,195,181 91,435,439
NEFEE L —IEFR R Other entities of central government
IHIRF P 8 L i 4 not reported in item 1 above 4 4,936,451 3,398 4,939,849
NEIEE LM E M  Other entities of local governments
R P 9 L A not reported in item 2 above 5 253,003 - 253,003
mEEEIEINE RSAEESN  PRC nationals residing outside
St rokiE  HA Mainland or entities incorporated
REANEE outside Mainland where the
credit is granted for use
in Mainland 6 13,218,282 1,983,472 15,201,754
HihZ FHFMmERBEIE  Other counterparties where the
WA AIERITHAMER  exposures are considered to be
AYE non-bank Mainland exposures 7 5,131,429 13,906 5,145,335
@it Total 8 170,731,092 27,410,574 198,141,666
HMRERESEWEEMAT  Total assets after provision 9 445,101,340
BEBERAMEKREE  On-balance sheet exposures as
HEEBEADL percentage of total assets 10 38.36%
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47. FFIRATHY R b E B R IE () 47. NON-BANK MAINLAND EXPOSURES
(Cont'd)
2016
BEAFBRAN BEEABERKI
©ER MERREAE  EOREBRAE
HwFIEHE On-balance Off-balance  #2RRAYE
[tems in the sheet sheet Total
HKMA return exposure exposure exposure
BT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RRIRAT FREFTREHR  Central government, central
B HIFB AR R government-owned entities and
BEME their subsidiaries and
joint ventures 1 28,674,737 1,044,272 29,719,009
BT BT ABE  Local governments, local
et HIHE AR & government-owned entities and
SRR E their subsidiaries and
joint ventures 2 13,482,468 3,841,924 17,324,392
PEZERAERSEMAEEA PRC nationals residing in Mainland
At EHIBRAF K or other entities incorporated in
BELE Mainland and their subsidiaries
and joint ventures 3 65,352,514 27,467,692 92,820,206
TEFEEERE—TBHRR Other entities of central government
BT P 9 L i 4 not reported in item 1 above 4 4,213,992 = 4,213,992
NEEE LS ZIEm A Other entities of local governments
BT A B0 E i i 1 not reported in item 2 above 5 11,889 = 11,889
REZE IR ONE R EE SN PRC nationals residing outside
R - EARNIRAR Mainland or entities incorporated
S5 outside Mainland where the credit
is granted for use in Mainland 6 10,974,129 2,089,606 13,063,735
HihZ ZHFMmERBRAIER Other counterparties where the
R IERTT R A0 B B exposures are considered to be
HHE non-bank Mainland exposures 7 4,902,964 - 4,902,964
it Total 8 127,612,693 34,443,494 162,056,187
MEEESENEER Total assets after provision 9 356,683,339
BEBBERAMERKEEN  On-balance sheet exposures as
EEATBRNL percentage of total assets 10 35.78%

240



www.nch.com.hk

48. EERERNRERSHR

i#17% 7% 445 « NANYANG COMMERCIAL BANK 2017 ANNUAL REPORT 4 &

B S HR R B X
Notes to the Financial Statements

48. BALANCE SHEET AND STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY

(@) BEREX (a) Balance sheet
M12A31H As at 31 December 2017 2016
BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
&E ASSETS
EFEeRFRETREMS BIEE Cash and balances with banks and other
) 45 84 financial institutions 19,171,244 16,232,411
ERITNEMESREE—Z=+_ AR Placements with banks and other financial
B H 2 E HATE institutions maturing between one and
twelve months 1,063,366 233,161
AR EETABER e REE Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 3,806,354 3,680,401
TESRIA Derivative financial instruments 347,235 485,175
B RH b BRIE Advances and other accounts 155,685,169 130,592,331
BRRE Financial investments 71,365,632 56,002,929
agEENGIE- 3 Interests in subsidiaries 11,708,802 8,171,067
"EYE Investment properties 302,702 383,830
YIS - B30 AR A Properties, plant and equipment 6,577,820 6,199,623
Hih&E Other assets 2,434,644 504,185
BERR Total assets 272,462,968 222,485,113
=R LIABILITIES
HRAT I EoAh & RS 2 17 R A R Deposits and balances from banks and other
financial institutions 7,330,054 3,323,848
AREELFABERZEHAR Financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss 4,345,543 3,223,456
TAESmIE Derivative financial instruments 132,807 142,608
EPER Deposits from customers 208,427,760 176,466,913
H b AR 1B K A4 Other accounts and provisions 2,674,463 1,870,229
ERRIEA & Current tax liabilities 279,138 208,624
FEMIEA & Deferred tax liabilities 781,407 726,073
B B4R Total liabilities 223,971,172 185,961,751
=N EQUITY
A% < Share capital 3,144,517 3,144,517
] Reserves 36,032,389 33,378,845
EERASEBERFRENERE Total equity attributable to owners of the parent 39,176,906 36,523,362
REINEARTA Additional equity instruments 9,314,890 =
BB Total equity 48,491,796 36,523,362
BERERERE Total liabilities and equity 272,462,968 222,485,113

KEESN2018F3 268 BBEXRETHATALTAR

REE: on behalf of the Board by:
FALK Fang Hongguang 3R 48 BA
EE Director EE

Chan Sai Ming
Director

Approved by the Board of Directors on 26 March 2018 and signed
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48. EERBERNESZEDHR (8 48. BALANCE SHEET AND STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY (Cont'd)
(b) EZREHX (b) Statement of changes in equity
e
Reserves
WHHE
BEDAE
BHEE
Reserve for
5 BE fair value
E4I8 Bfif#fE  changes of
RA  Additional Premises  available-  EEEfH* BERE BRER EXEs
Share equity  revaluation forsale  Regulatory  Translation Retained Total
capital  instruments reserve securities reserve* reserve earnings equity
BETT BET T BETT BETT BET T BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
201614 1H At 1 January 2016 3,144,517 = 5,621,068 132,473 843,219 (5,955) 24,979,598 34,714,920
FEEER Profit for the year - - - - - - 2187014 2,187,014
At EkE: Other comprehensive income:
BE Premises - - (72,051) - - - - (72,051)
REFIEEF B2 Actuarial losses on defined
REEE benefit plan - - - - - - (1,420) (1,420)
fHEEH Available-for-sale securities = - - (298,878) - = - (298,878)
ERREES Currency translation difference = = = (34) = (6,189) = (6,223)
2ENEER Total comprehensive income - - (72,051) (298912) - (6,189) 2,185,594 1,808,442
RREMLE BE Release upon disposal of premises - - (153,799) = = = 153,799 =
ERARERA Transfer from retained earnings = - = - 237,353 = (237,353) =
12016% 128318 At 31 December 2016 3,144,517 - 5,395,218 (166,439) 1,080,572 (12,144) 27,081,638 36,523,362
120171818 At 1 January 2017 3,144,517 - 5,395,218 (166,439) 1,080,572 (12,144) 27,081,638 36,523,362
FERT Profit for the year
Hip 2wk : Other comprehensive income: - - - - - - 2560199 2,560,199
BE Premises - - 321,479 - - - - 321,479
REFlaRHE 2l Actuarial gains on defined
BERH benefit plan - - - - - - 2,555 2,555
A HEES Available-for-sale securities = = = 3,814 = = = 3,814
ERREER Currency translation difference - - - (253) - - - (253)
2ENHESR Total comprehensive income - - 321,479 3,561 - - 2,562,754 2,887,794
BIENEATE Issue of additional equity instruments' - 931489 - - - - - 9,314,890
XENEATARE Distribution payment for additional
equity instruments - (234,250) - - - - - (234,250)
BRABGERET Transfer from retained earnings = 234,250 = = 249,658 = (483,908) =
20174128318 At 31 December 2017 3,144,517 9,314,890 5,716,697 (162,878) 1,330,230 (12,144) 29,160,484 48,491,796

" FR - AITETEK3.15E T (XT128) KAFERE
RPEIN—RERE S [FHINEATA]) - EEEITR
KB 6NBILEE AR LRI ERT ARG -

* BizEB g ERFE35R W B FIRIURELERFSI)N - B
ERERBBROBFRNEZEERBERT KA

Bz (BEARBARSIEMAAIBHRER)
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During the year, the Bank issued HK$9,315 million (US$1,200 million)
perpetual non-cumulative subordinated additional tier 1 capital securities
(“additional equity instruments”). Direct issuance costs of HK$36.11
million are accounted for as a deduction from the additional equity
instruments.

In accordance with the requirements of the HKMA, the amounts are
set aside for general banking risks, including future losses or other
unforeseeable risks, in addition to the loan impairment allowances
recognised under HKAS 39.
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49. ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY

The Group is indirectly controlled by China Cinda, which is a state-
owned financial enterprise established in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC") by the Ministry of Finance (the “MOF”) and its
shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (“Hong Kong Stock Exchange”).

50. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by
the Board of Directors on 26 March 2018.
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